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A Few Words About Official Statements 
 

Official statements for municipal securities issues – like this one – contain the only “official” information about a 
particular issue of municipal securities.  This Official Statement is not an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to 
buy Bonds in any jurisdiction where it is unlawful to make such offer, solicitation or sale and no unlawful offer, 
solicitation or sale of the Bonds may occur through this Official Statement or otherwise.  This Official Statement 
is not a contract and provides no investment advice.  Investors should consult their advisors and legal counsel 
with their questions about this Official Statement, the Bonds or anything else related to this issue. 

MARKET STABILIZATION 
In connection with this Official Statement, the Underwriters may over-allot or effect transactions which stabilize 
and maintain the market price of the Bonds at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open 
market.  The Underwriters are not obligated to do this and are free to discontinue it at any time. 
 
The estimates, forecasts, projections and opinions in this Official Statement are not hard facts, and no one, 
including the District, guarantees them. 
The District and other reliable sources have provided information for this Official Statement, with the goal of 
providing disclosure to investors which meets legal requirements. 
Bond Counsel, Modrall, Sperling, Roehl, Harris & Sisk, P.A., Albuquerque, New Mexico was not requested and 
did not take part in the preparation of the Official Statement nor has such firm undertaken to independently verify 
any of the information contained herein.  Such firm has no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of any 
information furnished in connection with any offer or sale of the Bonds in the Official Statement or otherwise.  
The legal fees to be paid to bond counsel for services rendered in connection with the issuance of the Bonds is 
contingent, in part, upon the sale and delivery of such Bonds and all legal fees will be paid from bond proceeds. 
Any part of this Official Statement may change at any time, without prior notice.  Also, important information 
about the District and other relevant matters may change after the date of this Official Statement. 
All document summaries are just that – they are not complete or definitive, and they may omit relevant 
information.  Such documents are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete documents.  Any 
investor who wishes to review the full text of documents may request them at no cost from the District or the 
Financial Advisor as follows: 
 

District 
Albuquerque Municipal School District  

P.O. Box 25704  (87125) 
6400 Uptown Blvd. NE, 6E  

Albuquerque, New Mexico  87110 
Attn:  Tami Coleman 

 

Financial Advisor 
RBC Capital Markets, LLC 

6301 Uptown Blvd. NE, Suite 110 
Albuquerque, NM  87110 

Attn:  Paul J. Cassidy 
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$70,000,000 
General Obligation School Building Bonds, Series 2015 
Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 
Bernalillo and Sandoval Counties, New Mexico 

 

INTRODUCTION 
Thank you for your interest in learning more about the $70,000,000 Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12, 
Bernalillo and Sandoval Counties, New Mexico, General Obligation School Building Bonds, Series 2015 (the “Bonds”).  
This Official Statement will tell you about the Bonds, their security and the risks involved in an investment in the Bonds.   
Although the District has approved this Official Statement, it does not intend it to substitute for competent investment 
advice, tailored for your situation. 
 
The Issuer 
The District is a political subdivision of the State of New Mexico (the "State") organized for the purpose of operating and 
maintaining an educational program for the school-age children residing within its boundaries.  The District encompasses 
almost all of Bernalillo County and a portion of Sandoval County (the “Counties”).  Both counties are centrally located in 
New Mexico.  The District’s boundaries encompass all of the City of Albuquerque and the Villages of Tijeras, Los 
Ranchos and Corrales in Sandoval County.  The District's 2015 preliminary assessed valuation is $15,177,076,058.  The 
District had an enrollment of 88,329 students for the 2014-15 school year.  There are 52 charter schools operating within 
the District’s boundaries with 15,456 students attending.  See "THE DISTRICT." 
 
Security  
The Bonds are general obligations of the District and paid from ad valorem taxes that are levied against all taxable 
property within the District without limitation as to rate or amount.  Neither the State nor Counties have any responsibility 
to pay the debt service on the Bonds. 
 
Limited Role of Auditors 
This document presents information from District records and other sources including a portion of the audited financial 
statements of the District for the year ended June 30, 2014, contained in Appendix B. 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, the District’s independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform and has not performed, 
since the date of the report included herein, any procedures on the financial statements addressed in that report.  It also 
has not performed any procedures relating to this Official Statement. 
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Purpose 
The Bonds are being issued for the purposes of (i) erecting, remodeling, making additions to and furnishing school 
buildings, and purchasing and improving school grounds, to purchase computer software and hardware for student use in 
public schools, and to provide matching funds for capital outlay projects funded pursuant to the Public School Capital 
Outlay Act; and (ii) paying costs of issuance. 
 

Selected Debt Ratios 
2015

2015 Preliminary Assessed Valuation (1) $15,177,076,058

2015 Actual Valuation (2) $55,876,981,968

District General Obligation Debt Outstanding (Including the Bonds & Notes) $559,575,000
District Net General Obligation Debt $555,092,040
Estimated Direct & Overlapping G/O Debt $1,220,781,888

District Net Debt as a Percentage of
    Assessed Valuation 3.66%
    Estimated Actual Valuation 0.99%

Direct & Overlapping Debt as Percentage of
   Assessed Valuation 8.04%
   Estimated Actual Valuation 2.18%

Estimated Population 670,893

District Net Debt Per Capita $827.39
Direct and Overlapping Debt Per Capita $1,819.64

(1)  Prelimianry, subject to change.

(2)  Actual valuation is computed by adding the exemptions to the assessed valuation and multiply ing by three.  
 

THE BONDS 
New Mexico law enables the District to issue the Bonds pursuant to Section 6-15-1 through Section 6-15-22, NMSA, 
1978.  The New Mexico Attorney General will provide an opinion with respect to the Bonds.   
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General Terms and Description of the Bonds 
The Bonds will bear interest at the rates and mature in the amounts and on the dates shown on the front cover of this 
Official Statement.  All Bonds are fully registered in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof in conformance 
with the Constitution and laws of the State and pursuant to the Bond Resolution.  Bond payments are made to The 
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), and DTC will then remit the payments to its participants for disbursement to the 
beneficial owners of the Bonds.  See “Book-Entry-Only System” in Appendix C. 

Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
BOKF, N.A. (or successor in function) will serve as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds.   

Optional Prior Redemption* 
Bonds maturing on and after August 1, 2026 are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the District’s option in one or 
more units of $5,000 on and after August 1, 2025 in whole or in part at any time in such order of maturities as the District 
may determine for the principal amount of each $5,000 unit of principal so redeemed and accrued interest to the 
redemption date.  If the District redeems only part of the Bonds of a given maturity, the Registrar will select those Bonds 
by lot. 

Redemption Notices 
The Registrar must, by first class mail, give redemption notices to the registered owners of the affected bonds and to 
various securities depositories and information services not less than 30 days prior to the redemption date.  Please note 
that failure to give notice or any defect in such notice will not effect the validity of the redemption for Bonds 
which notice was properly given.  No transfer of Bonds called for redemption shall be made within 45 days of the date 
of redemption. 
While the Bonds remain under the Book-Entry-Only System, the Paying Agent/Registrar will send notices only to DTC.  
Any problems from DTC through its system to the beneficial owners of the Bonds will not affect the validity of the Bond 
redemption or any other action based on the Paying Agent/Registrar’s notice.  Investors in the Bonds might consider 
arranging to receive redemption notices or other communications from DTC which affect them, including notice of interest 
payments.  See “Book-Entry Only System” in Appendix C. 
If the Paying Agent/Registrar gives proper redemption notice and the Paying Agent/Registrar holds money to pay the 
redemption price of the affected Bonds, then on the redemption date the Bonds called for redemption will become due 
and payable.  Thereafter, no interest will accrue on those Bonds, and their owners’ only right will be to receive payment of 
the redemption price upon surrender of those Bonds to the Registrar. 

Record Date 
The Record Date for the Bonds with respect to any interest payment date is the 15th day of the month (whether or not a 
business day) immediately preceding the interest payment date.  The person in whose name any Bond is registered on 
any Record Date with respect to any interest payment date shall be entitled to receive the interest payable thereon on 
such interest payment date notwithstanding any transfer or exchange thereof subsequent to such Record Date and prior 
to such interest payment date. 

Transfers and Exchanges 
Registered Bond owners may surrender and transfer their Bonds, in person or by duly authorized attorney, at the office of 
the Paying Agent and Registrar.  They must complete an approved transfer form and pay any taxes or governmental 
charges which apply to the transfer.  As explained below, while DTC is the securities depository for the Bonds, it will be 
the sole registered owner of the Bonds. 

3 



 
SECURITY AND REMEDIES 
The Bonds are general obligations of the District payable from general (ad valorem) property taxes that may be levied 
against all taxable property within the District without limitation of rate or amount. 
The District must use all of the property taxes collected for debt service, and any other legally available money, to pay the 
debt service on the Bonds and other outstanding debt. 
Various New Mexico laws and constitutional provisions apply to the assessment and collection of ad valorem property 
taxes.  There is no guarantee that there will not be any changes that would have a material effect on the District. 
 
Limitations of Remedies 
There is no provision for acceleration of maturity of the principal of the Bonds in the event of a default in the payment of 
principal of or interest on the Bonds.  Consequently, remedies available to the owners of the Bonds may need to be 
enforced from year to year. 
The enforceability of the rights and remedies of the owners of the Bonds, and the obligations incurred by the District in 
issuing the Bonds, are subject to the following:  the federal bankruptcy code and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, moratorium, or similar laws relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditor's rights generally, now or 
hereafter in effect; usual equity principles that may limit the specific enforcement under State law of certain remedies; the 
exercise by the United States of America of the powers delegated to it by the federal Constitution; and the reasonable and 
necessary exercise, in certain exceptional situations, of the police power inherent in the sovereignty of the State and its 
governmental bodies in the interest of serving a significant and legitimate public purpose.  Bankruptcy proceedings, or the 
exercise of powers by the federal or State government, if initiated, could subject the owners of the Bonds to judicial 
discretion and interpretation of their rights in bankruptcy or otherwise, and consequently may entail risks of delay, 
limitation, or modification of their rights. 
 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 
It is anticipated that the proceeds of the Bonds will be applied as follows: 
 
Sources Series 2015 Bonds

    Par amount $70,000,000.00
    Premium 9,152,264.00            

      Total $79,152,264.00

Uses
    Project Fund $70,000,000.00
    Costs of Issuance 235,750.00               
    Underwriters' Discount 147,910.00               
    Deposit to Debt Service Fund 8,768,604.00            

      Total $79,152,264.00  
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NEW MEXICO SCHOOL DISTRICT ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM 
The New Mexico legislature amended NMSA 1978, § 22-18-1 et. seq. in the first session of 2003 by adding §22-18-13 which 
became effective July 1, 2003.  Section 22-18-13 was further amended in 2007 and provides that, if the school district indicates 
that it will not make the payment by the date on which it is due, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration 
(“DFA”) shall forward the amount in immediately available funds necessary to make the payment due on the bonds to the 
paying agent from the current fiscal year's undistributed State Equalization Guarantee (“SEG”) distribution to that school district 
and, if not otherwise repaid by the school district from other legally available funds, withhold the distributions from the school 
district until the amount has been recouped by the DFA, provided that, if the amount of the undistributed SEG distribution in the 
current fiscal year is less than the payment due on the bond, the DFA shall: 
(1)  forward in immediately available funds to the paying agent an amount equal to the total amount of the school district's 
undistributed SEG distribution and, if not otherwise repaid by the school district from other legally available funds, 
withhold all distributions to the school district for the remainder of the fiscal year; and 
(2)  on July 1 of the following fiscal year, forward in immediately available funds an amount equal to the remaining amount 
due to the paying agent from that year's SEG distribution and, if not otherwise repaid by the school district from other 
legally available funds, withhold an equal amount from the distribution to the school district until the amount paid has been 
recouped in full. 
This provision applies to all New Mexico school districts. 
Withholding of the SEG distribution may affect the District’s ability to continue to operate. 
The New Mexico School District Enhancement Program was initially put on watch list for possible downgrade on May 15, 
2007 after the state adopted new legislation that altered the mechanics of the program.  After a review of the law and 
policies regarding the implementation of the law, program ratings were bifurcated, with one rating applying to bonds 
issues prior to the March 30, 2007 effective date of the legislation and a second rating applying to bonds issued on or 
after the March 30, 2007 effective date.  Under the new law, the State cannot immediately advance more than the 
remaining undistributed SEG payments for the fiscal year of default.  As a result, those districts with principal and interest 
payments that fall in the latter part of the fiscal year or that are significant in amount relative to the district’s total annual 
SEG distribution may not have sufficient undistributed SEG payments to cover debt service payments in the event of a 
default. 
The rating for the New Mexico School District Enhancement Program is Aa1.  The rating does not apply to 
General Obligation Education Technology Notes. 
By request, Moody’s will assign the Aa1 rating to school district bonds upon verification of a requirement in the authorizing 
bond resolution that an independent, third-party paying agent will be appointed and maintained.  The District has qualified 
the Bonds under the New Mexico School District Enhancement Program. 

DEBT AND OTHER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS 
Article IX, Section 11 of the New Mexico Constitution limits the powers of a district to incur general obligation debt 
extending beyond the fiscal year.  The district can incur such debt for the purpose of erecting, remodeling, making 
additions to and furnishing school buildings or purchasing or improving school grounds, to purchase computer software 
and hardware for student use in public schools, to provide matching funds for capital outlay projects funded pursuant to 
the Public School Capital Outlay Act, or any combination of these purposes but only after the proposition to create any 
such debt has been submitted to a vote of the qualified electors of the district, and a majority of those voting on the 
question vote in favor of creating the debt.  The total indebtedness of the district may not exceed 6% of the assessed 
valuation of the taxable property within the district as shown by the last preceding general assessment.  The district also 
may create a debt by entering into a lease-purchase arrangement to acquire education technology equipment without 
submitting the proposition to a vote of the qualified electors of the district, but any such debt is subject to the 6% debt 
limitation.  The issuance of refunding bonds does not have to be submitted to a vote of the qualified electors of the district. 
The assessed valuation of taxable property within the District is $15,177,076,058 for tax year 2015, as approved by the 
State of New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department, Property Tax Division.  The maximum general obligation 
indebtedness of the District may not exceed 6% of the assessed valuation or $910,624,563. 
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After the Bonds are issued, the ratio of total outstanding general obligation (G/O) debt of the District to the 2015 
preliminary assessed valuation will be no greater than 3.66% as summarized below: 

2015 Assessed Valuation $15,177,076,058
2015 Actual Valuation (1) $55,876,981,968

Total Bonded Debt Outstanding (Including the Bonds & Notes) $559,575,000
Less Estimated Debt Service Fund Balance on August 3, 2015 (2) 4,482,960
NET DEBT $555,092,040

Ratio of Estimated Net Debt to 2015 Assessed Valuation: 3.66%
Ratio of Estimated Net Debt to 2015 Actual Valuation: 0.99%
Per Capita Net Bonded Debt: $827.39
Est. Population: 670,893                     

(1)  Actual valuation is computed by adding the exemptions to the assessed valution and multiply ing by three.

(2)  As of August 3, 2015, the debt serv ice cash balance for the Bonds and Notes was $6,678,408.   The amount
      attributable to principal reduction is 67% .  
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Outstanding Debt 
The District has issued debt (“Outstanding Debt”) in the past for various capital improvements and has never defaulted in 
the payment of any of its debt or other obligations.  Listed below is the District's total general obligation debt outstanding 
including the Bonds.   

Original
Amount Final Principal
Issued Maturity Outstanding

Series 2004 QZAB $4,625,000 08/01/20 $4,625,000 (1)

Series 2006 QZAB 7,160,000 08/01/20 7,160,000 (1)

Series 2007 75,000,000           08/01/16 5,000,000            (2)

Series 2008B 134,000,000         08/01/16 9,000,000            (2)

Series 2009A 124,700,000         08/01/22 78,600,000          
Series 2009C - QSCBs 14,300,000           08/01/24 14,300,000          
Series 2009D Ref 16,800,000           08/01/18 10,695,000          
Series 2010A 85,410,000           08/01/21 55,250,000          
Series 2010B - QSCBs 32,690,000           08/01/27 32,690,000          
Series 2010C - BABs 31,900,000           08/01/24 31,900,000          
Series 2011 Ref 8,940,000             08/01/16 2,660,000            
Series 2012 Ref 39,670,000           08/01/21 27,790,000          
Series 2012 - ETNs 13,000,000           08/01/17 3,900,000            
Series 2013A 43,400,000           08/01/29 33,000,000          
Series 2014 - ETNs 15,000,000           08/01/19 11,500,000          
Series 2014A 75,000,000           08/01/29 67,200,000          
Series 2014B Ref 94,305,000           08/01/23 94,305,000          
Series 2015 70,000,000           08/01/30 70,000,000          

$885,900,000 $559,575,000

(1)  An irrevocable escrow account has been established to pay the principal in 2020 for the Series 2004 General 
     Obligation Qualified Zone Academy Bonds ("QZABs") of $4,625,000 and Series 2006 QZABs of $7,160,000.
     The District makes semi-annual payments of $111,255 and $199,641, respectively , for the 2004 and 2006 QZABs.

(2)  Reflects the balance after the issuance of the Series 2014B Bonds.  
 
Note:  The District has a Lease Purchase Arrangement outstanding with the New Mexico Finance Authority (“NMFA”) in 
the amount of $2,554,943 for the purchase of a building facility occupied by DATA Charter School.  The District has 
entered into a sublease agreement with DATA Charter School whereby the proceeds from the sublease with DATA 
Charter School will be used by the District to pay the lease purchase payments to NMFA.  This outstanding loan with 
NMFA is not considered general obligation debt. 
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Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 
The District schedules principal and interest payments at the time of the bond sales with constraints being general 
obligation debt capacity and expected property tax revenues.  Below is a summary of the currently scheduled principal 
and interest on the District’s outstanding general obligation bond debt as well as the proposed principal and interest 
payments on the Bonds. 

Year Principal (1) Interest Total Principal Interest (2) Total Principal Interest Total
2016 41,095,000        19,382,180        60,477,180 3,700,000             2,555,350 6,255,350 44,795,000          21,937,530          66,732,530
2017 38,375,000        17,766,475        56,141,475 700,000                2,944,000 3,644,000 39,075,000          20,710,475          59,785,475
2018 41,050,000        16,261,225        57,311,225 800,000                2,909,000 3,709,000 41,850,000          19,170,225          61,020,225
2019 41,570,000        14,484,325        56,054,325 900,000                2,869,000 3,769,000 42,470,000          17,353,325          59,823,325
2020 58,645,000        12,799,825        71,444,825 -                        2,824,000 2,824,000 58,645,000          15,623,825          74,268,825
2021 46,820,000        10,656,825        57,476,825 -                        2,824,000 2,824,000 46,820,000          13,480,825          60,300,825
2022 47,660,000        8,582,650          56,242,650 1,800,000             2,824,000 4,624,000 49,460,000          11,406,650          60,866,650
2023 37,670,000        6,503,650          44,173,650 2,000,000             2,734,000 4,734,000 39,670,000          9,237,650            48,907,650
2024 27,550,000        5,010,650          32,560,650 5,000,000             2,634,000 7,634,000 32,550,000          7,644,650            40,194,650
2025 19,500,000        4,086,050          23,586,050 6,000,000             2,384,000 8,384,000 25,500,000          6,470,050            31,970,050
2026 22,000,000        3,233,550          25,233,550 6,000,000             2,084,000 8,084,000 28,000,000          5,317,550            33,317,550
2027 23,190,000        2,289,550          25,479,550 6,000,000             1,784,000 7,784,000 29,190,000          4,073,550            33,263,550
2028 14,525,000        1,286,000          15,811,000        12,300,000           1,484,000 13,784,000 26,825,000          2,770,000            29,595,000
2029 14,525,000        643,000             15,168,000        12,300,000           992,000 13,292,000 26,825,000          1,635,000            28,460,000

2030 -                     -                     -                     12,500,000           500,000             13,000,000        12,500,000          500,000               13,000,000       
Total $474,175,000 $122,985,955 $597,160,955 $70,000,000 $34,345,350 $104,345,350 $544,175,000 $157,331,305 $701,506,305

(1)  Principal in 2020 includes Series 2004 General Obligation Qualified Zone Academy Bonds ("QZABs") of $4,625,000 and Series 2006 QZABs of $7,160,000 for which an irrevocable escrow

       account has been established.  The District makes semi-annual payments of $111,255 and $199,641, respectively , for the 2004 and 2006 QZABs which in part includes gross interest cost.  The

      District issued its 2010B Taxable Qualified School Construction Bonds and its 2010C Taxable Build America Bonds for which interest is subsidized by the IRS.

(2)  Average coupon = 4.3504% .

Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2016 1,950,000 58,250 2,008,250 3,500,000 297,500 3,797,500 5,450,000 355,750 5,805,750
2017 1,950,000 29,250 1,979,250 3,500,000 227,500 3,727,500 5,450,000 256,750 5,706,750
2018 2,250,000 157,500 2,407,500 2,250,000 157,500 2,407,500
2019 -                     -                     -                     2,250,000             90,000               2,340,000          2,250,000            90,000                 2,340,000         

$3,900,000 $87,500 $3,987,500 $11,500,000 $772,500 $12,272,500 $15,400,000 $860,000 $16,260,000

Current G/O Bonds Requirements Total G/O Bonds Requirements

Series 2012 - G/O Ed Tech Notes Series 2014 - G/O Ed Tech Notes

Series 2015 - G/O School Building Bonds 

Total ETN Requirements

 
 
 
The District expects the Budget Control Act of 2011 to have a minor impact on the cash flow from federal funds.  With the 
sequestration reductions which have gone into effect as of March 1, 2013, the District could lose 7.2 percent of the Build 
America Bond subsidy relating to certain outstanding Bonds.  The 2016 sequestration percentage is 6.8.  Overall the District 
does not anticipate that sequestration will have a material impact on cash flows over time. 
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Statement of Estimated Direct and Overlapping Debt 
The following is a calculation of the debt load and per capita debt of the District payable from property taxes.  In addition 
to outstanding debt of the District, the calculation takes into account debt attributable to taxing entities which is the 
responsibility of taxpayers within the boundaries of the District.  Revenue bonds are payable from sources other than 
property taxes. 

2015 Preliminary G/O Debt Percent
 Entity Assessed Value Outstanding Applicable Amount

State of New Mexico $58,412,964,620 $389,270,000 25.982% $101,141,595
City of Albuquerque 12,243,670,185          342,721,000          100.00% 342,721,000         
Bernalillo County 14,925,292,293          114,336,000          98.34% 112,439,195         
Sandoval County 3,198,274,434            16,850,000            2.27% 382,723                
Central New Mexico Community College 17,264,617,270          71,310,000            87.91% 62,687,593           
Village of Los Ranchos 242,466,569               3,175,000              100.00% 3,175,000             
AMAFCA 14,561,281,085          38,550,000            100.00% 38,550,000           

S. Sandoval County AFCA 2,518,611,787            23,660,000            0.46% 109,782                
Albuquerque MSD #12 15,177,076,058          559,575,000          100.00% 559,575,000         
    Total Direct & Overlapping Debt $1,220,781,888

Ratio of Estimated Direct & Overlapping Debt to 2015 Assessed Valuation: 8.04%
Ratio of Estimated Direct & Overlapping Debt to 2015 Actual Valuation: 2.18%
Per Capita Direct & Overlapping Debt: $1,819.64  
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TAX BASE 
Analysis of Assessed Valuation 
Assessed Valuation of property within the District is calculated as follows:  Of the total estimated actual valuation of all 
taxable property in the District, 33-1/3% is legally subject to ad valorem taxes.  After deduction of certain personal 
exemptions, the 2015 preliminary assessed valuation is $15,177,076,058.  The actual value of personal property within 
the District (see "Assessments" below) is determined by the County Assessor.  The actual value of certain property within 
the District (see "Centrally Assessed" below) is determined by the State of New Mexico, Taxation and Revenue 
Department, Property Tax Division.  The analysis of Assessed Valuation follows.   
 

2015* 2014 2013 2012 2011
Assessments
Value of Land $5,998,412,077 5,952,979,105$     5,906,813,865$     5,887,056,085$     
Improvements 11,586,717,135 11,309,860,160 11,130,654,783 11,195,706,123
Personal Property 423,964,859 410,972,559 417,744,022 418,705,974
Mobile Homes 47,500,004 48,070,176 48,209,149 49,764,320
Livestock 1,001,787              1,048,857              1,005,793              1,144,286              
Assessor's Total Valuation -$                      18,057,595,862$   17,722,930,857$   17,504,427,612$   17,552,376,788$   

Less Exemptions
Head of Family $198,923,200 198,649,431$        198,426,899$        199,111,272$        
Veterans 279,185,992          271,467,283          262,668,629          255,765,498          
Other 2,970,475,406       2,967,147,829       2,898,393,631       2,892,645,981       
 Total Exemptions -$                      3,448,584,598$     3,437,264,543$     3,359,489,159$     3,347,522,751$     

Assessors Net Valuation 14,691,274,153$   14,609,011,264$   14,285,666,314$   14,144,938,453$   14,204,854,037$   

Central Assessed 485,801,905          486,445,306          471,532,736          501,031,823          498,742,594          

Total Assessed Valuation 15,177,076,058$   15,095,456,570$   14,757,199,050$   14,645,970,276$   14,703,596,631$   

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Residential 11,486,313,163$   11,248,957,181$   10,933,360,182$   10,734,595,776$   10,628,874,088$   
Non-Residential 3,690,762,895       3,846,499,389       3,823,838,868       3,911,374,500       4,074,722,543       
Total 15,177,076,058$   15,095,456,570$   14,757,199,050$   14,645,970,276$   14,703,596,631$   

Cross County Assessed Valuation
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Bernalillo County 14,832,114,991$   14,743,206,829$   14,413,800,252$   14,303,913,042$   14,363,716,915$   

Sandoval County (1) 344,961,067          352,249,741          343,398,798          342,057,234          339,879,716          
Total 15,177,076,058$   15,095,456,570$   14,757,199,050$   14,645,970,276$   14,703,596,631$   

(1)  Portion of Corrales located in Sandoval County (2A-In Corrales & 2AC - Albuquerque/Corrales).

Source:  Bernalillo and Sandoval Counties Assessor's Offices.
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History of Assessed Valuation 
Listed below is a 5-year history of assessed valuation for the District compared with Bernalillo and Sandoval County.  The 
tax base of the District has increased 3.2% since 2011 compared with a 3.3% increase for Bernalillo County and a 0.74% 
decrease for Sandoval County. 

      Albuquerque       Bernalillo          Sandoval
Tax Year       School District       County           County

2011 $14,703,596,631 $14,452,760,775 $3,222,126,760
2012 14,645,970,276         14,394,423,187         3,180,127,526           
2013 14,757,199,050         14,925,292,293         3,181,176,419           
2014 15,095,456,570         14,835,047,140         3,207,733,623           
2015* 15,177,076,058         14,925,292,293         3,198,274,434           

*  Preliminary, subject to change.

Source:  Bernalillo and Sandoval Counties Assessor's Offices.  
Major Taxpayers  
As highlighted in the table below, the 10 largest taxpayers in the District for tax year 2014 have a combined assessed 
valuation of $392,626,324 which represents 2.6% of the District’s total 2014 assessed valuation.  As of August 3, 2015, 
information for tax year 2015 is not yet available. 

% of 
Taxpayer Business                 2014 A.V. Total A.V.
Public Service Co. of New Mexico Electric Utility $175,028,144 1.16%
QWest Communications Telecommunications 60,622,508                     0.40%
Gas Company of New Mexico Gas Utility 40,943,936                     0.27%
Comcast Cable Provider 29,590,859                     0.20%
Verizon Wireless Communication 18,849,411                     0.12%
Simon Property Group Retail 15,962,333                     0.11%
AHS Medical Center Medical 12,051,009                     0.08%
Southwest Airlines Airline 17,390,944                     0.12%
AT&T Telecommunications 10,525,008                     0.07%
T-Mobile Telecommunications 11,662,172 0.08%
Top Ten Centrally and Locally Assessed Values $392,626,324 2.60%

Source:  Bernalillo County Assessor's Office.  

School Tax Rates 
The following table summarizes the historical school tax levies on residential and non-residential property within the 
District since the 2009 tax year (2009-10 fiscal year).  In February 2010, voters re-authorized the Public School Buildings 
Act levy (the “HB33” levy) at $3.874 for residential property for property tax years 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 
2015.  On February 5, 2013, voters authorized the Public School Capital Improvements Tax Levy (the “Two Mill Levy”) for 
property tax years 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018.   

HB 33 Levy Total
Non- Non- Non- GO Ed Tech Combined Non-

Tax Year Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential Bonds Notes Debt Service Residential Residential
2014 $0.276 $0.500 $1.983 $2.000 $3.841 $4.344 $3.787 $0.644 $4.431 $10.531 $11.275
2013 0.278 0.500 2.000 2.000 3.874 4.344 3.883 0.430 4.313 10.465 11.157
2012 0.274 0.500 2.000 2.000 3.874 4.344 3.416 0.899 4.315 10.463 11.159
2011 0.264 0.500 2.000 2.000 3.874 4.344 4.020 0.294 4.314 10.452 11.158
2010 0.256 0.500 2.000 2.000 3.874 4.344 4.317 0.000 4.317 10.447 11.161

(1)  The debt serv ice tax rate is the same for residential and non-residential property .

Source:  New Mexico Department of Finance & Administration.

Debt Service (1)Operational Two Mill Levy
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Tax Rates 
Article VIII, Section 2, of the New Mexico Constitution limits the total ad valorem taxes for operational purposes levied by 
all overlapping governmental units within the District to $20.00 per $1,000 of assessed value.  This limitation does not 
apply to levies for public debt and levies for additional taxes if authorized at an election by a majority of the qualified 
voters of the jurisdiction voting on the question.  The following table summarizes the tax situation on residential property 
in Bernalillo County for tax year 2014 and the previous four years.  A high level of taxation may impact the District’s ability 
to repay the Bonds. 

Total Levy 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
State of New Mexico $0.000 $0.000 $0.000 $0.000 $0.000
Bernalillo County 7.254 7.320 7.208 6.866 6.665
City of Albuquerque 6.494 6.544 6.544 6.544 6.389
AMAFCA (1) 0.177 0.179 0.176 0.170 0.165
Albuquerque MSD # 12 0.276 0.278 0.274 0.264 0.256
Total $14.201 $14.321 $14.202 $13.844 $13.475

State of New Mexico $1.360 $1.360 $1.360 $1.362 $1.530
Bernalillo County 1.277 1.259 0.910 1.010 0.669
City of Albuquerque 4.976 4.976 4.976 4.976 4.976
AMAFCA (1) 0.675 0.675 0.675 0.675 0.675
Albuquerque MSD #12 10.255 10.187 10.189 10.188 10.191
UNM Hospital 6.342 6.400 6.400 6.400 6.400
Central New Mexico Community College 3.377 3.392 3.344 3.237 3.158
Total $28.262 $28.249 $27.854 $27.848 $27.599

City of Albuquerque 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
State of New Mexico $1.360 $1.360 $1.360 $1.362 $1.530
Bernalillo County 8.531 8.579 8.118 7.876 7.334
City of Albuquerque 11.470 11.520 11.520 11.520 11.365
AMAFCA (1) 0.852 0.854 0.851 0.845 0.840
Albuquerque MSD #12 10.531 10.465 10.463 10.452 10.447
UNM Hospital 6.342 6.400 6.400 6.400 6.400
Central New Mexico Community College 3.377 3.392 3.344 3.237 3.158

Total Residential $42.463 $42.570 $42.056 $41.692 $41.074
Total Non-Residential $46.132 $45.995 $45.648 $45.651 $45.480

Village of Corrales (2)

Residential $30.911 $31.255 $30.816 $28.859 $28.406
Non-Residential $37.864 $38.361 $37.368 $34.228 $32.524

Village of Los Ranchos
Residential $31.141 $31.195 $30.683 $30.273 $29.857
Non-Residential $35.612 $35.475 $35.128 $35.076 $34.948

Village of Tijeras
Residential $30.996 $31.055 $30.536 $30.180 $29.716
Non-Residential $36.837 $36.700 $36.353 $36.356 $36.185

(1)  Albuquerque Metropolitan Arroyo Flood Control Authority .

(2)  Sandoval County

Source:  New Mexico Department of Finance & Administration.

Bernalillio County
Within 20 Mill Limit for General Purposes

Over 20 Mill Limit - Interest, Principal, Judgment, etc.

TOTAL LEVY
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Yield Control Limitation 
State law limits property tax increases from the prior property tax year.  Specifically, no taxing entity may set a rate or 
impose a tax (excluding oil and gas production ad valorem and oil and gas production equipment ad valorem taxes) or 
assessment which will produce revenues which exceed the prior year's tax revenues from residential and non-residential 
property multiplied by a "growth control factor."  The growth control factor is the percentage equal to the sum of (a) 
"percent change I" plus (b) the prior property tax year's total taxable property value plus "net new value", as defined by 
Statute, divided by such prior property tax year's total taxable property value, but if that percentage is less than 100%, 
then the growth control fact is (a) "percent change I" plus (b) 100%.  "Percent change I" is based upon the annual implicit 
price deflator index for state and local government purchases of goods and services (as published in the United States 
Department of Commerce monthly publication entitled "Survey of Current Business," or any successor publication) and is 
a percent (not to exceed 5%) that is derived by dividing the increase in the prior calendar year (unless there was a 
decrease, in which case zero is used) by the index for such calendar year next preceding the prior calendar year.  The 
growth control factor applies to authorized operating levies and to any capital improvements levies, but does not apply to 
levies for paying principal and interest on public general obligation debt, including the Bonds. 

Developments Limiting Residential Property Tax Increases  
In an effort to limit large annual increases in residential property taxes in some areas of the State (particularly the Santa 
Fe and Taos areas which have experienced large increases in residential property values in recent years), an amendment 
to the uniformity clause (Article VIII, Section 1) of the New Mexico Constitution was proposed during the 1997 Legislative 
Session.  The amendment was submitted to voters of the State at the general election held on November 3, 1998 and 
was approved by a wide margin. 
The amendment directs the Legislature to provide for valuation of residential property in a manner that limits annual 
increases in valuation.  The limitation may be applied to classes of residential property taxpayers based on occupancy, 
age or income.  Further, the limitations may be authorized statewide or at the option of a local jurisdiction and may include 
conditions for applying the limitations. 
Bills implementing the constitutional amendment were enacted in 2001 and were codified as Sections 7-36-21.2 NMSA 
1978 and 7-36-21.3 NMSA 1978. 
Section 7-36-21.2 NMSA 1978 establishes a statewide limitation on residential property valuation increases beginning in 
tax year 2001 (the “Statutory Valuation Cap on Residential Increases”).  Annual valuation increases are limited to 3% over 
the prior year’s valuation or 6.1% over the valuation from two years prior.  Subject to certain exceptions, these limitations 
do not apply: 

1. To property that is being valued for the first time; 
2. To physical improvements made to the property in the preceding year; 
3. When the property is transferred to a person other than a spouse, or a child who occupies the property as his 

principal residence and who qualifies for the head of household exemption on the property under the Property 
Tax Code; 

4. When a change occurs in the zoning or use of the property; and 
5. To property that is subject to the valuation limitations under Section 7-36-21.3 NMSA 1978. 
6. On March 28, 2012, the New Mexico Court of Appeals upheld the constitutionality of a law capping residential 

valuation increases until a home changes ownership. The plaintiff appealed the case to the New Mexico 
Supreme Court which upheld the constitutionality of the law.  The New Mexico Legislature has brought up the 
issue of the disparity in valuations in the past several years, but has not enacted any of the bills into law.  To the 
extent that court or legislative action is taken or a further constitutional amendment is passed amending the 
valuation provisions, it could have a material impact on the valuation of residential property in the District. 
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Section 7-36-21.3 NMSA 1978 places a limitation on the increase in value for property taxation purposes for single-family 
dwellings occupied by low-income owners who are 65 years of age or older or who are disabled.  The statute fixes the 
valuation of the property to the valuation in the year that the owner turned 65 or became disabled.  The Section 7-36-21.3 
limitation does not apply: 

1.  To property that is being valued for the first time;  
2. To a change in valuation resulting from physical improvements made to the property in the preceding year; and 
3. To a change in valuation resulting from a change in the zoning or permitted use of the property in the preceding 

year. 
 
Tax Collections 
General (ad valorem) taxes for all units of government are collected by the county treasurer and distributed monthly to the 
various political subdivisions to which they are due. 
Property taxes are due in two installments.  The first half installment is due on November 10 and becomes delinquent on 
December 10.  The second half installment is due on April 10 and becomes delinquent on May 10. 
Collection statistics for all political subdivisions for which each county treasurer collects taxes are presented below: 

Bernalillo County
        Net Taxes Current       Current/ Current/Delinquent

Tax Fiscal         Charged to          Current Tax Collections as a      Delinquent Tax Collections as a
Year Year         Treasurer           Collections (1) %  of Net Levied       Collections (2) %  of Net Levied
2014 14/15 $626,867,177 $606,258,064 96.71% $606,258,064 96.71%
2013 13/14 613,838,522         593,530,750            96.69% 605,201,600          98.59%
2012 12/13 601,844,884         580,736,950            96.49% 598,044,775          99.37%
2011 11/12 593,019,949         570,354,626            96.18% 590,340,847          99.55%
2010 10/11 585,432,230         559,806,155            95.62% 581,960,092          99.41%

(1)  As of June 30 of each fiscal year.
(2)  As of June 30, 2015.

Source:  Bernalillo County Treasurer's Office.

Sandoval County
        Net Taxes Current       Current/ Current/Delinquent

Tax Fiscal         Charged to          Current Tax Collections as a      Delinquent Tax Collections as a
Year Year         Treasurer           Collections (1) %  of Net Levied       Collections (2) %  of Net Levied
2014 14/15 $115,903,449 $111,651,378 96.33% $111,654,378 96.33%
2013 13/14 115,729,254         111,929,449            96.72% 113,605,377          98.16%
2012 12/13 114,396,660         109,098,898            95.37% 113,448,360          99.17%
2011 11/12 111,924,650         107,182,149            95.76% 111,411,687          99.54%
2010 10/11 113,276,279         107,439,020            94.85% 113,238,799          99.97%

(1)  As of June 30 of each fiscal year.
(2)  As of June 30, 2015.

Source:  Sandoval County Treasurer's Office.  
 

Interest on Delinquent Taxes 
Pursuant to Section 7-38-49, NMSA 1978, if property taxes are not paid for any reason within thirty (30) days after the 
date they are due, interest on the unpaid taxes shall accrue from the thirtieth (30th) day after they are due until the date 
they are paid.  Interest accrues at the rate of one percent (1%) per month or any fraction of a month. 
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Penalty for Delinquent Taxes 
Pursuant to Section 7-38-50, NMSA 1978, if property taxes become delinquent, a penalty of one percent (1%) of the 
delinquent tax for each month, or any portion of a month, they remain unpaid shall be imposed, but the total penalty shall 
not exceed five percent (5%) of the delinquent taxes.  The minimum penalty imposed is $5.00.  A county can suspend 
application of the minimum penalty requirement for any tax year. 
If property taxes become delinquent because of an intent to defraud by the property owner, fifty percent (50%) of the 
property tax due or fifty dollars ($50.00), whichever is greater, shall be added as a penalty. 

Remedies Available for Non-Payment of Taxes 
Pursuant to Section 7-38-47, NMSA 1978, property taxes are the personal obligation of the person owning the property 
on the date on which the property was subject to valuation for property taxation purposes.  A personal judgment may be 
rendered against the taxpayer for payment of taxes that are delinquent, together with any penalty and interest on the 
delinquent taxes. 
Taxes on real property are a lien against the real property.  Pursuant to Section 7-38-65, NMSA 1978, delinquent taxes 
on real property may be collected by selling the real property on which taxes are delinquent. 
Pursuant to Section 7-38-53, NMSA 1978, delinquent property taxes on personal property may be collected by asserting 
a claim against the owner(s) of the personal property for which taxes are delinquent. 

THE DISTRICT 
The District is a political subdivision of the State organized for the purpose of operating and maintaining an educational 
program for the school-age children residing within its boundaries.  
Currently the District operates and maintains a variety of facilities in meeting its obligation to provide an educational 
program within its boundaries that cover 1,230 square miles with an estimated population of 670,893. 
The Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 is the 31st largest school district in the country and the largest school 
district in the State with 103,785 (actual headcount) public school students in the area, including those who attend charter 
schools.  There are 88,329 students attending 139 traditional District schools and 15,456 student attending 53 charter 
schools in the District area.  The District operates 139 school sites - 89 elementary schools, 27 middle schools, 14 high 
schools and 9 schools of choice.  In addition, there are 20 District authorized charter schools and 33 State authorized 
charter schools for a total of 53 charter schools within the District.  The District’s educational program also includes 
vocational, technical and occupational training.  In addition, the District is responsible for the educational instruction of 
students in the following institutions:  Bernalillo County Detention Center; Bernalillo County Juvenile Detention Center; 
Family School and Hogares Youth Home.  The District employs 12,451 employees and is one of the largest employers in 
the Albuquerque MSA. 
 
School District Powers 
The District’s powers are subject to regulations adopted by the New Mexico Public Education Department (“PED”).  
Pursuant to an amendment to Article XII, Section 6 of the New Mexico Constitution, adopted at a special election held 
September 23, 2003, the Secretary of Education (the “Secretary”) is the governing authority and has control, 
management, and direction of all public schools pursuant to power provided by law.  The Secretary further exercises 
supervision and authority over the PED.  Generally, the powers of the Secretary and the PED include determining policy 
regarding operations of all public schools, designating courses of instruction, adopting regulations, determining 
qualifications for teachers, counselors and their assistants, and prescribing minimum educational standards.  The 
Secretary may order the creation or consolidation of school districts. 
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Management  
The District Board (the "Board"), subject to regulations of PED, develops educational policies for the District.  The Board 
employs a superintendent of schools, delegates administrative and supervisory functions to the superintendent, fixes the 
superintendent’s salary, has the capacity to sue and be sued, contracts, leases, purchases and sells property for the 
District, acquires and disposes of all property, provides for the repair and maintenance of the District’s property, and 
adopts regulations pertaining to the administration of all powers or duties of the Board.  Members serve without 
compensation for four-year terms of office and are elected in non-partisan elections held every two years on the first 
Tuesday in February.  The current District Board Members are: 

Dr. Donald Duran, President 
Term expires March 1, 2017 

Peggy Muller-Aragón, Member 
Term expires March 1, 2019 

Dr. Analee Maestas, Vice President 
Term expires March 1, 2019 

Lorenzo Garcia, Member 
Term expires March 1, 2017 

Steven Michael Quezada, Secretary,  
Term expires March 1, 2017 

Dr. David Peercy, Member, 
Term expires March 1, 2017 

 Barbara Petersen, Member 
Term expires March 1, 2019 

 
The Superintendent of Schools is selected by and serves at the discretion of the Board.  All other staff members are 
selected by the Superintendent.  The current Administrative Staff is:  
 
Raquel Reedy, Interim Superintendent.  On August 31, 2015, Raquel Reedy was named Interim Superintendent.  As the 
Interim Superintendent, Ms. Reedy’s primary responsibilities include: education, cluster systems, academic standards, 
professional development, school accountability and assessment, instructional and district technology, extended learning, 
quality assurance, higher education partnership and state department statewide partnership.  Other responsibilities 
include development of district-wide processes and measures to accomplish district goals and oversight responsibilities 
for all elementary schools, secondary education, school improvement, student career pathways, educational options 
including charter and privately managed schools, student equity, the improvement of student graduation and student 
dropout rates, special populations, health/mental health, and character education.  Ms. Reedy’s professional experience 
includes Associate Superintendent for Elementary Education, Associate Superintendent for Cluster System, Cluster 
Leader Principal, Elementary School Principal, Human Resources Personnel Specialist and Elementary School Teacher.  
Ms. Reedy holds a Master in Education from Harvard University and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Education from the 
University of Texas Austin. 
Ruben Hendrickson, Chief Operations Officer:  Mr. Hendrickson was promoted to Chief Operations Officer on June 2, 
2014.  He has direct responsibility for the Maintenance and Operations, Facility Design and Construction, Food Services, 
Transportation, Materials Management, Athletics, and School Police/Security divisions of APS.  Prior to this position, he 
was the Deputy Chief Financial Officer and head of Budgeting and Strategic Planning for APS where he worked closely 
with the Superintendent and his staff to identify and execute cost cutting measures to balance the District’s sizeable 
annual budget. It was in this capacity that Mr. Hendrickson proposed and developed a five year sustainability plan to keep 
the District financially strong.  Prior to his employment with the District, Mr. Hendrickson worked for 19 years at Intel 
Corporation as a Construction Finance Controller (America region), Corporate Services Northwest Controller, and Factory 
Finance Manager. Mr. Hendrickson also worked at Philips Corporation as Accounting Manager, Systems Analyst, Internal 
Auditor, and Cost Accountant for the firm’s California semi-conductor division.  Mr. Hendrickson earned his Bachelor’s 
degree in Agricultural and Managerial Economics from the University of California, Davis and his MBA with a 
concentration in finance from Stanford University.  
Tami Coleman, Interim Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director of Accounting.  Ms. Coleman was appointed Interim 
Chief Financial Officer in August 2015.  She joined the District in January 2007 as Director of Capital Fiscal Services.  On 
May 1, 2008, Ms. Coleman was promoted to Executive Director of Accounting.   Prior to being employed with the District, 
Ms. Coleman was employed with Los Lunas Schools since 1990 where she served as Director of Finance since 2000.  
She has extensive experience in public school accounting and management.  Ms. Coleman received her Bachelor of 
Science Degree in Accounting from National American University. 

16 



Insurance 
The District is registered with the State of New Mexico Insurance Commission (the “Commission”) as a self-insured entity 
for workers’ compensation, property and liability coverage.  However, the District has purchased excess coverage policies 
that cover losses over $500,000, $250,000 and $350,000 for workers’ compensation, property and liability, respectively.  
In order to self-insure, the Commission requires that the District restrict its cash balance in an amount equal to the 
estimated workers’ compensation claim liability, excluding incurred but not reported claims.  The District is self-insured for 
group health and offers other employee related benefits through several providers.  The District is not responsible for 
charter school liability. 
 
Intergovernmental Agreements 
The District has entered into various joint powers agreements with other governmental entities in the State which permit 
all the governmental entities to jointly provide certain equipment purchases and other services cooperatively. 
 
School Property 
Currently, the District operates and maintains a variety of facilities in meeting its obligations to provide an educational 
program for the school-aged children residing within its boundaries.  The District operates 139 school sites – 89 
elementary schools, 27 middle schools, 14 high schools and 9 schools of choice.  The District owns vacant land held for 
future school sites.  
 
Student Enrollment  
The District's student enrollment for the current and previous four years is detailed below. 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16*
Elementary School 46,145           46,441           45,587           45,509           43,754           
Middle School 19,392           19,207           19,030           18,771           19,076           
High School 24,215           23,954           23,938           24,049           25,289           

Total 89,752           89,602           88,555           88,329           88,119           
APS & State Authorized Charter Schools 11,352           12,527           12,726           15,456           15,456           

Total Student in the APS Area 101,104         102,129         101,281         103,785         103,575         

*  Projected.

Source:  Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12.  
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FINANCES OF THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 

The basic format for the financial operation of the District is provided by the PED through the School Budget Planning 
Division which is directed by State law to supervise and control the preparation of all budgets of all school districts.  The 
District receives revenue from a variety of local, State, and federal sources, the most important of which are described 
below.  New Mexico's public school finance laws are subject to review and examination through the judicial process, and 
are subject to legislative changes as well.  As a result, the District cannot anticipate with certainty all of the factors which 
may influence the financing of its future activities.  There is no assurance that there will not be any change in, 
interpretation of, or addition to the applicable laws, provisions, and regulations which would have a material effect, directly 
or indirectly, on the affairs of the District. 
District Budget Process 
Each year, the school district budget process begins with the educational appropriations passed by the Legislature and 
signed into law by the Governor.  The actual budget process follows specific steps set by the PED. 
 
• Pursuant to instruction by the PED, the District must submit an operating budget for the next school year to the PED.  

If the District fails to submit a budget, the PED must prepare a District budget for the ensuing year.  Upon written 
approval of the state superintendent [secretary], the date for the submission of the operating budget may be 
extended to a later date fixed by the state superintendent (Section 22-8-6). 

• Before May 31 of each year, the District Board must hold a public hearing to fix the estimated budget for the next 
school year. 

• Before June 20 of each year, the District must submit a balanced budget to the PED. 
• On or before July 1 of each year, the PED must approve and certify an approved operating budget for use by the 

District Board. 
No school board, officer or employee of a school district may make an expenditure or incur any obligation for the 
expenditure of public funds unless that expenditure is made in accordance with an operating budget approved by the 
PED.  This requirement, however, does not prohibit the transfer of funds between line items within a series of a budget.  
Final budgets may not be altered or amended after approval by the PED except upon the District’s request to the PED.  
An instance in which such requests will be approved include a change within the budget that does not increase the total 
amount of the budget.  Additional budget items may also be approved if the District is to receive unanticipated revenues.  
Finally, if it becomes necessary to increase the District's budget by more than $1,000 for any reason other than those 
listed above, the PED may order a special public hearing to consider the requested increase. 
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund, Special 
Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Fund with appropriations lapsing at year end.  Total expenditures of any function 
category may not exceed categorical appropriations. 
To conform with PED's requirements, budgets for all funds of the District are adopted on the cash basis of accounting 
except for state instructional material credit.  State instructional material funds provide for free textbooks from the PED.  
As a result, budgets are not prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and budgetary 
comparisons are presented on the cash basis of accounting. 
 
Sources of Revenue for General Fund 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District and accounts for all financial resources, except those 
required to be accounted for in other funds.  The sources of revenue for the District's General Fund are: 
Local Revenues - Local revenues are a minor source of revenue to the District composed, in part, by a property tax 
annually levied on and against all of the taxable property within the District for operational purposes.  The levy is limited 
by State law to a rate of 50 cents for each $1,000 of net taxable value of taxable property.  Other sources of local 
revenues include interest income earned on the District's investments, rentals and sale of property.  In fiscal year 2014, 
the District received $5,115,173 from local sources. 
Federal Revenues - Another minor source of annual revenue for the District's General Fund is derived from federal grant 
funds related to vocational, special education, and various other programs and P.L. 874 federal impact moneys paid to 
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the District in lieu of taxes on federal land located in the District.  In fiscal year 2014, the District received $2,171,665 in 
federal revenues for its General Fund. 
State Revenues - The District's largest source of annual revenue is derived from the SEG payments described below.  
During fiscal year 2014, the District received $613,416,010 from state sources.  Such payments represented 
approximately 98% of actual fiscal year 2014 General Fund revenues. 
 
State Equalization Guarantee 
The State Legislature enacted New Mexico’s current public school funding formula in 1974. Designed to distribute 
operational funds to local school districts in an objective manner, the funding formula is based upon the educational 
needs of individual students and costs of the programs designed to meet those needs.  Program cost differentials are 
based upon nationwide data regarding the relative costs of various school programs, as well as data specific to New 
Mexico.  The objectives of the formula are (1) to equalize educational opportunity statewide (by crediting certain local and 
federal support and then distributing state support in an objective manner) and (2) to retain local autonomy in actual use 
of funds by allowing funds to be used in local districts at the discretion of local policy making bodies.  The formula is 
divided into three basic parts:   
1. Educational program units that reflect the different costs of identified programs; 
2. Training and experience units that attempt to provide additional funds so that districts may hire and retain better 

educated  and more experienced instructional staff; and 
3. Size adjustment units that recognize local school and community needs, economies of scale, types of students, 

marginal costs increases for growth in enrollment from one year to the next, and adjustments for the creation of new 
districts. 

SEG payments are made monthly and prior to June 30 each fiscal year.  The calculation of the distribution is also based 
on the local and federal revenues received from July 1 of the previous fiscal year through May 31 of the fiscal year for 
which the SEG payment is being computed.  In the event that a district receives more SEG funds than its entitlement, the 
district must make a refund to the State’s general fund. 
Even though the current public school funding formula has been in place for more than three decades, some districts 
have indicated a concern about the fact that some districts receive less revenue per pupil compared to others.  In 
response to these concerns, the Legislature, the Governor, and the State Board of Education authorized an independent, 
comprehensive study of the formula, that was conducted in 1996.  In its principal finding the independent consultant 
concluded,“. . .When evaluated on the basis of generally accepted standards of equity, the New Mexico public school 
funding formula is a highly equitable formula. . . .[S]pending disparities are less than in other states and statistically 
insignificant.”   
Despite the acknowledged equity of the formula, the independent consultant pointed out a strong perception of unfairness 
in the so-called “density” factor and in the training and experience computations of some districts.  As a result, the 
Legislature enacted the following changes to the funding formula: 
• Required that special education students be counted with regular students with “add-on” weights assigned depending 

upon the severity of the disability; 
• Changed weights for special education ancillary services and included diagnosticians in ancillary services 

computations; and 
• Repealed the so-called “density” factor and replaced it with an at-risk factor that is available to all school districts. 
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State Equalization Guarantee payments to the District for the current and previous four fiscal years are as follows: 
School Program Number of
Year Unit Value Program Units Amount

2014 - 2015 $4,005.75 159,344.16 $612,562,319
2013 - 2014 3,817.55 161,840.66 614,087,079
2012 - 2013 3,673.54 161,693.72 590,190,332
2011 - 2012 3,598.87 163,126.23 583,644,192
2010 - 2011 3,712.17 162,940.74 601,789,251 (1)

(1)  Includes Federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act Stablization Funds.

Source:  Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12.  
 
PED receives Federal mineral-leasing funds from which it makes annual allocations to the District for purchasing 
instructional materials.  In fiscal year 2014, the District received $5,117,784 for textbook purchases.   
The District is also reimbursed by the State for the costs of transporting pupils to and from school.  These payments are 
based upon a formula consisting of the number of students per square mile that are transported.  In fiscal year 2014, the 
District received $19,475,331 for transportation purposes. 
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Statement of Net Position  
Below is a five-year history of the Statement of Net Assets for the District including charter schools.  The complete 
independent audit report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and the last four fiscal years can be downloaded from 
the District’s website using the following link:  http://www.aps.edu/departments/accounting.  

FYE 6/30/10 FYE 6/30/11 FYE 6/30/12 FYE 6/30/13 FYE 6/30/14
Total Total Total Total Total

Cash and cash equivalents $111,688,346 $133,789,494 $127,051,017 $132,015,430 $132,282,113
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 76,060,530        66,656,955        71,271,048        74,548,813        92,172,438         
Investments 9,632,933          6,528,357          1,239,714          1,976,526          -                     
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 26,928,846        24,348,322        26,954,789        32,532,493        46,186,760         
Prepaid expenses 787,205             505,268             192,791             181,092             420,881              
Inventory 6,618,113          4,134,048          3,288,557          3,389,715          3,112,842           

Total current assets 231,715,973      235,962,444      229,997,916      244,644,069      274,175,034       

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 111,903,748      219,057,592      175,709,724      174,551,527      176,392,814       
Beneficial interest in remainder trust -                     2,324,830          2,313,726          2,335,652          -                     
Restricted receivables 27,739,027        26,148,634        30,756,047        21,820,103        18,931,205         
Bond issuance costs 1,243,187          2,027,330          1,799,108          1,767,925          -                     

Total noncurrent assets 140,885,962      249,558,386      210,578,605      200,475,207      195,324,019       

Land 43,512,758        44,092,475        54,743,106        54,793,112        56,940,320         
Water rights 60,797               60,797               -                     -                     -                     
Construction in progress 570,942,462      110,091,824      104,872,630      149,961,039      106,857,230       
Land improvements 100,777,172      123,088,611      127,611,311      129,146,582      143,106,757       
Buildings and building improvements 915,704,425      1,460,183,357   1,530,814,246   1,617,812,393   1,729,923,284    
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 125,582,919      95,109,604        92,177,264        80,489,406        75,999,841         
Intangibles -                     15,889,216        15,889,216        15,889,216        15,889,216         
Accumulated Depreciation (570,004,837) (606,660,174) (706,441,589) (756,517,254) (821,201,294)

Total capital assets 1,327,461,658 1,491,414,096 1,430,244,789 1,492,049,701 1,502,839,373
Total Assets $1,559,177,631 $1,727,376,540 $1,660,242,705 $1,736,693,770 $1,777,014,407

Accounts payable $5,701,948 $3,361,710 $2,954,786 $3,931,885 $3,882,734
Accrued expenses 77,345,018        73,421,814        54,939,278        53,431,045        68,868,602         
Unearned revenue 4,179,053          3,965,270          4,151,284          2,724,334          -                     
Accrued interest 7,762,510          9,102,470          8,985,792          8,301,433          7,650,172           
Insurance reserves, IBNR claims 28,347,316        28,434,736        27,601,445        15,740,988        13,338,872         
Current portion of compensated absences 1,657,065          1,426,119          1,393,947          1,451,107          1,484,160           
Current portion of long-term obligations 45,028,295        37,338,072        41,883,656        50,130,544        53,091,988         
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 11,088,745        11,714,169        3,846,759          7,103,391          11,874,515         

Total current liabilities 181,109,950      168,764,360      145,756,947      142,814,727      160,191,043       

Compensated absences 2,655,259          2,574,378          2,556,910          2,589,529          2,651,670           
Net OPEB obligation -                     -                     -                     316,763             463,279              
Bonds due in more than one year 423,103,705      558,206,124      526,220,376      489,943,879      487,317,071       
Long-term portion of claims payable 11,768,201        13,267,490        17,143,054        14,035,702        13,896,455         

Total noncurrent liabilities 437,527,165 574,047,992 545,920,340 506,885,873 504,328,475
Total Liabilities $618,637,115 $742,812,352 $691,677,287 $649,700,600 $664,519,518

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $771,089,412 $771,649,963 $714,974,011 $772,496,497 $777,651,594
Restricted:
Restricted for Debt Service 52,654,208        55,519,009        64,869,572        67,283,741        74,991,507         
Restricted for Capital Projects 58,953,007        91,722,842        115,388,689      148,446,159      164,507,956       
Other purposes -                     3,855,134          3,038,888          4,803,662          30,340,293         
Unrestricted 57,843,889 61,817,240 70,294,258 93,963,111 61,587,576

Total Net Assets $940,540,516 $984,564,188 $968,565,418 $1,086,993,170 $1,112,494,889

Total Liablilies and Net Assets $1,559,177,631 $1,727,376,540 $1,660,242,705 $1,736,693,770 $1,777,014,407

Source:  The figures above have been extracted from the District's audited financial statements.  Such figures are excerpts only and do not purport to be 
complete.  A portion of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 is attached as Appendix B.

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Net Assets

Statement of Net Position (Governmental Activities + Component Units)

Capital Assets:

Assets
Current Assets:

Noncurrent Assets:
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Statement of Activities  
Below is a five-year history of the Statement of Activities for the District including charter schools.  The complete 
independent audit report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and the last four fiscal years can be downloaded from 
the District’s website using the following link:  http://www.aps.edu/departments/accounting.  

FYE 6/30/10 FYE 6/30/11 FYE 6/30/12 FYE 6/30/13 FYE 6/30/14
Total Total Total Total Total

Instruction (363,621,910) (350,108,224) (348,011,658) (350,160,459) (353,795,945)
Student support services (66,462,507) (49,772,359) (58,142,865) (61,972,833) (63,381,407)
Instruction support services (24,938,581) (20,082,506) (19,405,295) (20,699,390) (21,117,189)
General administration (6,731,422) (6,955,227) (4,989,105) (5,225,441) (5,162,278)
School administration (24,106,428) (25,933,543) (21,609,504) (10,584,548) (19,477,963)
Other support services -                    (822,112)               (1,382,419)            (724,660)               (35,657)                 
Pupil transportation services (675,637) (669,784) 245,478 469,295 281,119
Operation and maintenance of plant (73,180,201)      (69,825,012)          (59,583,864)          (59,903,766)          (64,352,488)          
Community services (3,657) (4,919) (4,870) (3,766) (10,392)
Central services (73,409,482)      (76,264,911)          (79,846,430)          (66,636,396)          (82,144,477)          
Food services 2,209,957         293,726                3,892,324             4,171,728             4,945,126             
Facilities supplies, materials & other services (5,426,192) (67,865,027) (38,934,788) (52,737,152) (42,324,626)
Depreciation - unallocated (36,781,683) (42,648,192) (66,993,533) (65,518,044) (69,582,812)
Interest on long-term obligations (19,408,034) (20,455,297) (19,023,580) (20,175,749) (18,163,588)
Component Unit Governmental Activities (61,824,073)      (55,351,298)          (85,323,238)          (41,949,172)          (43,909,807)          

   Total governmental activities (754,359,850)    (786,464,685)        (799,113,347)        (751,650,353)        (778,232,384)        

General Revenues
Taxes:
   Property taxes, levied for general purposes 4,545,782         4,595,209             4,761,575             4,804,381             5,042,088             
   Property taxes, levied for debt service 63,598,426       60,826,278           63,567,100           62,214,506           64,235,532           
   Property taxes, levied for capital projects 88,276,942       89,969,890           81,728,169           85,078,065           81,830,904           
Federal & state aid not restricted to specific purpose 668,904,659     672,156,760         622,612,070         713,818,280         652,633,698         
   Other -                    -                        (2,303,213)            -                        -                        
Interest and investment earnings 1,549,604         1,274,923             354,529                802,574                659,628                
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 767,429            12,352                  18,847                  179,810                16,223                  
Transfer -                    -                        -                        (4,846)                   -                        
Miscellaneous 7,100,048         4,397,648             2,760,267             1,265,166             4,241,596             

Total general revenues 834,742,890 833,233,060 773,499,344 868,157,936 808,659,669

Change in net assets 80,383,040 46,768,375 (31,614,338) 116,507,583 30,427,285

Net assets - beginning 860,157,476 940,540,516 940,540,516 968,565,418 1,080,419,566
Prior period adjustment -                    (2,744,703)            15,615,568           1,920,169             (1,767,925)            

Net assets - beginning as adjusted 860,157,476 937,795,813 956,156,084 970,485,587 1,078,651,641

Net assets - ending 940,540,516$   984,564,188$       924,541,746$       1,086,993,170$    1,109,078,926$    

Source:  The figures above have been extracted from the District's audited financial statements.  Such figures are excerpts only and do not purport to 
be complete.  A portion of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 is attached as Appendix B.

Statement of Activities (Primary Government + Component Units)
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Balance Sheet – General Fund  
Below is a five-year history of the Balance Sheet for the General Fund for the District.  The General Fund in FY2010 is 
comprised of Operational, Pupil Transportation and Instructional Material.  In FY2011, the District began including the 
funds for Pupil Transportation and Instructional Materials as Special Revenue Funds as part of the District’s adoption of 
GASB-54.  The two funds meet the GASB-54 definition of Special Revenue Funds defined as “Special Revenue Funds 
are used to account for and report proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure 
for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.”  The complete independent audit report for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2014 and the last four fiscal years can be downloaded from the District’s website using the following 
link:  http://www.aps.edu/departments/accounting.  

Year Ending June 30 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Assets:
Cash and equivalents $71,207,613 $79,052,392 $60,793,116 $60,609,940 $70,377,199
Receivables:
  Property taxes 679,465            615,860            631,429            536,067            619,943            
  Other receivable 347,496            635,364            20,775,528       26,491,708       37,330,027       
  Due from other funds 24,750,186       18,390,753       702,364            471,083            2,289,052         
Other 676,826            350,000            50,000              50,000              50,000              
Supplies inventory 5,234,132         2,470,561         1,723,565         1,889,539         1,816,418         
  Total Assets $102,895,718 $101,514,930 $84,676,002 $90,048,337 $112,482,639

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $4,814,701 $2,558,218 $2,424,617 $3,750,081 $2,859,719
Accrued expenses 74,033,676       70,910,593       52,631,539       50,886,621       65,996,716       
Deferred revenue 633,830            564,905            572,210            476,315            -                       
Due to other funds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Other accrued liabilities 15,008              31,909              18,180              118,757            567,413            
  Total Liabilities $79,497,215 $74,065,625 $55,646,546 $55,231,774 $69,423,848

Fund Balances:
Reserve for:
  Inventories 5,234,132         2,470,561         1,723,565         1,889,540         1,816,418         
  Claims 409,900            350,000            50,000              50,000              50,000              
  General fund 2,393,211         4,628,744         255,891            3,877,023         192,373            
Unreserved:
   Undesignated 15,361,260       20,000,000       27,000,000       29,000,000       41,000,000       
  Total Fund Equity $23,398,503 $27,449,305 $29,029,456 $34,816,563 $43,058,791

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $102,895,718 $101,514,930 $84,676,002 $90,048,337 $112,482,639

(1)  General Fund is comprised of Operational, Transportation & Instructional Materials.  Beginning in FY 2011, Transportation & Instructional Materials 

      are included in Special Revenue Funds.

Source:  The figures above have been extracted from the District's audited financial statements.  Such figures are excerpts only and do
not purport to be complete.  A portion of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 is attached as Appendix B.

Balance Sheet - General Fund (1)
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Statement of Revenues & Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balances – General Fund  
Below is a five-year history of the Statement of Revenues & Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balances (General Fund 
only) for the District.  General Fund in FY 2007 through FY2010 is comprised of Operational, Pupil Transportation and 
Instructional Material.  In FY2011, the District began including the funds for Pupil Transportation and Instructional 
Materials as Special Revenue Funds as part of the District’s adoption of GASB-54.  The two funds meet the GASB-54 
definition of Special Revenue Funds defined as “Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report proceeds of 
specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or 
capital projects.”   
The complete independent audit report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and the last four fiscal years can be 
downloaded from the District’s website using the following link:  http://www.aps.edu/departments/accounting.  
 

Year Ending June 30 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Revenues:
Local Sources $4,632,164 $4,714,482 $4,754,270 $4,980,476 $5,115,173
State Sources 580,186,108      579,758,063      584,279,244      596,022,953      613,416,010      
Federal Sources 2,527,985          2,530,382          1,829,372          2,673,973          2,171,665          
Miscellaneous 13,400,576        6,710,560          5,217,555          3,671,922          7,932,928          

Total Revenues $600,746,833 $593,713,487 $596,080,441 $607,349,324 $628,635,776

Expenditures:
Instruction $398,387,845 $397,985,664 $389,733,113 $394,982,575 $407,451,738
Student support services 33,360,969        36,505,674        59,323,655        53,948,630        59,627,790        
Instruction support services 25,864,120        21,479,080        19,785,822        20,821,769        21,003,685        
General administration 4,080,903          4,763,706          3,883,144          4,347,378          4,395,687          
School administration 34,559,847        32,039,272        31,321,403        32,111,399        33,938,325        
Transportation 18,992,363        132,294             225,396             226,808             261,480             
Operation & maintenance of plant 77,143,782        74,187,913        71,607,316        76,968,864        75,202,823        
Central services 19,463,151        18,843,701        16,745,973        16,678,830        17,693,149        
Food service operations 817,569             455,371             405,169             656,538             689,798             
Community services 3,657                 4,919                 4,870                 3,766                 2,392                 
Other support services -                     822,112             1,382,419          724,660             35,657               
Capital outlay 120,336             95,474               80,954               91,055               91,024               
Total Expenditures $612,794,542 $587,315,180 $594,499,234 $601,562,272 $620,393,548

Excess Revenues over Expenditures ($12,047,709) $6,398,307 $1,581,207 $5,787,052 $8,242,228

Inter-fund transfers
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 35,386,146        21,005,292        27,449,303        29,029,456        34,816,563        
Transfers/Adjustments 60,066               45,706               (1,054)                55                      55                      
Fund Balance - Year End $23,398,503 $27,449,305 $29,029,456 $34,816,563 $43,058,846

General Fund Balance as % of Revenues 3.89% 4.62% 4.87% 5.73% 6.85%

(1)  General Fund is comprised of Operational, Transportation & Instructional Materials.  Beginning in FY 2011, Transportation & Instructional Materials 

      are included in Special Revenue Funds.

Source:  The figures above have been extracted from the District's audited financial statements.  Such figures are excerpts only and do
not purport to be complete.  A portion of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 is attached as Appendix B.

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - General Fund (1)
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Below is a condensed Statement of Revenues and Expenditures which included the unaudited number for FY2015. 
 

Year Ending June 30 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 (2)

Total Revenues $593,713,487 $596,080,441 $607,349,324 $628,635,776 $650,175,121

Total Expenditures $587,315,180 $594,499,234 $601,562,272 $620,393,548 $641,835,546

Excess Revenues over Expenditures $6,398,307 $1,581,207 $5,787,052 $8,242,228 $8,339,575

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 21,005,292        27,449,303        29,029,456        34,816,563        41,499,239        

Fund Balance - Year End $27,449,305 $29,029,456 $34,816,563 $43,058,846 $49,838,814

General Fund Balance as % of Revenues 4.62% 4.87% 5.73% 6.85% 7.67%

(1)  General Fund is comprised of Operational, Transportation & Instructional Materials.  Beginning in FY 2011, Transportation & Instructional Materials 

      are included in Special Revenue Funds.

(2)  Unaudited.

     
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - General Fund (1)

 
Debt Service Funds 
The Bernalillo and Sandoval County treasurers levy and collect debt service funds sufficient to retire bonded debt as it 
becomes due and payable.  Such funds are distributed to the District and accounted for separately from operating funds.  
The District is allowed to borrow all District funds if the collections are insufficient but such borrowings must be repaid 
from tax collections.  Debt service funds may not be used for general operating purposes. 
 
Capital Projects Funds 
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of 
major capital facilities.  Property sales are recorded when the parties are bound by the terms of the contract, all 
consideration (including adequate cash) has been exchanged and all conditions precedent to closing have been 
performed.  Until a sale has been recorded, revenues are deferred and payments received are reflected as escrow 
deposits.   
Under the requirements of GASB 54, the District is required to present certain of its governmental funds as major funds 
based upon certain criteria.  The major funds presented in the fund financial statements include the following (in addition 
to the General Fund), which include funds that were not required to be presented as major, but were presented at the 
discretion of management. 

1. Debt Service Fund – This fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by 
proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds. 

2. Bond Building Capital Projects Fund – This fund is used to account for bond proceeds and any income 
earned thereon.  The proceeds are restricted for the purpose of making additions to and furnishing of school 
buildings, or purchasing or improving school grounds or any combination thereof, as approved by the voters 
of the District. 

3. Special Revenue Funds – This fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.   

4. Capital Projects Funds – This fund accounts for the acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major 
capital projects not being financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds.   

5. Pupil Transportation Fund – This fund is used to account for the SEG payment, received from PED, which is 
used to pay for the costs associated with transporting school age children. 

6. Instructional Materials Fund – This fund is used to account for the monies received from PED for the 
purposes of purchasing instructional materials used in the education of students. 
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7. Food Service Fund – This fund is to account for the cost of operating a student breakfast, lunch, snack bar 
and summer lunch program and is financed with federal grants and fees paid by program users. 

8. IASA Title I Fund – This fund is to provide compensatory education services to educationally deprived 
school children (including private school pupils) in low-income areas.  (P.L. 103-382) 

9. IDEA-B Entitlement Fund – This fund is used to account for federal resources administered by the PED to 
provide for special educational needs of handicap 6-21 year olds.  (PL 94-142 & PL 99-457) 

10. Capital Improvements HB33 Fund – This fund is to account for the costs relating to erecting, remodeling, 
making additions to, providing equipment for, or furnishing public school buildings and purchasing or 
improving public school grounds.  Financing is provided through property taxes as authorized by the Public 
School Buildings Act (22-26-1 to 22-26-9, NMSA 1978). 

11. Capital Improvements SB9 Fund – This fund is to account for erecting, remodeling, making additions to, 
providing equipment for, or furnishing public school buildings and purchasing or improving public school 
grounds or any combination thereof as identified by the local school board.  Pursuant to the formula set forth 
in NMSA 1978 Section 22-25-9, the PED may pay additional sums to the District.  Payment to the District by 
the PED is subject to the availability of funds. 

 
Fiduciary Funds 
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the District as an agent for individuals, private organizations or 
other governments.  Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets = liabilities) and do not present results of operations or 
have a measurement focus.  These funds relate primarily to the activities of individual schools.  While these funds are 
under the supervision of the District and enhance the District’s educational programs, they are funds of the individual 
schools and/or their student bodies and are not available for use by the District. 

Employees and Retirement Plan 
The District employs 12,451 permanent employees of which 6,617 (53.1%) are certified educational staff 
(teachers/counselors) and 1,581 (12.7%) are classroom educational assistants for a total of 8,198 (65.8%) certified direct 
classroom employees. 
ERB Pension Plan: 
Plan Description:  Substantially all of the District’s full-time employees participate in a public employee retirement system 
authorized under the Educational Retirement Act (Chapter 22, Article 11, NMSA 1978).  The Educational Retirement 
Board (“ERB”) is the administrator of the plan, which is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan.  
The plan provides for retirement benefits, disability benefits, survivor benefits and cost-of-living adjustments to plan 
members (certified teachers and other employees of State public school districts, colleges and universities) and 
beneficiaries.  ERB issues a separate, publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the plan.  The report may be obtained by writing to ERB, P.O. Box 26129, Santa Fe, New 
Mexico  87502.  The report is also available on ERB’s website at www.nmerb.org.  
Member Contributions: 
Plan members earning $20,000 or less annually are required by statute to contribute 7.9% of their gross salary. Plan 
members earning over $20,000 annually are required to make the following contributions to the plan: 10.1% of their gross 
salary in fiscal year 2014; and 10.7% of their gross salary in fiscal year 2015 and thereafter.  
Employer Contributions: 
In fiscal year 2014, the District was required to contribute 13.15% of the gross covered salary for all eligible employees.  
Starting in fiscal year 2015, the District will contribute 13.9% for all eligible employees.  The contribution requirements of 
plan members and the District are established in State statute under Chapter 22, Article 11, NMSA 1978. The 
requirements may be amended by acts of the legislature.  The District’s contributions to ERB for the fiscal years ending 
June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012, were $58,670,818, $52,217,878, and $45,658,413, respectively, which equal the amount 
of the required contributions for each fiscal year. 
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Net Pension Liability - NMERB’s net pension liability for fiscal year 2014 is $5,705.1 billion. This represents a $571.1 
million, or 9.1%, decrease from the fiscal year 2013 $6,276.8 billion balance. The 2014 net pension liability stated as a 
percentage of covered payroll is 209.92%. The decrease in net pension liability is primarily due to investment gains. The 
Net Pension liability as estimated by the district and is expected to be $970 million based on 17.00702% of employer 
estimated contributions statewide for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Fiscal Year 06/30/2012 06/30/2013 06/30/2014 06/30/2014 
GASB 68

UAAL $6.2B $6.5B $6.3B $5.7B
Funded Ratio 60.7% 60.1% 63.1% 66.9%
Funding Period Infinite 95.1 years 42.1 years Not applicable

*New Mexico School Boards Association, February 2015

ERB Actuarials At A Glance*

 

On June 25, 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board approved Statement No. 68 which addresses 
accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are provided to employees of state and local government employers 
through pension plans that are administered through trusts and also establishes standards for measuring and recognizing 
liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses.  According to Statement No. 68, 
the School District, as a contributor to ERB, is required to recognize its proportionate share of the collective net pension 
liability, pension expense, and deferred inflows or outflows of resources of the cost-sharing, multi-employer plan with 
ERB.  The School District is assessing the full extent of the effect of the new standards on the School District’s audited 
financial statements.  Statement No. 68 is effective beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 for the School 
District.   

In July 2012, the ERB adopted goals of achieving 95%, plus or minus 5% funded ratio by the year 2042.  To achieve this 
goal, the New Mexico Legislature amended the Educational Retirement Act in the 2013 legislative session (Senate Bill 
115; Chapter 61, Laws 2013).  The amendments increased employee contributions for members whose salary exceeds 
$20,000 per year to 10.1% in Fiscal Year 2014 and 10.7% in Fiscal Year 2015 (ERB members who make less than 
$20,000 contribute 7.9% of their gross salary).  The legislation also kept in place scheduled increases in employer 
contribution rates, created a new tier membership for persons who become members of the ERB Fund on or after July 1, 
2013, created certain actuarial limitations on benefits of new tier members, placed limitations on future cost of living 
adjustments (“COLA”) for current and future retirees which are tied to the future funded ratios of the Fund, and made 
certain other clarifying and technical changes.   
In December 2013, the New Mexico Supreme Court, Barlett v. Cameron, 316 P.3d 889 (N.M. 2013), rejected the claims 
of certain retired teachers, professors and other public education employees challenging the state constitutionality of 
Senate Bill 115 to the extent that it reduces the future amounts that all education retirees might receive as annual COLA.  
The Court held that Article XX, Section 22 of the New Mexico Constitution did not grant the retirees a right to an annual 
COLA based on the formula in effect on the date of their retirement for the entirety of their retirement.  The Court held that 
in the absence of any contrary indication from the New Mexico Legislature, any future COLA to a retirement benefit is 
merely a year-to-year expectation that, until paid, does not create a property right under the New Mexico Constitution.  
Once paid, the COLA, by statute, becomes part of the retirement benefit, and a property right subject to those 
constitutional protections.   
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Pension Plan Statistics 
Following is a 5-year history of employer and employee contributions statewide, and average asset balance of the fund: 
 

Fiscal Year Employer Employee Average Asset
Ending June 30 Contributions Contributions Balance ($000s)

2014 $362,462,537 $268,693,991 $11,442,171,449
2013 299,657,530 248,785,187 10,358,058,861
2012 253,845,277 289,852,094 9,606,304,017
2011 308,367,952 247,407,988 9,642,229,673
2010 313,276,296 250,666,650 9,431,321,589

Source: New Mexico Educational Retirement Board.  
Post Employment Benefits 
The RHCA issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the post-employment healthcare plan. That report and further information can be obtained 
by writing to the Retiree Health Care Authority at 4308 Carlisle NE, Suite 104, Albuquerque, NM 87107. 
Funding Policy:  The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-13 NMSA 1978) authorizes the RHCA Board to establish 
the monthly premium contributions that retirees are required to pay for healthcare benefits. Each participating retiree pays 
a monthly premium according to a service based subsidy rate schedule for the medical plus basic life plan plus an 
additional participation fee of five dollars if the eligible participant retired prior to the employer’s RHCA effective date or is 
a former legislator or former governing authority member. Former legislators and governing authority members are 
required to pay 100% of the insurance premium to cover their claims and the administrative expenses of the plan. The 
monthly premium rate schedule can be obtained from the RHCA or viewed on their website at www.nmrhca.state.nm.us. 
The employer, employee and retiree contributions are required to be remitted to the RHCA on a monthly basis. The 
statutory requirements for the employer and employee contributions can be changed by the New Mexico State 
Legislature. Employers that choose to become participating employers after January 1, 1998 are required to make 
contributions to the RHCA fund in the amount determined to be appropriate by the board. 
The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-15 NMSA 1978) is the statutory authority that establishes the required 
contributions of participating employers and their employees. For employees that were members of an enhanced 
retirement plan (state police and adult correctional officer member coverage plan 1; municipal police member coverage 
plan 3, 4 or 5; municipal fire member coverage plan 3, 4 or 5; municipal detention officer member coverage plan 1; and 
members pursuant to the Judicial Retirement Act) during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the statute required each 
participating employer to contribute 2.5% of each participating employee’s annual salary; and each participating employee 
was required to contribute 1.25% of their salary. For employees that were not members of an enhanced retirement plan 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the statute required each participating employer to contribute 2.0% of each 
participating employee’s annual salary; each participating employee was required to contribute 1.0% of their salary. In 
addition, pursuant to Section 10-7C-15(G) NMSA 1978, at the first session of the Legislature following July 1, 2013, the 
legislature shall review and adjust the distributions pursuant to Section 7-1-6.1 NMSA 1978 and the employer and 
employee contributions to the authority in order to ensure the actuarial soundness of the benefits provided under the 
Retiree Health Care Act. 
The District’s contributions to the RHCA for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $9,125,695, 
$9,553,387, and $8,426,387, respectively, which equal the required contributions for each year. 
The District believes it does not have any liability should the plan be underfunded.  In the future, the District’s on-going 
contribution percentage may be increased. 
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TAX MATTERS 
In the opinion of Modrall, Sperling, Roehl, Harris & Sisk, P.A., Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming continuous 
compliance with certain covenants made by the District, the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes under Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and 
is not treated as an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for purposes of the alternative minimum tax 
imposed on individuals and corporations.  Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the 
Bonds is excluded from net income for purposes of the tax imposed on individuals, estates and trusts under the New 
Mexico Income Tax Act or for purposes of the tax imposed on corporations under the New Mexico Corporate Income and 
Franchise Tax Act.  Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding other federal or New Mexico income tax 
consequences resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on the Bonds.  A form of Bond Counsel Opinion is attached 
to this document as Appendix D. 
The opinion on federal tax matters will be based on and will assume continuous compliance with certain covenants of the 
District to be contained in the transcript of proceedings and that are intended to evidence and assure that the Bonds are 
and will remain obligations the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Bond 
Counsel has not and will not independently verify the accuracy of any of the certifications and representations made by 
the District. 
The Code prescribes a number of qualifications that must be met and conditions that must be satisfied in order for the 
interest on state and local government obligations such as the Bonds to be and remain excluded from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes.  Some of these provisions, including provisions for the rebate by the issuer of certain 
investment earnings to the federal government, require future or continued compliance after issuance of the obligations in 
order for the interest to be and continue to be so excluded from the date of issuance.  Noncompliance with these 
requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes and 
thus to be subject to regular federal income taxes.  The District covenants in the Bonds Resolution to take all actions that 
may be required of it in order for the interest on the Bonds to be and remain excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, and not to take any actions that would adversely affect that exclusion. 
Under the Code, the exclusion of interest from gross income for federal income tax purposes can result in certain adverse 
federal income tax consequences on items of income or deductions for certain taxpayers, including among them financial 
institutions, insurance companies, recipients of Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits, and those that are 
deemed to incur or continue indebtedness to acquire or carry tax exempt obligations.  The applicability and extent of 
those or other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status or other items of income and expense of the 
owners of the Bonds.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding such consequences. 
Internal Revenue Service Audit Program 
The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program auditing tax-exempt obligations to determine 
whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includible in the gross income of the owners 
thereof for federal income tax purposes.  No assurances can be given as to whether the Service will commence an audit 
of the Bonds.  If an audit is commenced, under current procedures the Service will treat the District as the taxpayer and 
the Bond owners may have no right to participate in such procedure.  None of the District, the Financial Advisor, 
Underwriters, Underwriters’ Counsel or Bond Counsel is obligated to defend the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.  
However, the District has covenanted in the Bond Resolution not to take any action that would cause the interest on the 
Bonds to lose its exclusion from gross income, except to the extent described above, for the owners thereof for federal 
income tax purposes.  None of the District, the Financial Advisor, Underwriters or Bond Counsel is responsible to pay or 
reimburse the costs of any Bond owner with respect to any audit or litigation relating to the Bonds.  
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ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNT 
The Bonds may be offered at a discount (“original issue discount”) equal generally to the difference between public 
offering price and principal amount.  For federal income tax purposes, original issue discount on a Bond accrues 
periodically over the term of the Bond as interest with the same tax exemption and alternative minimum tax status as 
regular interest.  The accrual of original issue discount increases the holders’ tax basis in the Bond for determining 
taxable gain or loss from sale or from redemption prior to maturity.  Holders of Bonds offered at original issue discount 
should consult their tax advisor for an explanation of the accrual rules. 

ORIGINAL ISSUE PREMIUM 
The Bonds may be offered at a premium (“original issue premium”) over their principal amount.  For federal income tax 
purposes, original issue premium is amortizable periodically over the term of a Bond through reductions in the holders’ tax 
basis in the Bond for determining taxable gain or loss from sale or from redemption prior to maturity.  Amortizable 
premium is accounted for as reducing the tax-exempt interest on the Bond rather than creating a deductible expense or 
loss.  Holders of Bonds offered at an original issue premium should consult their tax advisor for an explanation of the 
amortization rules. 

LITIGATION 
There is no litigation pending about the validity of the Bonds or the use of Bond proceeds, the corporate existence of the 
District or the titles of its officers or contesting or affecting the District’s ability to receive taxes that could be used for Bond 
payments. 
At the time of the original delivery of the Bonds, the District will deliver a no-litigation certificate to the effect that no 
litigation or administrative action or proceeding is pending or, to the knowledge of the appropriate officials, threatened, 
restraining or enjoining, or seeking to restrain or enjoin, the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, the effectiveness of the 
Bond Resolution, the levying or collection of taxes to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds or contesting or 
questioning the proceedings and authority under which the Bonds have been authorized and are to be issued, sold, 
executed or delivered, or the validity of the Bonds. 
Recently two lawsuits were filed challenging the funding of the State’s primary and secondary education system.  In 
March 2014, individual plaintiffs in New Mexico District Court in McKinley County brought suit against the State, among 
others, alleging, among other things, that the State’s educational funding formula violates the sufficiency of education and 
uniform system of public schools provision of the New Mexico Constitution and asks the court for injunctive relief ordering 
the State to develop a budget and funding formula that sufficiently, uniformly and equitably funds the public school 
system.  In April 2014, individual plaintiffs in New Mexico District Court in Santa Fe County brought suit against the State, 
among others, alleging, among other things, that the State has failed to provide a sufficient and uniform system of 
education in violation of the sufficiency, uniformity, equal protection and due process provisions of the New Mexico 
Constitution because of an inadequate and arbitrary funding system.  The lawsuits ask for a declaratory judgment and 
injunctive relief requiring the adoption of a school finance system to remedy these violations.  Neither lawsuit asks for a 
specific award of damages.  Because these suits have been only recently filed, and because the allegations of violations 
have not been litigated or proven, the State believes it is premature to assess what effect, if any, these lawsuits might 
have on State budget matters. 
Recent Events 
On August 31, 2015 Superintendent Luis Valentino submitted his resignation as Superintendent of the Albuquerque 
Public Schools effective September 30, 2015.  In connection with the resignation, the Board of Education has agreed to 
pay $80,000 in severance pay, which is subject to approval by a Bernalillo County New Mexico District Court Judge and 
the Secretary of the Public Education Department.  Action by the District Court and the Secretary of the Public Education 
Department is expected prior to September 30, 2015. 
On September 1, 2015 a citizen filed a petition to recall Board member Peggy Muller-Aragon who represents District 2.  In 
accordance with NMSA 1978 §22-7-1 et seq. on September 4, 2015 the Bernalillo County Clerk  filed an application with 
the Bernalillo County District Court requesting a hearing to determine whether sufficient facts exist to allow the petitioner 
to continue the recall process.  The Court will hold a hearing within 10 days of receipt of the County Clerk’s application.  
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The petitioner must demonstrate, and the Court must find, that sufficient facts exist to support the claims that the Board 
member committed malfeasance, misfeasance or breach of oath in the performance of her duties.  The recall petition 
apparently stems from Board member Aragon’s vote to accept the Superintendent’s resignation and providing for 
payment of severance pay to Superintendent Valentino. 
On August 24, 2015, the Chief Financial Officer of the District filed a complaint in the Santa Fe District Court in Moya v. 
Board of Education of the Albuquerque Public Schools, Luis Valentino and Hanna Skandera, Secretary of the Public 
Education Department, Cause Number D 101 CV 2015-01940 Santa Fe County District Court for violations of the New 
Mexico Whistleblower Protection Act and for Civil Conspiracy.  Because this action has only recently been filed, it is 
premature to make an assessment of the outcome.  However, the Defendants intend to vigorously defend against the 
allegations.  Should Plaintiff, Moya, eventually be successful in proving the allegations in the complaint the financial 
impact on the District will not be material. 

RATINGS 
Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s Rating Services have given the Bonds underlying ratings of Aa1 
(negative outlook) and AA (stable outlook), respectively.  In addition, Moody’s Investors Service has assigned a “Aa1 
Enhanced” rating to the Bonds based on the New Mexico School District Enhancement Program.  These ratings reflect 
only the views of such rating agencies, and an explanation of the significance of the ratings may be obtained only from 
each rating agency.  There is no assurance that the ratings will continue for any given period of time or that the ratings will 
not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency, if, in its judgment, circumstances so warrant.  Any 
such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an effect on the market price of the Bonds. 

THE FINANCIAL ADVISOR 
RBC Capital Markets, LLC (“RBC CM”) is employed as Financial Advisor to District in connection with the issuance of the 
Bonds. The Financial Advisor’s fee for services rendered with respect to the sale of the Bonds is contingent upon the 
issuance and delivery of the Bonds. The Financial Advisor is not obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken to make, 
an independent verification of to assume responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information in 
this Official Statement. 
RBC CM made a voluntary contribution to the committee that was formed to support the election that authorized the 
issuance of the Bonds.  

LEGAL MATTERS 
The opinion of Modrall, Sperling, Roehl, Harris & Sisk, P.A., Albuquerque, New Mexico, Bond Counsel, approving the 
legality of the Bonds and relating to the tax-exempt status of the Bonds will be furnished upon issuance of the Bonds.  
The form of opinion of Bond Counsel is attached hereto as Appendix D. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 
For the benefit of bondholders and to enable a broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer to comply with requirements 
of Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”) of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the District has undertaken to provide to the 
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ( the “MSRB”) MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”), its audited 
financial statements and certain financial and operating information.  The District will provide financial information and 
operating data with respect to the District of the general type included in this Official Statement under the headings “DEBT 
AND OTHER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS,” “TAX BASE,” “THE DISTRICT – Student Enrollment,” “FINANCES OF THE 
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM-State Equalization Program,” “Statement of Net Assets, Statement of Activities, Balance 
Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balances.”  The District will update and provide this 
information no later than March 31 of each year, commencing March 31, 2016, for the fiscal year ending on the preceding 
June 30.  A draft of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking is attached hereto as Appendix E. 
Any or all of such information may be incorporated by reference from other documents, as permitted by the Rule.  The 
annual information will include audited financial statements, if the District commissions an audit and it is completed by the 
required time.  If audited financial statements are not available by the required time, unaudited financial statements must 
be provided as part of the annual financial information, and audited financial statements when and if audited financial 
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statements become available.  Any such financial statements will be prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and state law requirements, as in effect from time to time.  (See Note 1 of the District’s audited 
financial statements included as Appendix B for a description of the accounting principles currently followed in the 
preparation of the District’s audited annual financial statements.) 
If the District changes its fiscal year, it may change the date by which it must provide its annual financial information to a 
date no later than six months after the end of its new fiscal year.  In addition, the District shall provide to EMMA timely 
notice of any failure to provide required annual financial information on or before the filing date. 
Event Notices 
The District shall notify the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of 
ten business days after the occurrence of the event, of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds: 1)  principal 
and interest payment delinquency; 2)  non-payment related default, if material; 3)  unscheduled draw on debt service 
reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 4)  unscheduled draw on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 5)  
substitution of credit or liquidity provider, or their failure to perform; 6)  adverse tax opinion, the issuance by the Internal 
Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or 
other material notice or determination with respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events affecting the 
tax status of the security; 7)  modification to rights of security holders, if material; 8)  bond calls; 9)  defeasances; 10)  
release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the security, if material; 11)  rating change; 12) failure to 
provide event filing information as required; 13) tender offer/secondary market purchases; 14) merger, consolidation or 
acquisition and sale of all or substantially all assets; 15)  bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event with respect 
to the District or an obligated person; and 16)  appointment of a successor or additional trustee, or the change of name of 
a trustee, if material. 
In addition, the District will provide timely notice of any failure by the District to provide information, data, or financial 
statements in accordance with its agreement described in Appendix E.  
 
Limitations and Amendments 
The District may amend its undertaking from time to time without consent of the Bondholders, if the District delivers to 
EMMA an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that such amendment, and giving effect thereto, will 
not adversely affect compliance of the undertaking and the District with the Rule (except that no opinion of counsel shall 
be required with respect to a change in the date by which the annual financial and operating information must be reported 
resulting from a change in the District’s fiscal year).  The undertaking will terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior 
redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds.  In addition, the undertaking, or any provision thereof, will be null and 
void in the event the District delivers to EMMA an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that those 
portions of the Rule that require the undertaking, or any such provision, are invalid, have been repealed retroactively or 
otherwise do not apply to the Bonds. 
Any failure of the District to provide the annual financial information or any material event notice does not constitute an 
Event of Default with respect to the Bonds, and an action seeking to compel performance of the undertaking shall be the 
sole remedy in the event the District fails to comply with the undertaking. 
For the past five years, the District has complied in all material respects with its existing continuing disclosure 
agreements in accordance with SEC Rule 15c2-12.  The SEC amended Rule 15c2-12 effective August 10, 2010 by 
adding additional circumstances in which material event notices are required to be made by issuers.  After 
August 10, 2010, the District continued its practice of not filing event filings related to certain bond insurance 
downgrades due to the fact that such bond insurance downgrades were widely known in the market, and not 
believed to be material.  The District no longer has bonds outstanding that are insured.  The District has 
implemented procedures to assure compliance with its continuing disclosure undertakings.   

DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
The final certificates included in the transcript of legal proceedings will include the following: At closing the Superintendent 
of Schools and the Chief Financial Officer will sign a certificate stating, after reasonable investigation, that to the best of 
their knowledge (a) no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, public 
board, or body, is pending, or, to the best of their knowledge, threatened in any way contesting the completeness or 
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accuracy of the Final Official Statement, (b) the Final Official Statement, as it pertains to the District, the Bonds, does not 
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements made 
therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, and (c) no event affecting the 
District has occurred since the date of the Final Official Statement, which should be disclosed therein for the purpose for 
which it is to be used or which it is necessary to disclose therein in order to make the statements and information therein 
not misleading in any respect; provided, however, that the District does not make any representation concerning the 
pricing information contained in the Final Official Statement. 

ADDITIONAL MATTERS 
All summaries of the statutes, resolutions, opinions, contracts, agreements, financial and statistical data and other related 
reports described in this Official Statement are subject to the actual provisions of such documents.  The summaries do 
not purport to be complete statements of such provisions and reference is made to such documents, copies of which are 
either publicly available or available for inspection during normal business hours at the offices of the District located at the 
School Administration Office, or at the offices of RBC Capital Markets, LLC, 6301 Uptown Boulevard, NE, Suite 110, 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87110. 

A LAST WORD 
Anything in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates – whether labeled as such or not – are just 
that.  They are not representations of fact.  They might not prove true.  Neither this Official Statement nor any other 
written or oral information is to be construed as a contract with the holders of the Bonds. 
The District has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Official Statement. 
 
/s/    
President, Board of Education 
 
/s/    
Secretary, Board of Education 
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ECONOMIC & DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 

 



 
 

General 
The Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 includes 97.7% of Bernalillo County and 2.3% of Sandoval County 
based on assessed valuation.  The District is geographically situated in the center of the State of New Mexico.  The 
school district’s boundaries encompass all of the City of Albuquerque and the Villages of Tijeras, Los Ranchos de 
Albuquerque and Corrales.  The District covers 1,230 square miles and serves 88,329 students from an estimated 
population of 671,000.  The District is crossed by Interstate Highways 25 and 40 and is served by the Burlington North 
and Santa Fe Railroad and the Sunport International Airport.  The District is also bisected by the Rio Grande, which 
provides irrigation that continues to support agriculture despite increased urbanization. 
The area within the District is part of the Albuquerque Metropolitan Statistical Area (“MSA”).  The Albuquerque MSA was 
redefined in January 1993 to include the Counties of Bernalillo, Sandoval and Valencia.  The Albuquerque MSA 
represents the largest commercial and industrial center in the State of New Mexico.   
Albuquerque lies at the center of the New Mexico Technology Corridor, a concentration of high-tech private companies 
and government institutions along the Rio Grande. The city is home to a number of attendant contracting companies, 
Sandia National Laboratories and Kirtland Air Force Base. It is also home to University of New Mexico, National American 
University, Trinity Southwest University and the Central New Mexico Community College.  
Because of its accessibility and tourist facilities, the area is the gateway for tourism in New Mexico as well as an attraction 
in its own right.  The District includes the historic “Old Town” of Albuquerque, the Sandia Peak ski area, the Sandia 
Tramway, a number of nationally recognized museums and the Cibola National Forest.  Other attractions include the 
Albuquerque International Balloon Fiesta, the National Hispanic Cultural Center, the Gathering of Nations, and the Expo 
New Mexico.  There are also several Indian pueblos within easy driving distance that draw many tourists because of their 
historical significance, cultural beauty and Indian arts. 

Population 
The following chart sets forth historical and projected population data for Albuquerque MSA and the State.  

US Census Albuquerque State of
Year MSA New Mexico
1960 323,473 951,023
1970 379,132 1,017,055
1980 492,922 1,303,143
1990 599,416 1,515,069
2000 729,649 1,821,078
2010 867,318 2,065,826
2020 N/A 2,351,724
2030 N/A 2,613,332
2040 N/A 2,827,692

Source:  Bureau of the Census and the Bureau of 
Business & Economic Research.  
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Age Distribution 
The following table sets forth a comparative age distribution profile for Albuquerque MSA, the State of New Mexico and 
the United States. 

 

Albuquerque New United
Age MSA Mexico States

0 - 17 23.8% 24.5% 23.2%
18 - 24 9.4% 9.7% 9.9%
25 - 34 14.0% 13.3% 13.3%
35 - 44 12.5% 11.8% 12.7%
45 - 54 13.1% 12.6% 13.6%

55 & Older 27.3% 28.1% 27.4%

Percent of Population 

Source:  The Nielsen Company, July 2015.  
 
Effective Buying Income 
The following table reflects the percentage of households by Effective Buying Income (“EBI”) and a five-year comparison 
of the estimated median household income as reported by The Nielsen Company.  EBI is personal income less personal 
tax and non-tax payments.  Personal income includes wages and salaries, other labor income, proprietors' income, rental 
income, dividends, personal interest income and transfer payments.  Deductions are made for federal, state and local 
taxes, non-tax payments such as fines and penalties, and personal contributions for social security insurance.  During the 
period shown in the following chart, the estimated median household income level for Albuquerque MSA compares 
favorably with the United States and has been consistently higher than the State level. 

 

Effective Buying Albuquerque New United
Income Group MSA Mexico States
Under $25,000 26.4% 28.4% 23.5%

$25,000 - $34,999 11.4% 11.6% 10.2%
$35,000 - $49,999 13.8% 14.1% 13.6%
$50,000 - $74,999 17.9% 17.1% 17.8%

$75,000 & Over 30.5% 28.8% 34.8%

2011 Est. Median Household Income $46,022 $42,030 $49,726

2012 Est. Median Household Income $45,942 $41,958 $49,581

2013 Est. Median Household Income $48,494 $43,273 $49,297

2014 Est. Median Household Income $44,391 $44,292 $51,579

2015 Est. Median Household Income $48,234 $45,633 $53,706

Source:  The Nielsen Company, July 2015.

Effective Buying Income Groups
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Gross Receipts 
The following table shows the total reported gross receipts generated (both in retail trade only and in total) in Bernalillo 
and Sandoval counties and the State of New Mexico.  For the purposes of this table, gross receipts means the total 
amount of money received from selling property in the State of New Mexico, from leasing property employed in the State 
and from performing services in the State.  Gross receipts includes, among other things, food sales and services such as 
legal and medical services. 
 

Fiscal               (000's)           (000's)               (000's)           (000's)               (000's)           (000's)
Year               Retail          Total               Retail          Total               Retail          Total

2010 $7,724,391,016 $29,663,674,500 $731,028,412 $2,723,089,727 $24,608,799,717 $94,722,576,401
2011 7,736,773,404        30,616,678,051     812,564,098          3,096,651,805      23,789,930,179      102,715,750,442        
2012 7,883,403,944        31,367,092,391     685,312,060          2,414,153.278      23,914,774.353      104,221,140.556        
2013 7,966,069,520        32,177,603,512     658,770,730          2,380,080.637      24,239,671.094      108,060,633.566        
2014 7,905,375,913        32,072,875,986     609,814,818          2,228,067,638      24,395,913,091      107,584,699,938        

Source: New Mexico Taxation & Revenue Department.

Bernalillo County Sandoval County State of New Mexico

 
 
 
Employment 
The following table, derived from information supplied by the New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions, presents 
information on employment within the Albuquerque MSA, the State and United States, for the periods indicated.  The 
annual unemployment figures indicate average rates for the entire year and does not reflect monthly or seasonal trends. 

Albuquerque MSA State of New Mexico United States
Labor Percent Labor Percent Percent

Year Force Unemployed Force Unemployed Unemployed
2015* 420,957 6.80% 932,959 6.40% 5.30%
2014 412,505 6.40% 922,097 6.00% 6.30%
2013 414,954 6.80% 936,300 6.40% 7.60%
2012 417,490 7.20% 929,362 6.50% 8.10%
2011 420,418 7.60% 929,230 6.60% 8.50%

*  As of June 2015.
Source:  New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions.  
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Non-Agricultural Wage and Salary Employment by Major Sector 
The New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions publishes reports of non-agricultural wages and salary employment 
according to the North American Industry Classification System (“NAICS”).  Detailed below is the report for Albuquerque 
MSA. 

 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015*
Albuquerque MSA
Total Employment 369.7 368.1 370.8 368.2 384.3
  Total Private 286.6 285.0 287.2 285.0 303.8
    Goods Producing 37.1 36.3 36.5 34.6 38.1
    Services Providing 332.6 331.8 334.3 333.6 346.2
    Mining, Logging & Construction 19.2 18.6 19.6 18.3 21.6
    Manufacturing 17.9 17.7 16.9 16.3 16.5
    Wholesale Trade 11.4 11.5 11.4 11.1 11.9
    Retail Trade 40.5 40.3 40.0 40.5 40.8
    Transp., Warehousing & Utilities 9.4 9.4 9.4 9.7 9.5
    Information 8.8 8.3 8.8 7.4 7.9
    Financial Activities 16.7 17.4 17.5 18.0 17.9
    Professional & Business Services 54.8 54.7 54.1 54.3 60.7
    Educational & Health Services 59.4 56.5 57.7 58.8 61.4
    Leisure & Hospitality 36.9 38.8 40.0 39.1 43.5
    Other Services 11.6 11.8 11.8 11.5 12.1
    Government 83.1 83.1 83.6 83.2 80.5

*  As if June 2015

Source:  New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions.  
 

 
 
Building Permit Valuations 
Listed below is the volume of homes sold in the Albuquerque MSA and the value of building permits for new construction. 
 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Multiple Listing - Class R1
Volume ($000's) $1,453,821 $1,362,964 $1,569,027 $1,865,764 $1,841,298
Average Selling Price $215,989 $201,176 $204,513 $210,488 $212,990

Source:  Albuquerque Board of Realtors.

Building Permits (Volume - $000's)
Single Family Volume $117,521 $128,660 $167,470 $159,261 $165,501
# of Units 749 767 929 847 $935
Multi-Family Volume $35,238 $27,462 $60,598 $82,532 $29,705
# of Units 264 266 745 778 336

Source:  University of New Mexico Bureau of Business & Economic Research.
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Major Employers  
The following are the largest employers located in the Albuquerque MSA: 

Employer Business
Kirtland AFB (Civilian) Defense
University of New Mexico Education
Albuquerque Public Schools Education
Sandia National Labs Research Development
Presbyterian Healthcare
City of Albuquerque Government
State of New Mexico Government
Kirtland AFB (Military) Air Force Material Command
UNM Hospital Healthcare
Lovelace Healthcare
Intel Corporation Semiconductor Manufacturer
Bernalillo County Government
Central NM Community College Education
Rio Rancho Public Schools Education
New Mexico Veterans Affairs Hospital Healthcare
Sandia Resort & Casino Resort & Casino
T-Mobile Customer Service Center
US Post Office Government
Public Service Company of New Mexico Utilities Provider
Los Lunas Public Schools Education
Heritage Home Healthcare Home-Based Healthcare Services
Hard Rock Casino Resort & Casino
Honeywell Defense Systems Aircraft Avionics Manufacturer
Route 66 Casino Casino
Verizon Wireless Wireless Technical Data Services
Belen Consolidated Schools Education

Source:  Albuquerque Economic Development.  
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely 
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the District as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the general fund 
and major special revenue funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the 
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of each nonmajor governmental fund, internal service fund, and fiduciary fund 
of the District as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective and the budgetary comparisons for the major 
capital project funds, debt service funds, and all nonmajor funds and each discretely presented 
component unit for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 
As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, in 2014 the entity adopted new accounting 
guidance. GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, 
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of 
resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets 
and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that 
were previously reported as assets and liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages vi-1 through vi-24 and the Schedule of 
Funding Progress on page 90 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the District's financial 
statements, the combining and individual fund financial statements, and the budgetary 
comparisons. The Schedule of Expenditures of federal awards as required by Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, introductory and statistical sections, and the· other schedules required by 
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2.2.2.NMAC are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and other schedules required by 2.2.2 NMAC 
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures and other schedules required by 2.2.2 
NMAC are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 13, 2014 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

~~LL? 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
November 13, 2014 
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Financial Section 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The following management's discussion and analysis provides an overview of the Albuquerque 
Public School's (District) financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. The document 
is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an 
overview of the School District's financial activity, (c) identify changes in the School District's 
financial position, (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (approved budget), 
and (e) identify financial issues or concerns. Please read it in conjunction with the School Dish·ict's 
financial statements, which begin following this analysis. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis is a required part of the School District's and the 
discretely presented component unit's financial reporting and is an objective and easily readable 
discussion of the School District's financial activities. The reader will see two statements, a 
Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities. These statements provide the overall 
view of the financial activities of the School District. This discussion and analysis will provide a 
review of the School District's overall financial activities, using the full accrual basis of 
accounting, for the year ending June 30, 2014. Fund financial statements are reported on a 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Rather than looking at specific areas of performance, this 
discussion and analysis focuses on the financial performance of the School District as a whole. 
Whenever possible this discussion and analysis will provide the reader multi-year pichtres of 
financial performance and other pertinent information through the use of tables and other 
graphic information. 

This annual report consists of a series of detailed, audited financial statements, supplementary 
information and the notes to those statements. Albuquerque Public Schools Finance Department 
staff prepared these statements, and accompanying supplementary information. Also included is 
the Independent Auditors' Report, Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, Independent Auditors' 
Report on Compliance with Requirements that Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each 
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, and the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Financial Highlights 

The Albuquerque Public Schools District is the 30th largest school district in the United States and 
the largest school district in New Mexico. Of the total sh1dent membership of 330,857 in the State 
of New Mexico, 91,608 or 28% attend the Albuquerque Public Schools and its charter schools. The 
School District encompasses the majority of Bernalillo County and a small section of Sandoval 
County. There are 140 school sites within the School District; 89 Elementary Schools, 27 middle 
Schools, 13 high schools and 11 alternative schools. In addition there are 19 charter schools 
chartered by the Albuquerque Public Schools Board of Education. 

The School District is responsible for elementary and secondary education within its geogrnphical 
borders. The voters .elect the members of the District's governing board which is financially 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Annual Financial Report June 30, 2014 Page vi-1 



Financial Section 

accountable for the Dish·ict by approving the District's budget, levying taxes, if necessary, and 
approving any debt issuances. 

Nineteen District-authorized charter schools are responsible for providing elementary and 
secondary education within the District. Each charter school is managed independently by its 
own governing board. The Albuquerque School District is liable for any operating deficits (to date 
the charter schools have not experienced any material operating deficits). The charter schools are 
presented as discretely presented component units in the District's Financial Statements. 

All charter school operating revenues are passed through the school district to the charter schools 
located within the school district. Two percent of the charter school revenues are retained by the 
school district for administration purposes. Because the revenues are passed through the school 
district to the charter schools, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Standards 14 and 39 
require that the APS chartered schools be treated as "component tmits" and included within the 
scope of the School District's Independent Audit and financial statements. 

In FY14, SEG revenues increased by 3.9% or $24.0 M. The SEG funding increase in FY14 was the 
largest annual increase since FY08, not adjusted for increases in fixed cost and inflation. 
Expenditures in FYl 4 increased by 4.7%; the largest contributors include an increase in the 
employer contribution rate toward educational retirement and health/medical contributions, a 1 % 
salary increase for all employees, and $1.0M for additional special education teacher FTE and 
benefits driven by increased special education emollment. 

In FY15, Operational Fund budgeted revenues increased by 3.7% or $23M. SEG revenues 
accounted for $22M, or 3.6% of this increase. Budgeted expenditures increased by $28M from 
$626M in FYl 4 to $654M in FY15. The largest contributors include a 3% increase in the base 
salary for all public education employees, an additional 3% increase for all EA's and a raise in the 
Teacher tier 1 and tier 2 minimums pay to $32,000 and $42,000, respectively. An increase to the 
employee retirement plan contribution rate of 0.75%, which resulted in increased conh'ibutions by 
the district of $3.1 M, was also a major contributor. 

The Albuquerque Public School District maintains a strong Moody's Aal rating and Standard and 
Poor's (S&P) AA rating. These ratings reflect the highest ratings given to a schooldistrict in New 
Mexico and compare favorably with the City of Albuquerque (Moody's Aal; S&P AAA) and 
Bernalillo County (Moody's AAA; S&P AAA). The School District also was given a "good" 
financial management rating from Standard and Poor' s. 

On September 24, 2013 APS sold $43.4 million in General Obligation Bonds as the final 
installment of the $225 million authorization approved by voters in February 2010. This funding 
will be used for capital project needs throughout the District. 

The Statement of Net Position shows the School District's total assets as of June 30, 2014 totaled 
$1,751,076,597 including cash assets of $391,904,902. High levels of cash assets are in place to 
fund ongoing and planned school facility construction projects, and to support the District's self
insured components of Risk Management. As of June 30, 2014 the School District's self-insurance 
reserve fund totaled $27,235,327. Liabilities at June 30, 2014 for health, dental and vision are stated 
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at 90% confidence level plus 15% to provide for claims fluctuation margin in the event of 
catastrophic claims. Liability balances for worker's compensation and liability and property are 
stated at 90% confidence level. 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial 
statements. The District's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) governmental funds financial statements and 3) notes 
to the basic financial statements. 1bis report also contains other supplementary information in 
addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar 
to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District's assets, deferred inflows 
of resources, and liabilities, with the remaining difference reported as net position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the District is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Each of the government-wide financial statements relates to functions of the District that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities). The 
governmental activities of the District are all related to public education. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1-2 of this report. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used 
to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. 
The District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Dish·ict 
are divided into three categories: governmental funds, internal service funds and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end ofthe fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
government's near-term financing requirements. 
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Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's near-term 
financing decisions. The Governmental Funds Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the 
Statement of Net Position (Exhibit B-1) and the Reconciliation of the Statement of 
Revenues/Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement 
of Activities (Exhibit B-2) provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The District maintains 10 individual major governmental funds and numerous non-major 
governmental funds. In the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances, separate columns are 
presented for the major governmental funds while the non-major funds are combined and 
presented in a single column. Individual account data for each of the District bonds is presented 
in the foot notes in Note 8. The non-major governmental funds are provided in the form of 
combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The District adopts an annual budget for its governmental and internal funds type. Budgetary 
comparison statements have been provided for the governmental funds to demonstrate 
compliance with the budget. The governmental fund financial statements for the major funds can 
be found on pages 6-10 of this report. 

Internal Service Fund: The District created an internal service fund in fiscal year 2007 for the 
purpose of providing increased visibility, recording and tracking of transactions related to 
medical and dental health plans, workers' compensation, property and liability insurances and 
claims. In prior years these transactions were reported within the Operational Fund. The 
Insurance Fund was created at June 30, 2007 with the transfer of related cash balances and 
liability reserves. The activity for the 2013-2014 Fiscal Year is recorded in the Internal Service 
Fund, and can be seen in the statements on pages 18-20. 

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the District's own 
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 21 of this report. 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
The notes to the financial statements can be found starting on page 22 of this report. 

Combining and Individual Fund Schedules and Statements. The combining schedules and 
statements showing the individual District capital accounts and other non-major governmental 
funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and 
individual fund schedules and statements can be found starting on page 91 of this report. 
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Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position (Excluding Component Units) 

This statement shows that as of June 30, 2014, the School District (excluding charter schools and 
the Albuquerque Public Schools Foundation) has total net position of $1,103,447,528 as compared 
to net position of $1,074,598,143 as of June 30, 2013. The School District had $398,188,633 in cash 
and other current assets on hand as of June 30, 2014, and accounts payable/current liabilities and 
current long-term debt of $155,870,009. Cash assets increased by $21,696,335 (5.9%) while Other 
Current Assets increased by 1,836,866 ( 41.3%). The increase in cash was attributable in part to the 
sale of General Obligation bonds ($43.4 million). The $13,919,416 increase in Capital Assets net of 
depreciation is mostly explained by completion of major construction projects. Long Term 
Liabilities have decreased from $495,843,533 as of June 30, 2013, to $491,612,929 ( 0.9%) as of Jtme 
30, 2014. Restricted net position increased from$ 241,820,050 to $269,285,464. Unrestricted net 
position decreased from $61,934,737 to$ 58,463,396. 

Statement of Net Position 

Assets 
Cash Assets 

Other Current Assets 

Bond Issuance Costs 
Restricted Receivables 
Capital Assets 
Depreciation 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 
Insurance Reserves 
Current Portion/Long Term Debt 

Liabilities payable from restricted assets 
Long Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position 
Net investment in Capital Assets 

Restricted for: 

Instructional materials 

Food Service 
Restricted by Grantor 

Athletic Program 
Debt service 

Capital projects 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 
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30-Jun-14 30-Jun-13 

$ 391,904,902 $ 370,208,567 

6,283,731 4,446,865 
1,767,925 

60,285,812 52,396,483 
2, 110,032,475 2,031,647,200 
(817,430,323) (752,964,464) 

$ 1,751,076,597 $ 1,707,502,576 

$ 2,859,719 $ 3,747,565 

74,972,723 60,534,689 
13,338,872 15,740,988 

52,824,180 49,934,267 

11,874,515 7,103,391 
491,612,929 495,843,533 

$ 647,482,938 $ 632,904,433 

$ 146,131 $ 

$ 775,698,668 $ 763,269,521 

2,789,937 1,635,847 

18,365,379 14,606,894 

6,953,875 8,208,556 

1,676,810 1,638,853 

74,991,507 76, 170,421 

164,507,956 161,604,894 
58,463,396 47,463,157 

$ 1, 103,447,528 $ 1,074,598,143 
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The Statement of Activities is prepared using the full accrual method of accounting. lbis report 
complements the Statement of Net Position by showing the overall change in the School District's 
net position for the fiscal year ended Jtme 30, 2014. In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, net 
position increased by$ 30,617,310 as opposed to an increase by $116,140,011 in the previous year. 
The significant increase in the Changes in Net Position in FY 2013 was largely attributable to the 
capitalization of Public School Capital Outlay awards ($83 million). 

Revenues 
Program Revenues 

Charges for Services 
Operating Grants and Contributions 

Capital Grants and Contributions 
Total Program Revenues 
General Revenues 

Taxes-General, Debt Service, Capital Projects 

Public School Capital Outlay Council Awards 
State Aid not Restricted to Specific Purposes 
Interest and Earnings in Investments 

Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets 
Miscellaneous 

Total General Revenues 

Total Revenues 
Program Expenses 

Instruction 
Support services: 

Students 
Instruction 
General Administration 

School Administration 
Central Services 

Operation & Maintenance of Plant 
Student Transportation 
Other Support Services 

Food Services Operation 
Community Services 
Facilities, Supplies & Materials 

Interest on long-term debt 
Depreciation - unallocated 

Total Program Expenses 
Changes in Net Position 
Net Position Beginning 

Net Position Ending 
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$ 

$ 

2014 

48,460,411 $ 
139,985,534 
11,366,847 

199,812,792 

147,818,028 

612,562,319 
659,624 

16,223 
3,883,693 

764,939,887 
964,752,679 

423,670,039 

70,382,092 
21,117,189 

5, 162,278 
43,274,616 

113,603,189 
64,352,488 
19,194,212 

35,657 
31,895,344 

10,392 
52,124,859 
19,936,123 
69,582,812 

934,341,290 
30,411,389 

1,072,830,218 
1,103,241,607 $ 

2013 

47,422,462 
147,552,001 
10,178,265 

205,152,728 

150,708,181 
82,925,067 
590,190,332 

611,473 
179,810 

1,226,329 
825,841,192 

1,030,993,920 

415,372,893 

70,996,531 
20,736,095 
5,225,441 

41,382,284 
97,013,609 
64,842,630 
18,160,713 

724,660 
31,785,794 

3,766 
61,072,398 
22,019,051 
65,518,044 

914,853,909 . 
116,140,011 
958,458,132 

1,0~4,598,143 
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Fund Financial Statements 

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Fund financial statements are based on a modified accrual basis of accounting. The Statement of 
Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances is not a new statement to the School 
District's annual financial reports. This report guides the reader to a meaningful overall view of 
the District's revenues, expenditures, and fund balance and changes to the fund balance. This 
report also shows the revenue and expenditure activities of each major fund and the total of all 
"other" Governmental Funds. Total revenues from State, Local and Federal sources were 
$933,757,654. With the addition of $590,626 in Interest Income, total revenues increased to 
$934,348,280. Other Financing Sources (Bond Activities) added $50,489,099 resulting in current 
resources for the year of $984,837,379. Total expenditures for the School District were 
$969,593,117. The total ending Fund Balance, $316,062,742 is an increase of $15,244,262 from the 
prior year. 

Multi-Year District Revenues and Expenditures 

Total revenues for FY 2014 increased $39 million compared to FY 2013 driven by a $16 million 
increase in State, Local and Federal funding and a $23 million increase in other financing sources. 

Year Total Increase% Total Increase% 

Revenues' (Decrease) Expenditures' (Decrease) 

2008/2009 $ 1,275,481,903 27.79% $ 1,240,263,988 26.33% 

2009/2010 977,694,273 -23.35% 1,045,072,104 -15.74% 

2010/2011 1,099, 133,052 12.42% 984,429,132 -5.80% 
201112012 888,661,015 -19.15% 906,500,987 -7.92% 
2012/2013 946, 149,736 6.47% 943,480,494 4.08% 
2013/2014 984,837,379 4.09% 969,593,117 2.77% 

'Revenues include proceeds from general obligation bonds sales in each respective year. Cash 
carryovers are excluded and expenditures include capital outlays. 

The Budget 

The State of New Mexico school budget process is defined under New Mexico State Statutes 
(Section 22-8, Public School Finance) and the New Mexico Administrative Code (Section 6.20.2 
Governing Budgeting and Accounting for New Mexico Public Schools and School Districts). During the 
2009/2010 fiscal year, APS moved from a site-based to a district-based budgeting process. Schools 
are provided funding based on a formula that is driven by student enrollment. Schools are also 
provided with additional "discretionary" funding based on their level of at risk factors (free lunch 
participation, mobility, English language learners). School principals then work with their staff 
and site councils to develop a detailed site budget. 
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GASE 34 does not require a combining statement presenting the overall District result of the 
budget for each year; however, all major budgetary funds are required by the New Mexico State 
Auditor to be reported as separate statements. 

The District had 85 active major and non-major funds at June 30, 2014. The 10 major budgetary 
funds in these reports are: 

Operational Fund 

Pupil Transportation 

Instructional Materials 

Food Service 

Title I - IASA 

IDEA-B 

Bond Building 

Capital Improvements HB-33 

Capital Improvements SB-9 

Debt Service 

In addition, 68 active, non-major Special Revenue Funds, and 6 non-major Capital Projects funds 
and 1 non-major Educational Technology Debt Service fund are also reported for their budgetary 
performance. 

The following graphic shows the fiscal relationship of the major funds and the combined non
major funds presented on a budgetary basis. 

FINAL EXPENDITURES 
El Debt Service 5.75% "' Other Governmental 

Iii Food Service Special 
Revenue 3.41% 11 Transportation 2.02% 

m Instructional Materials 
0.41% 

The Operational Fund Final Expenditures represent 64.53% of the total expended dollar amount. 
This fund provides the salary and benefits for the significant majority of the Instructional, 
Instructional Support and School Support, Maintenance and Administrative staff as well as 
classroom materials, special education consulting staff and fixed utility costs. Revenue from this 
fund is substantially derived through the statewide funding formula in the form of State 
Equalization Guarantee, which is appropriated for education by the State Legislature. The 
Operational Fund is discussed later in the Management Discussion and Analysis. 
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Major Funds-Analysis of Budgetary Fund Balances 

Fund Balance: Fund Balance: 
Fund Type June 30, 2013 June 30, 2014 Variance 

Operational $ 36,601,301 $ 42, 139,480 $ 5,538, 179 

T ransporlation 

lnsrucional Materials 780,381 2,836,873 2,056,492 

Food Service Special Revenue 14,221,494 17,543,921 3,322,427 

Bond Building Capital Project 20,996,426 18, 172,393 (2,824,033) 

Capital Improvements HB-33 76,868,465 94,640,050 17,771,585 

Capital Improvements SB-9 56,752,384 54,468,603 (2,283,781) 

Debt Service 54,881,365 61, 128,367 6,247,002 

Tolal $ 261,101,816 $ 290,929,687 $ 29,827,871 

The overall budgetary fund balances of these major funds have increased by $29.8 million. The 
Operational Fund is showing the effect of a successful effort to increase cash balance by realizing 
a reduction in total expendih1res. The Transportation Fund balance should always be as low as 
possible as 50% of this balance on a cash basis reverts to the Public Education Department. The 
decline in Insh·uctional Materials has improved in the past couple of years and this fund balance 
is beginning to recover. The Food Services Department is accumulating resources in anticipation 
of moving into a new facility. A building has been purchased, and as renovations are completed, 
these funds will be used to furnish the facility and upgrade equipment as needed. This move will 
centralize all District Food Services operations in one location. The Bond Building Fund has 
decreased as funds have been spent on on-going projects. Mill levy funds have increased as the 
district re-prioritizes projects identified in the Capital Master Plan. The debt service fund balance 
has increased in proportion to obligations due in the short term. 

The Operational Fund 

The Operational Fund is the School District's largest fund. Because the Operational Fund budget 
for the period ending June 30, 2014 was $661,859,476, the significant impact of this fund on School 
District Operations must be kept in context. ~ 

The Operational Fund is predominately funded by revenues from the State Equalization 
Guarantee (SEG) appropriated by the state legislature through the statewide funding formula. 
This fund pays for teaching staff, teaching support staff, special education support staff, 
maintenance staff and administrative staff. The Operational Fund also provides the majority of 
the funding for athletics. State public school support funding for school district operations 
increased by 3.9% for the year ended June 30, 2014. As shown in the Operational Fund Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget, the Operational Ftmd began the year 
with an initial expenditure budget of $653,987,044 and had a final budget of $661,859,476. This 
increase was primarily due to the difference between estimated and actual cash balance that 
carried forward from the previous year and funds received fore-rate reimbursements. 
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Because of the student growth experienced by the School District, an emphasis placed on schools 
by the New Mexico Legislature, and because the State Equalization Guarantee Formula is based 
upon student populations, the Operational Fund had historically realized increases in revenues, 
up until FY 2010-2011. Operational fund revenue has declined due to the recent recession. 
However, adding to the decline in revenue, in FYl 1 a policy decision was made by the State 
Legislahtre and supported by a newly elected Governor to funnel an unprecedented amount of 
ftmding outside of the statewide ftmding formula directly to the Public Education Department for 
discretionary distribution to New Mexico school districts. This trend has continued through 
FY15. Revenues through the funding formula have marginally increased beginning FY 2012-2013 
as economic conditions have improved as seen in the following table. 

Operational Fund Revenues (Including ARRA Stabilization Funds) 

Year Revenues Increase% 

2008/2009 $ 631,994,302 

2009/2010 632,311,218 1 

2010/2011 615,332,851 2 

2011/2012 598,347,440 3 

2012/2013 607,350,045 

2013/2014 626,748,263 
1 Includes Federal ARRA Stabilization Funds of $54,203,625 
2 Includes Federal ARRA Stabilization Funds of $23,284,057 
3 Includes Federal ARRA Stabilization Funds of $246.094 

1.60% 

0.10% 

-2.70% 

-2.80% 

1.50% 

3.20% 

Because the Operational Fund is the main ftmd whose expenditures are significantly related to 
the educational process, $621,210,084 was expended in the year ending June 30, 2014. The most 
significant expenditure was for the function noted as "Instruction". This expendihtre was 
$407,166,073 or 65.5% of all Operational Fund expenditures. Expenditures included in this 
function are Regular Education teachers, Special Education teachers, Early Childhood Education 
teachers and educational assistants, staff benefits, payroll taxes, school supplies, training and 
miscellaneous instructional related contract services. In addition, $80,629,047 or 13% was 
expended from the "Support Services-Students" and "Support Services-Instruction". The 
expendihtres in these two ftmctions are directly in support of classroom and school activities. 
Charges to these ftmctions include the related expenditures for librarians, nurses, social workers, 
counselors and special education support staff. Less than 1 % of the Operational budget was used 
for general administration, 5.5% was used for school administration, and 2.9% was used for 
Central Services which includes Business Support, Warehouse Support, and Informational 
Technology. 

The following discussion on the Operational Ftmd budget will relate functional expenditures for 
the year ending June 30, 2014 for the Operational Ftmd. Instruction for APS represents 65.5% of 
all Operational Fund expenditures and compares favorably with the state-wide ratio for 
Instruction of 62%. 
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Operating Fund Expenditures by Function FY 2013-2014 

11 StudentTransportatio 
0.04% 

Operation & 
Maintenance of Pl 

12.18% 

Ill Food Services 
Operations 

0.11% 

Et Community Services 
0.00% 

II Support-Central 
Services 

2.88% 

~:::::__ _____ Capital Outlay 

0.01% 

m SupportServices 
19.22% 
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FY 2013-2014 Operational Fund Revenues and Expenditures 

Final vs. Orig Budget Actual vs. Final Budget 

Original Budget Final Budget Variance V% Actual Variance V% 

Revenues $ 624,648,070 $ 625,834,798 $ 1.136,728 0.2% $ 626,748,263 $ 913,465 O:f'A:. 

% % State 
Expenditures by function Expenditure Average 2 

1JOO-lnstrucUon $ 426,386,655 $ 429,009,593 $ (2,622,938) -0.6% $ 407' 136,073 $ 21,843,520 5.f/o 
65.54% 62% 

21JO-Suppo rt -Students 65,780,144 66,404.249 (624,1J5) -0.9% 59,627,487 6,776,762 112% 
9.60% 11% 

2200-Suppo rt -lnstructio n 23,773,082 24,774,848 (\001766) -42% 21,001,560 3,773,288 152% 
3.38% 3% 

2300..Support-Admin-General 5,066,715 5,066,715 0.0% 4,620,614 446,1J1 8.8% 
0.7411/Q 2% 

2400-Support-Admin-School 34,014,284 34,356,981 (342,697) -10% 33,91J,138 446,793 13% 
5.46% 6% 

2500-Support-Central Servicei 13,543,282 "B,672,366 (129,084) -0.7% 17,904,648 1,767,713 9.0% 
2.88% 3% 

2600-0peration & M aintenanc• 75;2.72,7"6 78,423,557 (3,'60,842) -4.2% 75,684,694 2,738,863 3.5% 
12.13% 13% 

2700-Pupil Transportation 3 443,529 443,529 0.0% 261,480 132,049 410% 
0.04% 0% 

2900-Non Operating 4 2,512,"'.62 2,512,"62 0.0% 250,826 2,261,326 90.0% 
0.04% 0% 

31JO-Food Services Operation 1,094,431 1,094,431 0.0% 689,692 404,739 37.0% 
0. tf'/o 0% 

3200-Co m munity Services 9,000 9,000 0.0% 1,798 7,202 80.0% 
0.00% 0% 

3140-Capital Outlay 91,055 92,055 (1000) -t 1'/o 91,024 1,031 Hh 
0.01'/o 0% 

Total $ 653,987 ,044 $ 661,859,476 $ (7,872,432) -12% $ 621,21),084 $ 40,649,392 6% 1JO% 1JO% 

1Percentage of expenditures to total expenditures. 

2Source PED Statistical Data, New Mexico Financial Statistics - Budgeted Expenditures! 2013-2014. 

3 Operational fund expenditure for pupil transportation only 

4 Non-Operating includes emergency reserve and legal settlement budgets. Expenditures are generally not Incurred 

5 Operating costs not normally incurred by this fund within this function. 

Increased expenditures levels included in the final budget compared to the original budget are 
the result of adjushnents made for the difference between the original estimate of the previous 
year's ending cash balance and the actual ending cash balance. Decreases in actual expenditures 
compared to the final budget were principally the result of reduced salary and benefit 
expenditure levels driven by employee vacancies in most functional areas. 

The following two tables expand the comparison between the ratios of APS and the State for the 
Operational Fund expenditures for the last three year period. The first table outlines the 
comparative functional expendih1res for the three year period; the second details the resulting 
ratios. 
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2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 

APS Statewide APS Statewide APS Statewide 

Functional Expenditures'" 

1000.Direct Instruction $ 389,600,915 $1,447, 175,034 $ 395,042,574 $1,487,546,083 $ 407, 168, 073 $1,618,379,831 

2100-SuPJXlf\-Sludenls _ 59,461,032 227,070,565 54,004,275 225,949,329 59,627,487 256,218,677 

2200-SuPJXlf\-lnstructional 20,302,026 64,347,339 20,633,900 66,219, 107 21,001,560 72,808,208 

2300-Gene-al Adrnin 4,062,128 46,338,795 4,078,430 45,810,024 4,620,614 51,261,420 

2400-School Adrnin 31,326,651 152,305,960 32,126,946 157,943,232 33,910,188 169,014,637 

2500-Central S€<Vices 16,093,413 76,011,113 16,409,430 77,959, 135 17,904,648 87,416,238 

2600-Qper/Manlenooce Pla1! 70,927,225 308,210,767 76, 113,329 310,919,711 75,684,694 343,858,586 

2700-Pupil Tra11Sportalion 225,396 3,290,559 226,808 5,210,957 261,480 4,810,921 

2900-Noo-Operating 1,309,460 4,239,638 1,038,851 4,484,866 250,826 5,102,112 

3100-Food S€<Vices 404,057 2,574,735 658,488 2,982,153 689,692 3,894,707 

3300-Cornrnunily S€<Vk:es 5,643 2,424,545 3,766 1,959,772 1,798 2,003,344 

4000-Capita Oul!ay 80,954 2, 140,696 91,055 2,849,885 91,024 5,128,427 

TOTALS $ 593,888,900 $2,336, 129,746 $ 600,427,852 $ 2,389,834,254 $ 621, 210, 084 $ 2,619,897, 108 

Functional Ratios 

1000.Direct Instruction 65.62% 61.95% 65.79% 62.24% 65.54% 61.77% 

2100-Suwirt-Sludenls 10.01% 9.72% 8.99% 9.45% 9.60% 9.78% 

2200-SuPJXlf\-lnstructional 3.42% 2.75% 3.44% 2.77% 3.38% 2.78% 

2300-Gene-al Adrnin 0.68% 1.98% 0.68% 1.92% 0.74% 1.96% 

2400-School Adrnin 5.27% 6.52% 5.35% 6.61% 5.46% 6.45% 

2500-Central S€<Vices 2.71% 3.25% 2.73% 3.26% 2.88% 3.34% 

2600-0per/Mantenaoce Pla1t 11.94% 13.19% 12.68% 13.01% 12.18% 13.12% 

2700-Pupil Tra11Sportalion 0.04% 0.14% 0.04% 0.22% 0.04% 0.18% 

2900-Noo-Operating 0.22% 0.18% 0.17% 0.19% 0.04% 0.19% 

3100-Food S€<Vices 0.07% 0.11% 0.11% 0.12% 0.11% 0.15% 

3300-Cornrnunily S€<Vk:es 0.00% 0.10% 0.00% 0.08% 0.00% 0.08% 

4000-Capita Oul!ay 0.01% 0.09% 0.02% 0.12% 0.01% 0.20% 

TOTALS 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

'Albuquerque expenses am actual; tmen from APS auarted inancia staternenls, Non-GAAP Budge!aiy Basis schedules. 
2Saimide expenses a-e taken from PED s!atislical inbnnation; 2011-2012 a1d 2012-2013 dala a-e actual, 2013-2014 da1a a-e budget 

Support services for students and instruction represents 13% of Operational Fund expenditures 
and accounts for expenditures for program coordinators, counselors, school ·nursing staff, 
librarians, special education ancillary staff and significant support to special education programs 
through contract ancillary support staff and contract programs. General Administration and 
Central Services represents the overhead support for the entire operations of the School District; 
these programs combined represent 3.6% of the total Operational Fund. Cenh·al Services includes 
Business support, Technology, and Warehousing Services. Maintenance and Operations account 
for 12.2% of the Operational Fund expenditures. Included in the Maintenance and Operations 
expenditures are salaries and benefits for maintenance staff, school custodians, fixed utility costs, 
maintenance and repairs, maintenance supplies and school custodial supplies. Additional 
support for maintenance projects comes from the voter approved Two-Mill Levy Fund (SB-9). 
The SB-9 fund is a critical and integral fiscal component of the School District's Maintenance 
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program. The Operational Fund also supports expendihires for school athletics and summer 
school in the Instruction function. 

Administrative Costs 

To allow the reader to compare the performance of the Albuquerque Public Schools with the 
performance of all school districts within the State of New Mexico, additional statistical 
information concerning state wide performance has been added to the above budget tables. In 
addition, the following table compares the Operational Fund costs associated with General 
Administration and Central Services to those of the state wide average. This information shows 
that the School District's expenditure in these functions is lower than the state wide average. The 
information used for this data is from Public Education Department FY 2013-14 budget for the 
period ending June 30, 2014. 

Comparative Administrative Costs 2013-14 

Gen School Central 
School District Administration Administration Services Total 
APS 2013-2014 0.74% 5.46% 2.88% 9.08% 
State Average 2013-2014 1.96% 6.45% 3.34% 11.75% 

Source: PED -New Mexico Finance Statistics; Final Expendihire Report, June 30, 2014 

Self-Insurance Benefits and Reserve Funds 

Sections 22-29-1 thru 10, NMSA, mandate that school districts and charter schools are to be 
included in the New Mexico Public Schools Insurance Authority (NMPSIA). The statutory 
language also allows school districts in excess of 60,000 students to be "waived" from 
participation in Insurance Authority programs. As a result, the School District funds and 
administers its own employee benefit and risk management programs as a self-insured program. 
However, the charter schools are included in the NMPSIA program. 

Because of an interest in providing lower cost insurance to school employees state-wide, an 
independent sh1dy was conducted to determine the feasibility of combining the APS programs 
with the Insurance Authority programs. The independent study, commissioned by APS and the 
Insurance Authority, was completed in January 2007 and concluded that the inclusion of APS into 
the Insurance Authority would lead to significant cost increases to the Insurance Authority, APS 
and a large number of APS employees. 

As part of the self-insurance program, the School District maintains reserve funds for Medical, 
Dental and Vision Benefits, Risk and Workers Compensation based upon periodic actuarial 
studies. The School District considers these funds to be "restricted" and the funds are accounted 
for within an Internal Service Fund. Effective June 30, 2014, balances for the self-insurance 
reserves were as follows: 
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Reserve Confidence 
Fund level 

Health, Denial & Vision Benefils $ 8,644,497 90%+ 
V\brkers Corfl)ensalon 12,256,733 90% 
Property/Liability 6,334,097 90% 

Liabilities at June 30, 2014 for health, dental and vision are stated at 90% confidence level plus 
15% to provide for claims fluchtation margin in the event of catastrophic claims. Liability 
balances for worker's compensation and liability and property are stated at 90% confidence level. 

A confidence level is the statistical certainty that an actuary believes funding will be sufficient. 
For example, a 70% confidence level means that the actuary believes funding will be sufficient in 
seven years out of ten. 

These reserves were carried forward into the 2014/2015 fiscal year and are deemed sufficient to 
meet requirements. The District's annual health insurance premium adjustment is implemented 
on January 1'' of each year. On January 1, 2013, premiums increased for the first time in 3 years by 
2% based on actuarial data which includes current health care cost trends. January 1, 2014 
medical insurance premiums increased 5%; dental insurance increased about 7%. 

Effective January 1, 2015, dental insurance premiums will increase by about 3.4% and vision plan 
premiums will increase about 2.7%. Medical insurance premiums will not change. 

Capital Assets 

GASB 34 requires public entities to depreciate capital assets. Utilization of depreciation concepts 
by public entities allows the reader to know if the entity is replacing its assets at a rate in which 
they are being used. The Albuquerque Public Schools utilizes a "straight line" depreciation 
method in all cases and standardized lifetime tables in calculating this depreciation. 

Historically and in accordance with prior State Statute, State Regulations and School Board 
Policy, all assets with a value in excess of $1,000 were capitalized. Effective July 1, 2006, this 
amount was increased to $5,000 by State Stahtte. The District continued to capitalize all assets 
with a value in excess of $1,000 through June 30, 2010. All assets on the books as of July 1, 2010 

with a cost between $1,000 and $5,000 will remain on the District's inventory list and continue to 
be subject to depreciation rules for the life of the asset. Effective July 1, 2012 the district began 
capitalizing only equipment with a value in excess of $5,000 in accordance with state stah1te. In 
addition, effective July 1, 2010, the District began tracking all computers regardless of value in 
response to a State Auditor directive that all computer hard drives be certified as "sanitized" or 
destroyed prior to disposal. 

As of June 30, 2014, the School District capital assets had a book value of $1,292,602,152 after 
depreciation. This statement includes total accumulated depreciation of the School District's 
capital assets in the amount of $817,430,323 (see Note 7). 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 
Annual Financial Report June 30, 2014 Page vi-15 



Financial Section 

Due to fluctuations in student enrollment and certain aging facilities, the School District has taken 
a planned and focused approach towards investing in equipment and building new facilities as 
well as adding to and maintaining existing facilities. These efforts are evidenced by the 
substantial and continuous investment in the Capital Master Plan. 

The following table displays a two-year history of year-end balances for the School District's 
investment in all capital assets: 

Capital Asset Type Balance June 30, 20131 Balance June 30, 20141 

Land and Land Improvements $ 182,439,694 $ 197,602,077 

Buildings and Building lmprovmts 1,605,839,631 1,716,254,327 

Furniture, FixlJJres and Equipment 63,596,967 . 58,931,638 

lnlangibles 15,889,216 15,889,216 

Vehicles 14,247,690 14,497,987 

Construction in Progress 149,634,002 106,857,230 

Tolal Capilal Assets 2,031,647,200 2,110,032,475 

Less Accumulated Deprecialion (752,964,464) (817,430,323) 

Capilal Assets - Net $ 1,278,682,736 $ 1,292,602,152 

1 Amounls shown in ddlars 

In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances included capital outlay additions of $83,991,169. This amount included expenditures of 
$41,917,913 from the proceeds of the Bond Building Fund; $22,502,279 was expended from the 
HB-33 fund for capital improvements and $10,972,870 was expended from SB-9 funds. All three of 
these funds are authorized by local election. Also, $8,507,083 was expended from non-major 
funds. The Operational Fund had capital outlay expenditures of $91,024. Total capital asset 
additions include the following: 

Capital Outlay 

Assets charged to other functions 

Total Capital Asset Additions 

General Long Term Debt 

$ 

83,991,169 

1,214,075 

85,205,244 

Article IX, Section 11 of the New Mexico Constitution limits the powers of a school district to 
incur general obligation debt beyond a school year. The School Dish·ict can incur such debt for 
"the purpose of erecting, remodeling, making additions, and furnishing buildings or purchasing 
or improving school grounds or purchasing computer software or hardware for student use in 
public classrooms or any combination of these purposes." The approval of the debt is subject to a 
vote of the local electors and may not exceed 6% of the assessed valuation of the taxable property 
within the School District. In accordance with the assessed valuation limitation calculation, APS 
long term debt may not exceed $885,431,943. 

To this point, the School District has not maintained a level of indebtedness to the maximum 
extent allowed. However, due to the need to add additional facilities to address fluctuations of 
the district's student population, upgrade and expand existing facilities, provide for the growing 
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demand for technology in education and the shift to digital curricula, and to leverage additional 
funds available from Public School Capital Outlay, the voters approved a $225 million dollar 
bond authorization on February 2, 2010. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, the School 
District issued $43.4 million in General Obligation Education bonds, which was the last 
installment of the $225 million authorization approved by voters in February 2010. An additional 
bond authorization of $ 200 million was approved by voters on February 5, 2013. These bonds 
will be sold over a three year period and will increase the indebtedness in 2016 to an estimated 
67% of the maximum debt limit allowed for by law. 

The School District maintained a Moody's Aal rating and an S&P AA rating for the September 
2013 bond sale. Effective July 1, 2003, School District bonds are also permitted to carry the 
enhanced State of New Mexico bond rating of Aa2. This action was authorized in Senate Bill 847. 
The effect of this bill will be to reduce the risk to bond holders and, as a consequence, reduce the 
interest costs to the taxpayer. 

The School District has never defaulted on any of its debt or other obligations. Listed below is the 
School District's total general obligation debt as of June 30, 2014. 

Original Amount Principal 
Series Issued Maturity Outstanding 

2004 QZAB $ 4,625,000 8/1/2020 1,446,315 

2006 QZAB 7, 160,000 8/1/2020 2,595,332 

2006C GOB 10/2006 63,980,000 8/1/2021 7, 105,000 

2007 GOB 12/2007 75,000,000 8/1/2022 42,450,000 

2008B GOB 134,000,000 8/1/2023 102,000,000 

2009 General Obligation Bonds (2009A) 124,700,000 8/1/2022 87,600,000 

2009CQSCB 14,300,000 8/1/2024 14,300,000 

20090 Refunding 16,800,000 8/1/2018 14,065,000 

2010A GOB Regular Bonds 85,410,000 8/1/2021 70,500,000 

2010B GOB QSCB 32,690,000 8/1/2027 32,690,000 

2010C GOB BAB 31,900,000 8/1/2024 31,900,000 

2011 GOB Refunding 8,940,000 8/1/2016 5,485,000 

2011 Education Technology Notes 18,600,000 8/1/2015 9,745,000 

2012 Refunding 39,670,000 8/1/2021 35,240,000 

2012 Education Technology Notes 13,000,000 8/1/2017 5,650,000 

2013GOB 43,400,000 8/1/2029 43,400,000 

For additional information on long term debt please see Note 8. 
The School District recommends the Official Statement dated June 27, 2014, to a reader wishing to 
know more about the School District's long term debt and district demographics. This Official 
Statement may be obtained on our website at http://www.aps.edu/finance/accounting/official
bond-statements, or by contacting the School District's Financial Advisor: 
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In addition to the sale of General Obligation Bonds, the School District is eligible to receive 
awards from the Public Schools Capital Outlay Council (PSCOC) in accordance with Senate Bill 
513, Chapter 147 Section lO(b) NMSA. The impact of these various awards is discussed 
throughout this Management Discussion and Analysis. 

Charter Schools 

Because the operations of the charter schools are not material to the overall financial performance 
of the Albuquerque Public Schools, charter schools are only included in this section of the 
analysis. Charter school organization and management is set forth under Sections 22.SB.1 through 
15, NMSA. This section of the law allows for charter schools to be formed and funded within an 
existing school district under specific criteria. The Albuquerque Board of Education is responsible 
for the review and approval of charter school applications; however, a denial of an application 
allows for an appeal process to the Public Education Department. Each charter school is governed 
by a governing body identified in the charter. The charter school governing body is responsible 
for the operation of the charter school including "preparation of a budget, contracting for services 
and personnel matters." 

Because of the complexity of the rules and accounting requirements of Public Education 
Department, many charter schools find varying degrees of difficulty and challenges. The 
Albuquerque Public Schools, the New Mexico Coalition of Charter Schools, and the New Mexico 
Association of School Business Officials are all working to provide support and training for these 
schools. 

The following table lists all Charter Schools active during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and 
the summary of their fiscal performance. This information is summarized for each school on the 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds 
(GAAP). The stated fund balance is the final, adjusted, fund balance for all governmental funds as 
of June 30, 2014. The statement shows the performance of each individual school's combined 
governmental funds on a GAAP basis. 
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FY 13-14 

End·of·Year FY 13·14 FY 13-14 Total Final 

Year Student Total Total EOY Fund 

Charter School Name Chartered Grades Count Revenue' Expenditures 1 Balance' 

21st Century Public Academy 2000 5-8 246 1,900,086 1,685,023 (66,990) 
Albuquerque TalentDevelopment Secondary Charklr 2007 9-12 141 1,714,701 1,857,067 38,463 

Alice King Corrm.milf School 2006 K-5 318 2,513,954 2,539,480 145,011 

Christine Duncan's Heritage Academy 2006 K-8 179 1,977,656 1,810,085 429,794 

Corrales International Charter School 2008 K-12 213 2,410, 194 2,574,336 72,614 

Digital Aris & Technology Academy 2002 9-12 311 3,361,672 3,382,845 603,585 

El Camno Real Academy 2002 K-12 324 4,001,357 4,017,454 73,261 

Gordon Bernell Charklr School 2008 9-12 376 3,782,565 3,980,656 253,297 

La Academa de Esperanza 2001 6-12 348 4,239,298 4,604,092 211,268 

Los Puentes Charklr School 2002 7-12 164 2,559,985 2,483,949 357,298 

Montessori of lhe Rio Grande 2004 PreK-6 215 2,008,835 1,988,332 226,628 

Mountain Mahogany Community School 2005 K-8 206 1,835,099 3,947,225 191,771 

Native American Community Academy 2006 6-12 352 5,172,803 5, 134,292 91,970 

Nues~os Valores Charklr School 2001 9-12 115 1,756,538 1,741,544 93,701 

Public Academy br Perbrmng Aris 2001 6-12 360 3,604,590 3,595,715 286,621 

Robert F Kennedy High School 2001 9-12 189 3,105,027 3,222,998 (28,950) 

School br lnklgrakld Academes and Technologies 2004 9-12 275 2,675,065 2,747,535 193,847 

Soulh Valley Academy 2000 6-12 334 4,087,503 3,932,781 625,009 

The Bataan Military Academy 2006 9-12 92 1,393,045 1,582,218 8,331 

1Amounls shown in dollars. 

One of the more significant challenges facing charter schools is the quality of the existing charter 
school facilities. The State of New Mexico has mandated that charter schools occupy public 
facilities by the 2015 school year. Policy discussions are ongoing with regard to how that mandate 
will be funded and implemented. The deadline has been extended at least once from its original 
deadline. Included in the options for charter schools is the lease purchase financing of school 
facilities. The constitutional prohibition on lease purchase financing was removed by the voters as 
a result of the general election on November 7, 2006. It is anticipated that further legislative 
definition of this capital project financing tool will take place during fuhtre legislative sessions. 
All of the APS district authorized charter schools are included in the district's comprehensive 
Capital Master Plan. The Albuquerque Public Schools has invested more dollars for capital 
outlay for its district authorized charter schools than any other authorizer in the state. To date, 
the district has allocated more than $34 million providing permanent facilities for South Valley 
Academy, Montessori of the Rio Grande, and the Digital Arts and Technology Academy. 
Construction is currently underway at Robert F. Kennedy Charter School and plans are being 
finalized to repurpose an existing APS facility for the Public Academy for the Performing Arts. In 
addition, the district is collaborating with CNM to provide a permanent building for the Native 
American Charter Academy on the CNM campus. 
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APS Education Foundation 

The Albuquerque Public Schools Education Foundation is a 501(c)(3) charitable organization 
established in 1995 that raises private support for academic programs within the district. In 
addition to providing help to the 92,000 schoolchildren and 12,000 staff members of the dish·ict, 
the Foundation serves as a fiscal agent for a variety of programs. In 2009, the Foundation 
established the Horizon Campaign, a fundraising effort aimed at providing financial supplements 
to Fine Arts, Literacy, Science/Technology/Engineering/Math (STEM) and Middle School/High 
School Activities programs operated by the district. Through this campaign, the Foundation has 
raised more than $850,000 in cash, in-kind donations, and pledges. This Foundation's financial 
statements are discretely presented in this report as a component unit. 

Agency Funds 

School sites, as fiscal agents, maintain and monitor special funds on behalf of the school activity 
groups. These agency funds maintained by the schools are intended to benefit a specific activity 
or interest and are generally raised by students for student use. The total of the funds district
wide is $5,678,855. 

While each school site is the fiscal agent and responsible for the administration of the agency 
funds, the use of these funds is in accordance with School District Policy and Public Education 
Department Regulations. The management of these funds is directed by the school principal and 
the funds are also subject to annual review by the School District's Internal Audit Department. 

Future Trends 

The Economv and Public School Funding: In New Mexico, the general operation of school districts is 
principally funded by the State through an allocation formula known as the State Equalization 
Guarantee (SEG). State legislators convene annually and determine the amount of funds to be 
allocated within the State for educational purposes. The principal resources to the State that are 
available for allocation include the Gross Receipts Tax and the Severance Tax (a tax on extracted 
nahtral resources). 

The international economic crisis that began in 2008 has significantly impacted New Mexico. Over 
time, the Gross Receipts Tax had proven itself to be a reliable source of State and local revenue 
due to sustained economic growth since New Mexico's economy has consistently expanded from 
year to year for well over fifty years. New Mexico's current economic crisis has ended that growth 
and the Gross Receipts Tax has contracted in the last year. 

The Severance Tax, however, is more volatile because it is more closely tied to the global pricing 
of natural resources such as oil and natural gas. Increased demand for oil and natural gas 
resources has had a positive effect on state revenues, which have shown a marginal increase over 
the past couple of years. It is important to note that, although revenue has increased, the 
appropriation to fund public schools through the state-wide funding formula is still below 2008 
levels. 
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State Equalization Guarantee Funding History 

The following table indicates the statewide funding of SEG along with the amount allocated to 
the District for the past five years. 

Fiscal Year Statewide1 APS District1 

FY2008-09 2,331,045,045 621,262,717 

FY2009-10 2,281,026, 198 2 610,595,016 2 

FY2010-11 2,222,903,684 3 601,789,251 3 

FY2011-12 2,227,294,667 583,644, 192 4 

FY2012-13 2,274,438,900 590, 190,332 

FY2013-14 Not available 612,562,319 
1 Amounts shown in dollars. 
2 Slalewide and APS includes $ 188,888,604 and$ 54,203,625 or Federal ARRA Slabilizalion Funds respectively 
3 Slalewlde and APS includes $ 44, 111,247 and $ 23,284,057 or Federal ARRA Slabilizalioo Funds respectively 

4 Statewide and APS includes $ 953,267 and$ 249,094 or Federal ARRA Stabilizalioo Funds respectively 

Operational funding of public schools for the past two years has marginally improved as the 
economic climate has painstakingly improved. Some of the difference in the annual rates of 
growth is attributable to formula factors applied in deriving the allocation to each district. For 
example, if a school district's student population grows at a rate that is different than the 
anticipated statewide growth, then that district's SEG would reflect the difference caused by the 
underlying change in student population ratio. Additional formula factors address the additional 
cost of providing for students with disabilities, bilingual education, and programs to address 
students at risk of dropping out. Another significant formula factor is the Training and 
Experience index, which recognizes the education and experience level of instructional staff and 
the costs associated with attracting and retaining a qualified instructional workforce. 

As noted earlier, beginning in FYll, a policy decision was made by the New Mexico State 
Legislahire and supported by a newly elected Governor to funnel an unprecedented amount of 
funding outside of the statewide funding formula directly to the Public Education Department for 
discretionary distribution. As this trend continues, there is growing concern of disequalization of 
per-pupil funding across New Mexico's 89 school districts and 100 charter schools. This issue 
compounds the fact that per-pupil funding is still below 2009 levels. 

The Albuquerque Public Schools has taken a proactive approach for addressing the effects of 
reduce funding by undertaking a sustainability sh1dy in an attempt to become more strategic, 
effective and efficient with its resources. In FY14, four 2-hour study sessions were held with the 
Board of Education. The impetus for the development of the study is as follows: 

• APS has experienced declining enrollment for four consecutive years. 
• There have been too many piecemeal approaches to balancing the budget. 
• Budget solutions often included employees contributing towards balancing the budget 

through furlough actions and shortening of conh·acts for teachers. 
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• The precipitous decline in revenue throughout the recession has forced the district to be 
reactionary and did not provide enough planning time during the normal budgeting 
process. 

Key findings of the sustainability shtdy: 

• It is more effective to improve the bottom line by sustaining/growing revenue (as opposed 
to focusing only on cost controls). At some point the decision must be made to invest and 
innovate out of a deficit. 

• Enrollment is key to improving revenues as funding through the state-wide fonding 
formula is directly linked to student enrollment. 

Key Strategies: 
• Repurpose tmder-utilized facilities. Consider the option of creating a recurring revenue 

stream by renting the repurposed facilities to district charter schools currently in the 
district's capital master plan. 

• Retain/gain enrollment by offering more choices and improving the quality of education. 
Improving the quality of educational experience will be a key factor in attracting and 
retaining shtdent enrollment. 

Areas of Opportunity for Qualitative Restructuring 

CIJfllrol Utility Bills 
Push for Equitable Fundin 
formula 
COOfdinale Federal/Grant 
funds 
AJlgn Financial & 
~rational Processes 

andA!tra<:thePr<>yarru 

- Di<;tance learning 

Comprehensive Approach to Providing a High Quality Education 

APS is De-focto Regional 
SPED Magnet 
Small SChool Adjustment 
Optima! Enrollment 
Operational Siie of Xhool 

AJJsomce of Innovation 
Plug fnrollrrn?nt 'Jeak<lge' 
at EducatiOO<Jl Tran.>itions 
- X:-3 Pm,!d<> Contlnu1y fS.MS 
.si-.,,.,,,,, .. ~/.t..~t 

A!terru!t.'3 

The district is currently in the process of analyzing data and prioritizing specific projects 
identified in the sustainability study as having a significant impact on district revenue. 
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Teacher Salaries: Beginning with FY2004-05 the District began implementing a three year phase in 
of a state mandated three tier salary schedule for teachers throughout the State. Based on a 
combination of education and experience, each teacher is placed within one of the three tiers in 
the plan. The first tier of Level I teachers were funded at a minimum salary of $30,000. In 
2005/2006, the legislature funded the increase of the Level Two teacher salary to a minimum of 
$40,000. Beginning with the 2007-2008 fiscal year, the minimum salary for a Level 3 teacher was 
increased to $50,000. It is anticipated that these increases in salaries will attract and retain high 
quality teaching staff. The Fiscal Year 2013-14 budget provided for 12,267 FTE. In this total, 6,149 
FTE teachers were budgeted. The following is a seven year summary of average returning teacher 
salaries. 

Year Average Salary1 Experience 

2007-08 43,380 11.1 years 

2008-09 46,569 12.9 years 

2009-10 46,504 11.0 years 

2010-11 44,915 10.3 years 

2011-12 46,116 12.1 years 

2012-13 44,474 10.0 years 

2013-14 45,208 10.0 years 

1 Amounts sho\vn in dollars. 

Source: PED~ New Mexico Finance Statistics 

Local Assessments 

General Obligation Bonds: Local property taxes serve as the revenue source for the repayment of 
general obligation bonds. Because of the growth of both residential and commercial assessed 
valuation for properties in the Albuquerque School District, the School District has undertaken an 
aggressive expansion program to add additional classroom space in the District. The following 
table illustrates the growth of the assessed valuation for the Albuquerque School District. 

Valuation Table 

Tax Year Albuquerque Public Schools1 

2006 12,079,222,249 

2007 13, 182,532,511 

2008 14,244,852,529 

2009 15,100,118,203 

2010 14,669,473,949 

2011 14,703,596,631 

2012 14,645,970,276 

2013 14,492,037,500 

2014 14,757,199,050 
1 
Amounts shown in dollars. 

Source: Official Statement Dated August 21, 2013 
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Because of continued development in both the residential and commercial properties in the 
School Dish'ict, it is expected that future assessed valuations will continue to increase. It is also 
expected that voter support for the Albuquerque Public Schools will continue to be strong and 
revenues from General Obligation Bond proceeds will continue to be an integral part of the 
School District Capital Master Plan. 

On Feb. 2, 2010, voters approved a $616 million bond issue and mill levy with a focus on 
refurbishing and rebuilding old schools, most of which are more than 40 years old. All projects 
approved in 2005-06 school tax funding elections are either completed or started, and all 
obligations fulfilled or are in the process of being fulfilled. A large focus of the last School Capital 
Plan was to catch up with growth areas and overcrowded schools. The main focus of the latest 
plan is to renew, refurbish and rebuild old schools and provide new educational and instructional 
technology. Tilis plan will also begin to provide some facilities for charter schools. 

Contacting the Albuquerque Public Schools 

Tilis financial report is designed to provide our community, taxpayers, investors and creditors 
with an overview of the Albuquerque Public School District's financial condition and to provide 
accountability for the ftmds the School District receives. If you have questions about our report or 
about the operations of the Albuquerque Public School District, please visit our web site at 
www.aps.edu, or contact: 

Don Moya 
Chief Finance Officer 
Albuquerque Public Schools 
P0Box25704 
6400 Uptown Blvd. NE., Suite 610E 
Albuquerque, NM 87125-0704 

Tami Coleman 
Executive Director of Accounting 
Albuquerque Public Schools 
POBox25704 
6400 Uptown Blvd. NE., Suite 300E 
Albuquerque, NM 87125-0704 
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State of New Mexico Exhibit A-1 
Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Statement of Net 

Position 

June 30, 2014 
Governmental Component Units 

Activities 
ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents s 123.339,65-0 s 8,942,463 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 92, 172,436 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowance for unco!lectibles) 2,90ll,995 1,923, 156 
Restricted receivables 41,354,607 
Prepaid expenses 261.894 156.987 
Inventory 3, 112.842 

Toi.al current assets 263.150.426 11.024.608 
Noncurrent Assets 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 176.392.814 
Restricted receivables 18.931.205 

195.324.019 
ca~tat assets (not being depreciated): 

land 54,495.320 2.445.000 
Water rights 
Construction in progress 106.857.230 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation): 
Land improvements 143.106.757 
Buildings and building improvements 1.716.254.327 13.668.957 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 73,429.625 2.570.216 
Intangibles 15.689.216 
less: accumulated depredation (817.430.323) (3,770.971) 

Toi.al Capital assets 1.292,602.152 14.913.202 
Toi.al noncurentassets 1.487.926.171 14.913.202 
Toi.al assets $ 1,751,076,597 ~ 25 937 810 

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 2.859.719 s 1.023.015 
Accrued expenses 65.996.716 2.871.886 
Accrued interest 7.650.172 
Insurance reserves, IBNR claims 13.338.872 
Current portion of compensated absences 1.325.835 156.325 
Current pol1ioo of loog·lerrn debt 52.824,160 267,808 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 11,874,515 
Funds held foc others 

Total current liabilities 165,870,009 4,321,034 
Noocurrent liabilities: 

Compensated absences 2,651,670 
Net OPES obl~a~oo 463,279 
Debt due in more than one year 474.601,525 12,715,546 
loog-Terrn portion of claims payable 13,896,455 

Toi.a! noncurrent liabilities 491,612,929 12.715,546 
Total liabilities 647.482.936 17,036,560 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 146,131 3,269,832 
NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 775.698.668 1,952,926 
Restricted for. 

Instructional materials 2,789,937 
Food Sei\ice 18,365,379 
Restricted by Granter 6.953.875 
Athletic Program 1,676,810 
Debt ser.ice 74,991,507 
ca~tal p!cjects 164,5-07,956 
Other purposes 554,292 

Unrestricted 56,463,396 3.124.180 
Toi.al net position 1, 103,447,528 5.631.398 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position ~ 1,751,076,597 ~ 25,937,810 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 1 



ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

State of New Mexico 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Albuquerque Public Schools Foundation 
Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2014 

Accrued interest on investments 
Current portion of beneficial interest in remainder trust 

Total current assets 
Noncurrent Assets 

Beneficial interest in remainder trust - net of current portion 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Current liabilities: 

Acccunts payable 
Tola! current liabilities 
Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricled 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 
Total liabilities and net assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

ExhibitA-2 

$ 2,529,678 
2, 109,521 

8,794 
456, 126 

5,104,119 

1,940,785 
$ 7 044 904 

$ 78,433 
78,433 
78,433 

1,963,740 
3,069,865 
1,932,866 
6,966,471 

$ 7,044,904 
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State of New Mexico Exhibit A-3 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes 
Program Revenues in Net Position 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Primary Component 

FunctionslPrograms Expenses Service Contributions Contributions Government Units 
Primary Government 

Governmental activities: 
Instruction $ 423,670,039 $ 2,280,963 $ 67,593, 131 $ $ (353,795,945) 
Support services: 

Students 70,382,092 6,316,092 684,593 (63,381,407) 
Instruction 21, 117, 189 (21,117,189) 
General Administration 5,162,278 (5, 162,278) 
School Administration 43,274,616 23,796,653 (19,477,963) 
Central Services 113,603,189 31,458,712 (82,144,477) 
Operation & Main!. of Plant 64,352,488 (64,352,488) 
Student Transportation 19, 194,212 19,475,331 281,119 
Other Support Services 35,657 (35,657) 

Food Services Operation 31,895,344 8,404,644 28,435,826 4,945, 126 
Community Services 10,392 (10,392) 

Facilities, Supplies & Materials 52,124,859 9,800,233 (42,324,626) 
Interest on long-term debt 19,924,169 1,760,581 (18,163,588) 
Depreciation - unallocated (a) 69,582,812 (69,582,812) 

Primary Governmental Activities $ 934,329,336 $ 48,460,411 $ 139,985,534 $ 11,560,814 $ (734,322,577) $ 
Component Unit Governmental 
Activities $ 54,712,219 $ 506,000 $ 9,525,170 $ 771,242 $ $ ( 43,909,807) 

Total Governmental Activities $ 989,041,555 $ 48,966,411 $ 149,510,704 $ 12,332,056 $ (734,322,577) $ (43,909,807) 

General Revenues: 
Property laxes: 

Levied for general purposes 5,042,088 
Levied for debt service 64,235,532 
Levied for capital projects 78,540,408 3,290,496 

Slate Equalization Guarantee 612,562,319 40,071,379 

Interest & Investment Earnings 659,624 4 
Gain/Loss on disposal of capital assets 16,223 
Miscellaneous 3,883,693 357,903 

T olal general revenues 764,939,887 43,719,782 
Change in net position 30,617,310 (190,025) 

Net position-beginning as previously staled 1,07 4,598, 143 5,821,423 
GASS 65 restatement (See Nole 18) (1,767,925) 
Net Position - beginning Restated (b) 1,072,830,218 5,821,423 
Net Position - ending $ 1, 103,447,528 $ 5,631,398 

(a) Excludes direct depreciation expense 
(b) Component unit beginning net position excludes $6,573,604 for APS Foundation presented in accordance with FASB effective Fiscal Year 2014 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 3 



State of New Mexico Exhibit A-4 
Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Albuquerque Public Schools Foundation 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

REVENUES, GAINS AND PUBLIC SUPPORT 
Donations and pledges $ 518,339 $ 2,411,773 $ $ 2,930,112 
In-kind contributions 450,756 450,756 
Special evenuts 122,422 122,422 
Investment income, net of $15,922 in fees 207,885 207,885 
Change in value of beneficial interest 

in remainder trust 61,259 61,259 
Other 192,746 192,746 
Total revenues, gains and public support 1,553,407 2,411,773 3,965,180 
Net assets released from restrictions: 

Expiration of time and purpose restrictions 2,112,703 (2,112,703) 
EXPENSES 

Program services 2,924,662 2,924,662 
Fund raising 56,645 56,645 
Management and general 591,006 591,006 
Total expenses 3,572,313 3,572,313 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 93,797 299,070 392,867 
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,869,943 2,770,795 1,932,866 6,573,604 
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 1,963,740 $ 3,069,865 $ 1,932,866 $ 6,966,471 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 4 



State of New Mexico 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Albuquerque Public Schools Foundation 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Net realized and unrealized gains in beneficial interests 

in perpetual trusts 
Net realized and unrealized gains on invesments 
Effects of changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts payable and other liabilities 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds from sale of investments 

Net cash used in investing activities 
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

NONCASH ACTIVITIES 

In-kind contributions 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 392,867 

(61,259) 
(122,713) 

62,698 
271,593 

(103,756) 
93,229 

(10,527) 
261,066 

2,268,612 
$ 2,529,678 

$ 450,756 
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State of New Mexico Exhibit B-1 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 Page 1of3 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2014 

General Fund Special Revenue Funds 

Pupil Instructional Food TiUel IDEA-8 
Operatiooal Transportation Materials Service IASA EntiUement 

11000 13000 14000 21000 24101 24106 
ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 70,377,199 s $ 17,540,768 s $ 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 

Taxes 619,943 
Due from other governments 
lnlerfund receivables 37,330,027 
Other 2,289,052 

Prepaid expenses & other assets 50,000 
Inventory 1,816,418 1,296,424 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,836,873 
Restricted accounts receivable 1,003,366 19,002,655 7,760,610 

Total assets $ 112,482,639 s 2,836,873 s 19,840,578 s 19,002,655 s 7,760,610 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 2,859,719 $ $ $ s $ 
Accrued expenses 65,996,716 
lnter1und payables 18,760, 192 7,471,718 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 46,936 178,775 242,663 288,892 

Total liabilities 68,856,435 46,936 178,775 19,002,855 7,760,610 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 567,413 

FUND BALANCES 
Non Spendable for 

Inventory 1,816,418 1,296,424 
Prepaids 50,000 

Restlicted for 
Transportation 
Instructional materials 2,789,937 
Food Service 18,365,379 
Restlicted by Grantor 
Athletic Prcgram 
Capital Projects 
Debt Service Fund 

Committed for Subsequent Year 41,000,000 
Unassigned 

General Fund 192,373 
Total fund balances 43,058,791 2,789,937 19,661,803 

T eta! liabilites, deferred inflOYIS of resources, 
and fund balances s 112,482,639 s $ 2,836,873 $ 19,840,578 $ 19,002,855 $ 7,760,610 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 6 



State of New Mexico Exhibit B-1 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 
Page 2of3 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

Capital Projects 

Capital Capital 
Bond Improvements Improvements Debt Other 

Building HB-33 SB-9 Service Governmental Primary 
31100 31600 31700 41000 Funds Government 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ $ $ $ 1,673,760 $ 89,591,747 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 

Taxes 619,943 
Due from other governments 
lnterfund receivables 279,222 37,609,249 
Other 2,289,052 

Prepaid expenses & other assets 211,894 261,894 
Inventory 3, 112,842 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 18, 172,393 94,640,050 54,468,603 61, 128,367 25,849,990 257,096,276 
Restricted accounts recaivable 6,778,827 5,164,352 6,759,484 13,816,318 60,285,812 

Total assets $ 18, 172,393 $ 101,418,877 $ 59,632,955 $ 67,887,851 s 41,831,184 $ 450,866,815 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ $ $ $ $ $ 2,859,719 
Accrued expenses 65,996,716 
lntenund payables 11,377,339 37,609,249 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 4,904,548 2,673,695 3,030,629 46,100 462,277 11,874,515 

Total liabilities 4,904,548 2,673,695 3,030,629 46,100 11,839,616 118,340, 199 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 6,194,884 2,862,296 6,190,337 648,944 16,463,874 

FUND BALANCES 
Non Spendable for 

Inventory 211,894 3,324,736 
Prepaids 50,000 

Restricted for 
Transportation 
Instructional materials 2,789,937 
Food Service 18,365,379 
Restricted by Granter 6,953,875 6,953,875 
Athletic Program 1,676,810 1,676,810 
Capital Projects 13,267,845 92,550,298 53,740,030 13,853,102 173,411,275 
Debt S.rvice Fund 61,651,414 6,646,943 68,298,357 

Committed for Subsequent Year 41,000,000 
Unass~ned 

General Fund 192,373 
Total fund balances 13,267,845 92,550,298 53,740,030 61,651,414 29,342,624 316,062,742 

Total liabilites, deferred inflows of resources, 
and fund balances s 18,172,393 s 101,418,877 $ 59,632,955 $ 67,887,851 $ 41,831,184 s 450,866,815 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 7 



State of New Mexico 
Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Exhibit B-1 
Page 3 of 3 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2014 

Amounts are reported in dollars 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because: 

Fund balances - total governmental funds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund balances: 

Cost of capital assets less accumulated depreciation to date 

Deferred inflows of resources not available to pay for current 
period expenditures and, therefore, are unearned in governmental funds: 

Property taxes 

Internal Service Fund 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund statements: 

Accrued Interest 
Net other postemployment benefit obligation (OPES) 
Accrued Compensated Absences 
General Obligation Bonds and related Premiums and Discounts 

Net position of government activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Governmental 

Funds 

$ 316,062,742 

1,292,602,152 

16,317,743 

17,981,552 

(7,650,172) 
(463,279) 

(3,977,505) 
(527,425,705) 

$ 1,103,447,528 

Page 8 



State of New Mexico Exhibit B-2 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 Page 1of3 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

General Fund Special Revenue Funds 

Pupil Instructional Food Title I IDEAS 

Operational Transportation Materials Service !ASA Entitlement 

11000 13000 14000 21000 24101 24106 
REVENUES 

Property taxes s 4,950,990 $ s $ $ 
State grants 613,416,010 19,475,331 5,117,784 
Federal grants 2,171,665 27,937,302 32,468,690 21,899,272 
Miscellaneous 7,932,928 8,319,381 
Interest 164,183 2,661 3,881 25,412 

Total revenues 628,635,776 19,477,992 5,121,665 36,282,095 32,468,690 21,899,272 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instruction 407,451,736 3,967,575 27,285,462 2,537,596 
Support Sel'lices 

Students 59,627,790 1,671,518 6,446,310 
Instruction 21,003,685 328,730 
General Administration 4,395,687 600,000 733,686 495,135 
Scllool Administration 33,936,325 758,665 11,308,397 
Central Services 17,693, 149 1,678,241 998,524 
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 75,202,823 12, 188 113,310 
Student Transportation 261,480 19,477,992 
Other Support Sel'lices 35,657 

Food Sel'lices Operations 689,798 32, 127,362 
Community Service 2,392 
Facilities, Supplies and Materiais 

Debt service 
Principe! 
Interest 
Bond issuance costs 

Caprral oullay 91,024 
Total expenditures 620,393,548 19,477,992 3,967,575 32,727,362 32,468,690 21,899,272 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 8,242,228 1,154,090 3,554,733 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers 
Bond issuance premiums 
Payments to escrow agents 
Debt issuance 
Issuance of refunding debt 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net changes in fund ba~noes 8,242,228 1,154,090 3,554,733 
Fund balances-beginning of year 34,816,563 1,635,847 16, 107,070 
Fund balances · end of year s 43,058,791 $ $ 2,789,937 $ 19,661,803 $ $ 

Page 9 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements. 



State of New Mexico Exhibit B·2 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 Page 2 of 3 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Capital Projects 

Capital Capital 
Bond Improvements Improvements Debt Other Total 

Bui~ing HB-33 SB-9 Seivice Governmental Governmental 

31100 31600 31700 41000 Funds Funds 
REVENUES 

Property laxes $ $ 55,527,440 $ 26,459,534 $ 57,141,141 $ 6,489,720 $ 150,568,825 
State grants 2,010,913 18,339, 168 658,359,206 
Federal grants 20,224,413 104,701,342 
Miscellaneous 1,760,581 3,875,972 21,888,862 
Interest 69,243 134,527 97,643 52,693 40,383 590,626 

Total revenues 69,243 55,661,967 28,568,090 58,954,415 48,969,656 936, 108,861 

EXPENDITURES 

Instruction 20,339,044 461,581,415 
Support Seivices 

Students 8, 112,972 75,858,590 
Instruction 1,282,141 22,614,556 
General Administration 554,521 264,886 571,892 454,478 8,070,285 
School Administration 1,783,518 47,789, 105 

Central Services 1,373,209 21,743,123 
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 15,090 75,343,411 
Student Transportation 151,285 19,890,757 
Other Support Seivices 35,657 

Food Seivices Operations 525, 140 33,342,300 
Community Service 8,000 10,392 
Facililles, Supplies and Maleria~ 7,076,176 15,937,602 19,660,641 9,017,479 51,691,898 

Debt service 
Principal 35,371,791 11,996,903 47,368,694 
Interest 19,085,118 762,714 19,847,832 
Bond issuance costs 56,128 357,805 413,933 

Capital outlay 41,917,913 22,502,279 10,972,870 8,507,083 83,991, 169 
Total expenditures 49,050,217 38,994.402 30,898,397 55,386,606 64,329,056 969,593, 117 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (48,980,974) 16,667,565 (2,330,307) 3,567,809 (15,359,400) (33,484,256) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers 

Bond issuance premiums 2,585,024 2,585,024 
Payments to escrow agents 
Debt issuance 43,400,000 2,743,494 46, 143.494 
Issuance of refunding debt 

Total other financing sources (uses) 43,400,000 2,585,024 2,743,494 48,728,518 
Net changes in fund balances (5,580,974) 16,667,565 (2,330,307) 6,152,833 (12,615,906) 15,244,262 
Fund balances - beginning of year 18,848,819 75,882,733 56,Ql0,337 55,498,581 41,958,530 300,818,480 
Fund balances - end of year $ 13,267,845 s 92,550,298 $ 53.740,030 s 61,651,414 $ 29,342,624 $ 316,062,742 

Page 10 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



State of New Mexico 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

in Fund Balances of Government Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Capital Outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental 
funds as expenditures. However, for governmental activities, those costs are 
shown in the statement of net assets and allocated over their estimated useful 
lives as annual depreciation expenses in the statement of activities. This is the 
amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlays for the period. 

Amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlays for t~_e period: 
Depreciation expense 

Capital Outlay Additions 

Adjustments/Disposal of capital assets 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenue in the funds: 

Unearned revenue related to the property taxes receivable 
Decrease in accrued compensated absences 
Internal Service Fund Change in Fund Balance 

Expenses in the statement of activities that do not consume the current financial resources 
of governmental funds: 

Net OPEB expense 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources 
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes 
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has 
any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, 
premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts 
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities: 

Amortization of original issue premium 
Decrease in accrued interest payable 
Debt service principal payments 
Original Issue Premium 
Debt Proceeds 
Debt Proceeds - DATA Lease Purchase 

Change in Net Position - Total Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements. 

Exhibit B-2 
Page3of3 

Governmental 
Funds 

$ 15,244,262 

(70,895,780) 

85,205,244 

(390,048) 

(2,750,797) 
(93,212) 

3,110,393 

(146,516) 

2,769,924 
(76,337) 

47,368,695 
(2,585,024) 

(43,400,000) 
(2,743,494) 

$ 30,617,310 
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State of New Mexico Exhibit C~l 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 
Fund 11000 

Operational Fund (11000) 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget (Non - GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Bud~eted Amounts 
Orl9lnal Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taJCes $ 4,896,966 $ 4,896,966 s 4,958,212 $ 61,246 
Stale grants 614,931,079 613,479,318 613,416,010 (63,308) 
Federal grants 2,250,000 2,281,058 2,171,665 (109,393) 
Miscellaneous 2,520,025 5,127,456 6,038, 193 910,737 
lnlerest 50,000 50,000 164, 183 114,183 

Total revenues 624,648,070 625,834,798 626,748,263 913,465 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 426,386,655 429,009,593 407, 166,073 21,843,520 
Support Services 

Students 65,780,144 66,404,249 59,627,487 6,776,762 
Instruction 23,773,082 24,774,848 21,001,560 3,773,288 
General Administration 5,066,715 5,066,715 4,620,614 446,101 
School Administration 34,014,284 34,356,981 33,910,188 446,793 
Central Services 19,543,282 19,672,366 17,904,648 1,767,718 
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 75,272,715 78,423,557 75,684,694 2,738,863 
Student Transportation 443,529 443,529 261,480 182,049 
Other Support Services 2,512,152 2,512,152 250,826 2,261,326 

Food Services Operations 1,094,431 1,094,431 689,692 404,739 
Community Services 9,000 9,000 1,798 7,202 

Capital outlay 91,055 92,055 91,024 1,031 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 653,987,044 661,859,476 621,210,084 40,649,392 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (29,338,974) (36,024,678) 5,538, 179 41,562,857 

Designated cash 29,338,974 36,024,678 (36,024,678) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers 
Proceeds from bond issues 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net changes in fund balances 5,538,179 5,538,179 

Fund balances - beginning of year 36,601,301 36,601,301 
Fund balances - end of year $ $ $ 42,139,480 $ 42,139,480 

RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS 
Reversal of PY adjustments to revenue I expenditures (3,601,156) 
Adjustments to revenues 1,887,513 
Adjustments lo expenditures 816,536 
Inventory 1,816,418 
Other financing sources (uses) 
Fund balances (GMP basis) i 43,058,791 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 12 



State of New Mexico Exhibit C-2 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 
Fund 13000 

Pupil Transportation Fund (13000) 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget (Non - GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ $ $ $ 
State grants 18,145,081 19,708,457 19,475,331 (233,126) 
Federal grants 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 3,250 2,661 (589) 

Total revenues 18,145,081 19,711,707 19,477,992 (233,715) 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 
Support Services 

Students 
Instruction 
General Administration 
School Administration 
Central Services 232,948 232,948 
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 
Student Transportation 18,145,081 19,478,759 19,477,992 767 
Other Support Services 

Food Services Operations 
Community Services 

Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Pnncipal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 18, 145,081 19,711,707 19,477,992 233,715 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 

Designated cash 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Operating transfers 
Proceeds from bond issues 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning of year 
Fund balances - end of year $ $ $ $ 

RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS: 
Reversal of PY adjustments to revenue I expenditures 
CY Adjustments to revenues 
CY Adjustments to expenditures 
Inventory 
Fund balances (GMP basis) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 13 



State of New Mexico Exhibit C-3 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 Fund 14000 

Instructional Materials Fund (14000} 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget (Non - GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Bud~et Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ $ $ $ 
State grants 4,614,888 5,470,353 5,973.250 502,897 
Federal grants 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 3,881 3,881 

Total revenues 4,614,888 5,470,353 5,977,131 506,778 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 5,990,161 6,250,734 3,920,639 2,330,095 
Support Services 

Students 
lnstruclion 5,687 
General Administration 
School Administration 
Central Services 
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 
Student Transportation 
Other Support Services 

Food Services Operations 
Community Services 

Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 5,995,848 6,250,734 3,920,639 2,330,095 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (1,380,960) (780,381) 2,056,492 2,836,873 

Designated cash 1,380,960 780,381 (780,381) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Operating transfers 
Proceeds from bond issues 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net changes in fund balances 2,056,492 2,056,492 

Fund balances - beginning of year 780,381 780,381 
Fund balances - end of year $ $ $ 2,836,873 $ 2,836,873 

RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS: 
Reversal of PY adjustments to revenue I expenditures 855,466 
CY Adjustments to revenues (855,466) 
CY Adjustments to expenditures (46,936) 
Inventory 
Fund balances (GAAP basis) ~ 2,789,937 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 14 



State of New Mexico Exhibit C-4 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 Fund 21000 

Food Services Fund {21000) 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget {Non· GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Budgeted Amounts 
Orialnal Budaet Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property ta><es $ $ $ $ 
State grants 
Federal grants 27,350,000 27 ,350,000 27,842,429 492,429 
Miscellaneous 8,338,000 8,338,000 8,298,291 (39,709) 
Interest 25,412 25,412 

Total revenues 35, 688,000 35,688,000 36,166,132 478, 132 

EXPENDITURES 
lnslruction 
Support Services 

Students 
Instruction 
General Administration 600,000 600,000 600,000 
School Adminislralion 
Central Services 
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 
Student Transportation 
Other Support Services 

Food Services Operations 46,290,138 49,300,515 32,243,705 17,056,810 
Community Services 

Capital oullay 
Debt service 

Pnncipal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 46,890,138 49,900,515 32,843,705 17,056,810 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (11,202,138) (14,212,515) 3,322,427 17,534,942 

Designated cash 11,202,138 14,212,515 (14,212,515) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Operating transfers 
Proceeds from bond issues 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net changes in fund balances 3,322,427 3,322,427 

Fund balances - beginning of year 14,221,494 14,221,494 
Fund balances - end of year $ $ $ 17,543,921 $ 17,543,921 

RECONCtLIA TION TO GAAP BASIS: 
Reversal of PY adjustments to revenue I expenditures 589,152 
CY Adjuslments to revenues 115,963 
CY Adjustments to expenditures 116,343 
Inventory 1,296,424 
Fund balances (GMP basis) ~ 19,661,803 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 15 



State of New Mexico Exhibit C-S 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 Fund 24101 

Title I - IASA Fund {24101) {101-130) 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget (Non - GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Bud~eted Amounts 
Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taJ<es $ $ $ $ 
State grants 
Federal grants 26,277,888 38,820,381 19,508,343 (17,312,038) 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 

Total revenues 26,277,888 38,820,381 19,508,343 (17,312,038) 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 22,418,585 31,396,258 27,289,880 4,106,378 
Support Services 

Students 1,203,123 1,892,446 1,669,915 222,531 
Instruction 266,594 339,738 328,730 11,006 
General Administration 730,576 840,530 733,686 106,844 
School Administration 723,460 771,506 758,865 12,641 
Central Services 918,050 1,562,405 1,490,081 72,324 
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 17,500 17,500 12,188 5,312 
Student Transportation 
Other Support Services 

Fooc Services Operations 
Community Services 

Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Pnncipal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 26,277,888 36,820,381 32,283,345 4,537,038 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures (12,775,002) (12,775,002) 

Designated cash 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers 
Debt issuance 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net changes in fund balances (12,775,002) (12,775,002) 

Fund balances - beginning of year (5,985, 190) (5,985, 190) 
Fund balances - end of year $ $ $ (18,760,192) $ (18,760,192) 

RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS: 
Reversal of PY adjustments to revenue I expenditures 5,985,190 
CY Adjustments to revenues 12,960,347 
CY Adjustments to expenditures (185,345) 
Inventory 
Fund balances (GAAP basis) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 16 



State of New Mexico Exhibit C-6 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 Fund 24106 

IDEA-B Entitlement Fund (24106) (321) 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget (Non - GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ $ $ $ 
State grants 
Federal grants 18,912,182 23,987,382 23,877,400 (109,982) 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 

Total revenues 18,912,182 23,987,382 23,877,400 (109,982) 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 2,416,077 3,048,347 2,537,596 510,751 
Support Services 

Students 4,460,847 7,305,007 6,382,418 922,589 
Instruction 
General Administration 508,600 639,217 495,135 144,082 
School Administration 10,503,912 11,882,334 11,308,397 573,937 
Central Seivices 914,817 963,604 1,034,748 (71,144) 
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 107,929 148,873 113,310 35,563 
Student Transportation 
Other Support Services 

Food Services Operations 
Community Seivices 

Capital oullay 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 18,912,182 23,987,382 21,871,604 2,115,778 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over (under) expenditures 2,005,796 2,005,796 

Designated cash 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Operating transfers 
Debt issuance 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net changes in fund balances 2,005,796 2,005,796 

Fund balances - beginning of year (9,477,514) (9,477,514) 
Fund balances - end of year $ $ $ (7,471,718) $ (7,471,718) 

RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS: 
Reversal of PY adjustments to revenue I expenditures 9,477,514 
CY Adjustments to revenues (1,978, 128) 
CY Adjustments to expenditures (27,668) 
Inventory 
Fund balances (GMP basis) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 17 



State of New Mexico 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Statement of Net Position 
Internal Service Fund 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments 
Total current assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Claims Payable 
Total current liabilities 

Long Term liabilities 

June 30, 2014 

Long-Term Portion of Claims Payable 
Total long term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Unrestricted net position 

Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Internal Service 
Fund 

$ 45,216,879 
45,216,879 
45 216 879 

$ 13,338,872 
13,338,872 

13,896,455 
13,896,455 
27,235,327 

17,981,552 
17,981,552 

$ 45,216,879 

Exhibit D-1 
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State of New Mexico 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Internal Service Fund 

For the Year Ending June 30, 2014 

Internal Service 
Fund 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services $ 95,542,930 

Total operating revenues 95,542,930 

Operating expenses: 
Health and medical claims admin. 3,955,329 
Health and medical claims 70,816, 111 
Dental claims admin 183,356 
Dental claims 5,431,554 
Vision claims admin 23,277 
Vision claims 793,173 
Worker's compensation claims admin. 
Worker's compensation claims 5,893,527 
Propertyfliability claims admin. 
Propertyfliability claims 3,168,403 
Compensation and benefits 1,018,333 
General supplies & materials 
Other Professional I Technical Services 1,218,472 

Total operaOng expenses 92,501,535 
OperaOng income (loss) 3,041,395 

Non-operating revenue (expenses): 
Interest - restricted 68,998 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 68,998 

Change in net position 3,110,393 
Total net position - beginning of year 14,871,159 

Total net position -end of year $ 17 981 552 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Exhibit D-2 
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State of New Mexico 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash received from lnterfund Services Provided: 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Internal Service Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Exhibit D-3 

Internal Service Fund 

Health Insurance Premiums 
Express Scripts Rebates 

$ 75,745,014 

Dental Insurance Premiums 
Vision Insurance Premiums 
Worker's Compensation Premiums 
Property/Liability Premiums 

Total Cash received from lnterfund Services Provided 
Cash paid to Vendors 

Health and Medical Claims Administration 
Health and Medical Claims 
Dental Claims Administration 
Dental Claims 
Vision Claims Administration 
Vision Claims 
Worker's Compensation Claims (Self Insured) 
Property/Liability Claims (Self Insured) 

Total Cash Paid to Vendors 
Other Expenditures 

Compensation and Benefits 
Other Professional I Technical Services 

Total Other Expenditures 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES: 

Interest received 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2013 
Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2014 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities: 
Decrease in claims liability 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements. 

1,502,333 
5,867,839 

884,915 
4,332,381 
7,210,448 

3,955,329 
71,859,794 

183,356 
5,431,554 

23,277 
793,173 

3,913,234 
6,646,376 

1,018,333 
1,218,472 

68,998 

95,542,930 

92,806,093 

2,236,805 

500,032 

68,998 

569,030 
44,647,849 

$ 45,216,879 

$ 3,041,395 

(2,541,363) 
$ 500,032 
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State of New Mexico 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

June 30, 2014 

Deposits held in trust for others 
Total liabilities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Agency Funds 

$ 5,678,855 
5,678,855 

5,678,855 
$ 5,678,855 

Exhibit E·l 
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Financial Section 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12, Albuquerque, New Mexico 
("District'') have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements 
(Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. 

Reporting Entity 
The District was formed in the late 1800s. The District currently operates with a superintendent and seven 
elected board members. The District provides educational services to over 86,000 students. The financial 
statements include all funds that are controlled by, or dependent on, the District. Control by or 
dependence on the District was determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, outstanding 
debt secured by general obligations of the District, or the obligation of the District to finance any deficits 
that may occur. KANW, a public radio station, is included in the reporting entity general fund as a 
department within the District. 

GASB Statement No. 14 established criteria for determining the government reporting entity and 
component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, 
the District is considered a primary government, since it is a special-purpose government that has a 
separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local 
governments. As used in GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally independent means that the District may, 
without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or modify its own budget, 
levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. The District also has component units, as 
defined by GASB Statement No. 14 (amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and 61), whereby the 
component units are legally separate organizations. There are no other primary governments with which 
the School Board Members are financially accountable. There are no other primary governments with 
which the District has a significant relationship. 

KNME-N is a non-profit television station jointly formed by the District and the University of New Mexico 
and has a separate governing board from that of the District. KNME-N provides educational programming 
to the residents of New Mexico. It is excluded from the reporting entity because the District does not have 
the ability to exercise influence over daily operations and approve budgets; however, some funding is 
provided by the District, as well as by the University of New Mexico, private grants, gifts and 
contributions. The District derives no financial benefit from its relationship with KNME and its only 
financial burden consists of a $20,000 yearly contribution toward operations and payment of utility costs 
which amounted to $12,780 during fiscal year 2014. Financial Statements for KNME may be obtained 
from the Controller's office of the University of New Mexico. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the operation of the Self
Insurance Management Fund which services the District's departments. 
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Component Units 
The following charter schools were formed under NMSA 22-8A and as such are presented here as discrete 
component units within the District's financial statements, and separate statements are not available. 
District management has determined that the Charter Schools are major component units of the District 
under GASB Statement No. 14 (as amended by GASB 34 and 61), since their operating budgets and 
charters are presented and approved by the District's board and a financial burden exists upon closure of 
a school or when the school is in need of financial assistance. In addition, under section 6-5A-1 NMSA 
1978, 501(c)(3), component units with gross annual income in excess of $100,000 should be audited; 
therefore, the APS Foundation is included as a component unit. 

21st Century Public Academy 

Albuquerque Talent Developrrent Secondary Charter 

Alice King Corrm.mity School 

Christine Duncan's Herilage Academy 

Corrales lnilrnational Charier School 

Digilal Aris & Technology Academy 

El Carrino Real Academy 

Gordon Bernell Charter School 

La Acaderria de Esperanza 

Los Puentes Charier School 

APS Education Foundation 

Montessori oflhe Rio Grande 

Mountain Mahogany Corrm.mity School 

Native Arrerican Conmmity Academy 

Nues~os Valores Charter School 

Public Academy ilr Perilrrring Art 

Robert F Kennedy High School 

School ilr Integrated Acaderrics and Technologies 

Soulh Valley Academy 

The Bataan Military Academy 

The Albuquerque Public Schools Education Foundation is a 501(c)(3) charitable organization established in 
1995, that raises private support for programs within the district. In addition to providing help to the 
86,000 school children and 11,500 full time staff members of the district, the Foundation serves as a fiscal 
agent for a variety of programs. In 2009, the Foundation established the Horizon Campaign, a fundraising 
effort aimed at providing financial supplements to Classroom Teacher Mini-Grants, Fine Arts, Literacy 
and Middle School/High School Activities programs operated by the district. The Foundation issues a 
separate set of financials and a copy can be obtained from the Foundation at 6400 Uptown Blvd. NE, Suite 
630 East, Albuquerque, NM 87110. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, 
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the 

primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the 
primary government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment such as the collection of cafeteria fees and lost books, etc. and 2) grants and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment such 
as in Title I and IDEA-B or state programs such as HB,33 and SB-9. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
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Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, state shared taxes, investment income and 
charges for services. In accordance with GASB Statement 33, estimated property, and other taxes that are 
not available are called unavailable revenue and shown as a deferred inflow of resources. All other 
revenues are recognized when they are received and are not susceptible to accrual, because they are 
usually not measurable until payment is actually received. Expenditures are recorded as liabilities when 
they are incurred. Any effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the Government-wide 
financial statements. 

Property taxes are collected by the Bernalillo and Sandoval County Treasurers and remitted to the District. 
Property tax revenue is recognized at the time of receipt or earlier if accrual criteria are met. The District's 
accounting policy is to defer property taxes that are not collected within 60 days after fiscal year end since 
delinquent property taxes are not available to finance current fiscal year District operations. Delinquent 
property taxes collected in future periods will be recognized as revenue when collected. 

Unavailable revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" 
criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by 
the District before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring the 
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when 
the District has a legal claim to the resources, the revenue is recognized. 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except interest on general long-term 
debt which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims which are recognized 
when expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 

other Financing Sources (Uses): Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (or any other 
types, such as capital lease transactions, sale of fixed assets, debt extinguishments, long-term debt 
proceeds, et cetera) are accounted for as other financing sources (uses). These other financing sources 
(uses) are recognized at the time the underlying events occur. 

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accaunting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the period for which the taxes are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue 
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Ad valorem taxes (property taxes), and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 
have been met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures 
have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met and the susceptible to accrual criteria 
have been met. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received. 
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The agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not present results of operations 
or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. 
These funds are used to account for assets that the District holds for others in an agency capacity. 

Governmental funds are used to account for the District's general government activities, including the 
collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the acquisition or construction of 
general capital assets, and the servicing of general long-term debt. Governmental funds include: 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District, and accounts for all financial resources, 
except those required to be accounted for in other funds. 

The Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted 
to expenditures for specified purposes. 

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the services of general long-term debt not being financed by 
proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds. 

The Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major capital 
projects not being financed by proprietary or nonexpendable trust funds. 

Under the requirements of GASB #34, the District is required to present certain of its governmental funds 
as major funds based upon certain criteria. The major funds presented in the fund financial statements 
include the following (in addition to the General Fund), which include funds that were not required to be 
presented as major but were at the discretion of management: 

The Pupil Transportation Fund is used to account for' the State Equalization, received from the Public 
Education Department (PED), which is used to pay for the costs associated with transporting school age 
children. 

The Instructional Materials Fund is used to account for the monies received from the Public Education 
Department (PED) for the purposes of purchasing instructional materials {books, manuals, periodicals, 
etc.) used in the education of students. 

The Food Service Fund is used to account for the cost of operating a student breakfast, lunch, snack bar 
and summer lunch program and is financed with federal grants and fees paid by program users. 

The /ASA Title I Fund is used to provide compensatory education services to educationally deprived school 
children (including private school pupils) in low-income areas. (P.L. 103-382) 

The IDEA-B Entitlement Fund is used to account for federal resources administered by the public 
education dept. to provide for special educational needs of handicapped 6-21 year olds. (PL 94-142 & PL 
99-457) 

The Bond Building Capital Projects Fund is used to account for bond proceeds and any income earned 
thereon. The proceeds are restricted for the purpose of making additions to and furnishing of schooL 
buildings, or purchasing or improving school grounds or any combination thereof, as approved by the 
voters of the District. 
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The Capital Improvements HB33 Fund is used to account for the costs relating to erecting, remodeling, 
making additions to, providing equipment for, or furnishing public school buildings and purchasing or 
improving public school grounds. Financing is provided through property taxes as specified by Article 26 of 
the Public School Buildings Act. (House Bill 33) 

The Capital Improvements SB9 Fund is used to account for erecting, remodeling, making additions to and 
furnishing of school buildings, or purchasing or improving school grounds or any combination thereof as 
identified by the local school board. Financing is provided by the State of New Mexico's State Equalization 
Matching and a special tax levy as authorized by the Public School District Capital Improvements Act. (22-
25-1 to 22-25-10, NMSA 1978) 

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of General 
Long-Term Debt principal and interest. 

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the District as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations or other governments. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do 
not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. These funds relate primarily to the 
activities of individual schools. While these funds are under the supervision of the District and enhance 
the District's educational programs, they are funds of the individual schools and/or their student bodies 
and are not available for use by the District. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities displays information about the reporting 
government as a whole. Fiduciary funds are not included in the District Wide Financial Statements. 
Fiduciary funds are reported only in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position at the fund financial 
statement level. 

The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the operations of the Self-Insurance Management Fund 
which services the District's departments on a cost-reimbursement basis. The activity tracked in this 
Internal Service Fund includes employee health insurance, worker's compensation insurance, and 
property and liability insurance for the District. All expenses are captured in this fund, and proceeds from 
employee deductions and budgeted appropriations are coded here as revenue sources. Collections from 
excess insurance policies are also deposited into this fund. The Internal Service Fund is reported in the 
Proprietary Funds section of this report. Internal Service Fund operating revenues include employer and 
employee contributions, Non-operating revenues are limited to interest income. Operating expenses 
include claims and overhead expenses. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities were prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange-like 
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and 
liabilities resulting from non-exchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of 
GASB Statement No. 33 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions." 

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Policies regarding cash and cash equivalents are approved by the District's 
Board of Education and are governed by New Mexico statute. Such policies allow deposits or investments 
in certificates of deposit, savings accounts, overnight repurchase agreements, various obligations of the 
U.S. Government or its agencies and the New Mexico State Treasurer's Local Government Short Term 
Investment Fund. Such deposits and investments must be made through a State or Federally chartered 
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bank or savings and Joan association which is insured by the FDIC and which is within the geographic 
boundaries of the District, or with the New Mexico State Treasurer. The District's cash and cash 
equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original 
maturities of three months or Jess from the date of acquisition. 

The District's Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents of $268,565,252 consist of cash balances in all funds 
except the Operational Fund. This includes Transportation, Instructional Materials, Special Revenue 
Funds, Capital Outlay and Debt Service. 

Collateral is required for at least 50% of deposits that are not insured by the FDIC, with the exception of 
repurchase agreements. These are required to have collateral of at least 102%. Obligations that may be 
pledged as collateral are obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies, and state and local 
governments. Collateral is held in safekeeping at depository institutions in the name of the District. 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the internal service fund considers Cash and Investments as 
highly liquid assets (including restricted assets) with maturity of three months or Jess when purchased to 
be cash equivalents. 

Receivables and Payables: Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as interfund receivables and 
interfund payables. 

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated 
portion that is expected to be uncollectible. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on 
management's assessment of the collectability of specific accounts, the aging of accounts receivable and 
historical experience. 

The District receives monthly income from a tax levy in Bernalillo and Sandoval Counties. The funds are 
collected by the County Treasurers and are remitted to the District the following month. 

Certain Special Revenue funds are administered on a reimbursement method of funding; other funds are 
operated on a cash advance method of funding. The funds incurred the cost and submitted the necessary 
request for reimbursement or advance, respectively. 

Prepaid Items: The consumption method is used to report prepaid items. Certain payments to vendors 
reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Inventory: Supply inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market and consist of 
educational supplies, purchased and donated commodities. Donated inventories, received at no cost 
under a program supported by the Federal Government, are recorded at the lower of their estimated fair 
market value at the date of receipt or current market value. 

The food commodities received from the Federal Government (passed through from the State) are 
recorded as revenues and expenditures as they are consumed. Quantities on hand at year-end are 
recorded as inventory with an offsetting credit to revenue. 

The consumption method is used to report inventories. Purchased inventories are recorded as 
expenditures at the time individual inventory items are used. Reported inventories are offset by a non
spendable fund balance which indicates that they do not constitute available expendable resources. 
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Capital Assets: Capital assets are recorded at historical cost and depreciated over their estimated useful 
lives (with no salvage value). HistoriCally and in accordance with prior State Statute, State Regulations and 
School Board Policy, all assets with a value in excess of $1,000 were capitalized. Effective July 1, 2006, this 
amount was increased by state statute to $5,000. The District continued to capitalize all assets with a 
value in excess of $1,000 through June 30, 2010. Assets on the books as of July 1, 2010 with a cost 
between $1,000 and $5,000 have remained on the District's inventory list and continue to be subject to 
depreciation rules for the life of the asset. Effective July 1, 2011 the District began capitalizing only 
equipment with a value in excess of $5,000 in accordance with state statute. In addition, effective July 1, 
2009 the District began tracking all computers regardless of value. 

Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Additions, 
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. 
Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. 

Capital assets include land and land improvements, buildings and building improvements, furniture, 
fixtures, equipment, machinery and vehicles. Capital assets are used in operations and have a useful life of 
more than one year and a cost exceeding established capitalization thresholds. The school district does 
not own any infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, tunnels, drainage systems, water and sewer 
systems, dams and lighting systems. 

Purchased capital assets costing more than $5,000 are recorded at historical cost, including significant 
ancillary charges necessary to place the asset into its intended location and condition for use. 
Improvements to land and buildings are capitalized at the higher threshold of $25,000. Donated capital 
assets valued at more than $5,000 are recorded at the time of acquisition at estimated fair value plus 
ancillary charges. 

Capital assets are reported net of accumulated depreciation in the statement of net position. Capital 
assets that are not being depreciated, such as land, are reported separately for significant amounts. 
Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line depreciation method 
and full-month averaging. No salvage value is allowed for this purpose. Estimated useful life is 
management's estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet service demands. 

Straight-line depreciation is used based on the following estimated useful lives: 

Computer Equipment and Business 
General Equipment and Musical 
Vehicles, Trucks, and Trailers 
Furniture, Major Appliances, Large 

5 Years 
8 Years 
8 Years 
10 Years 

Improvements to Land 20 Years 
Improvements to Bldgs. 20 Years 
Portable School Buildings 25 Years 
Buildings 40 Years 

Depreciation was allocated to the various functions based upon originating purchasing source where 
identifiable. Unallocated depreciation was recorded in the statement of activities. 

Unearned Revenues: The District reports unearned revenues on its Statement of Net Position and various 
fund balance sheets. Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the District before it has a 
legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. 
In subsequent periods, when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned 
revenue is removed from the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 

Accrued Salaries: Certain employees of the District (primarily school teachers and support staff) work 
nine months of the 12-month fiscal year. The District disburses payroll to such employees throughout the 
entire 12-month period. Accordingly, salaries payable included as accrued expenses in the accompanying 
financial statements include accrued salaries for services performed through June 30, 2014 for these 
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employees. The accrued salaries will be paid within two months after the end of the fiscal year. 

Compensated Absences: In the event of termination or retirement, employees may be paid for up to 176 
hours of accumulated vacation leave. Accordingly, accumulated vacation leave is recorded as if fully 
vested. The vested vacation leave payable is calculated using current pay levels and is recorded in the 
government-wide fund. 

Long-term Obligations: In the government-wide fund financial statements, long-term debt and other 
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net 
position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 
During the year $19,936,123 in interest on long term debt was recorded, including $7,650,172 in accrued 
interest payable. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The 
District did not have any items that qualified for reporting in this category as of June 30, 2014. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District reported unavailable revenue that amounted to 
$16,317,743 at June 30, 2014. The District also reported amounts collected in advance of eligibility that 
amounted to $146,131 at June 30, 2014. 

Fund balance: The difference between assets and liabilities in the governmental fund financial statements 
are among the most widely and frequently used information in state and local government financial 
reports. 

GASS Statement No. 54 distinguishes fund balances based on the relative strength of the constraints that 
control the purposes for which specific amounts can be spent. Beginning with the most binding 
constraints, fund balance amounts are reported in the following classifications: 

• Nonspendable - portion of net resources that cannot be spent because of their form or because 
they must remain intact 

• Restricted - amounts constrained by external parties, constitutional provision, or enabling 
legislation 

• Committed - amounts constrained by a government using its highest level of decision-making 
authority. The Board of Education is the highest level of decision making authority. Formal 
Board action, through a resolution creates a commitment. 

• Assigned - amounts a government intends to use for a particular purpose 

• Unassigned - amounts that are not constrained at all will be reported in the general fund. 

The new standards also clarify the definitions of individual governmental fund types. It interprets certain 
terms within the definition of special revenue fund types, while further clarifying the debt service and 
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capital projects fund type definitions. The final standard also specifies how economic stabilization or 
"rainy-day" amounts should be reported. 

Operational Fund Cash Balance Procedural Directive 

. The chief financial officer shall manage the district's finances and take appropriate action to ensure an 
operational fund cash balance of at least five-percent {5%) of the current year's budgeted operating 
expenditures for any given fiscal year. 

District finances shall be managed to accumulate and maintain an operational fund cash balance of at 
least five-percent {5%) of the current year's budgeted operating expenditures by the end of fiscal year 
2014, or June 30, 2014, and thereafter. 

Upon accumulation of the operating fund cash balance of at least five-percent (5%), the operating fund 
cash balance may only be drawn down below that level under the following circumstances: 

a. An unexpected loss of revenue which includes, but is not limited to a mid-year reduction in 
operational revenues from the New Mexico Legislature and/or the New Mexico Public Education 
Department which were not included in the final approved budget, or 

b. Approval from the Board of Education for a non-budgeted expenditure. 
c. Upon approval from the New Mexico Public Education Department through a budget adjustment 

request. In an emergency, the chief financial officer may spend the operational fund cash balance 
prior to approval of the budget adjustment request. 

Upon receiving any indication that the operating fund cash balance may not equal at least five-percent 
{5%) at any point within a rolling five-year financial forecast period, the chief financial officer shall 
immediately report the information to the superintendent and the Board of Education. It shall be the 
responsibility of the chief financial officer to provide recommendations to the superintendent and the 
Board of Education that may assist in accumulating and maintaining the operating fund cash balance as 
outlined in this procedural directive. 

Net Position: In June 2011, GASB issued GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows 
of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position {GASB 63), effective for the District's fiscal 
year beginning July 1, 2012. GASB 63 modifies the presentation of deferred inflows and deferred outflows 
in the financial statements; it also limits the use of the term "deferred." Implementation of GASB 63 had 
no effect on the District's net position or changes in net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

The government-wide statements utilize a net position presentation categorized as follows: 

Net investment in capital assets - This category reflects the portion of net position that are associated with 
capital assets less outstanding capital asset related debt. 

Restricted Net Position - For the government-wide statement of net position, net position is reported as 
restricted when constraints placed on net asset used are either: 

1. Externally imposed by creditors {such as debt covenants), granters, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments; or 

2. Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position - This category reflects net position of the District not restricted for any project 
or other purpose. 
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The District's policy is to apply restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. The District's restricted fund balances 
for student instructional materials, pupil transportation and capital projects on Exhibit B-1 represent those 
imposed by law through enabling legislation. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, 
assigned, and/or unassigned amounts of funding are available, funds are applied in that respective order. 

lnterfund Transactions: Reciprocal and non-reciprocal transactions are accounted for as revenues, 
expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund from 
expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as 
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/ expenses in the fund 
that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, except reciprocal and non-reciprocal transactions and 
reimbursements, are reported as transfers. 

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Estimates in these financial statements include the District's estimate of useful lives for determining 
accumulated depreciation and depreciation expense, an estimate of accrued interest, estimates of 
worker's compensation and health insurance claims and an estimate on property taxes receivable. 

Revenues 
Program revenues: In the Statement of Activities, program revenues derive directly from the program 
itself or from parties outside the District's taxpayer or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues reduce the 
cost of the function to be financed from the District's general revenues. Program revenues are categorized 
as (a) charges for services, which includes revenues collected for cafeteria fees and lost books, etc., (b) 
program-specific operating grants, which includes revenues received from state and federal sources such 
as Title I and IDEA-B funding to be used as specified within each program grant agreement, and (c) 
program-specific capital grants and contributions, which include revenues from state sources such as SB-9 
and HB-33 funding to be used for capital projects. 

State Equalization Guarantee: School districts in the State of New Mexico receive a 'state equalization 
guarantee distribution' which is defined as "that amount of money distributed to each school district to 
insure that the school district's operating revenue, including its local and federal revenues as defined (in 
Chapter 22, Section 825, NMSA 1978) is at least equal to the school district's program cost. 

A school district's program costs are determined through the use of various formulas using 'program units' 
which take into consideration 1) early childhood education; 2) basic education; 3) special education; 4) 
bilingual-multicultural education; 5) size, etc. Payment is made from the public school fund under the 
authority of the Director of Public School Finance. The District received $612,562,319 in state equalization 
guarantee distributions during the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Tax Revenues: The District receives mill levy and ad valorem tax revenues primarily for debt service and 
capital outlay purposes. Tax revenues are recognized for governmental purposes when they are assessed 
and for fund purposes when they are measurable and available. The District records only the portion of 
the taxes considered to be 'measurable' and 'available'. Descriptions of the individua.1 debt service and 
capital outlay funds contained in these financial statements include information regarding the authority 
for the collection and use of these taxes. 
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Property taxes: An enforceable lien is attached on property as of January 1". Tax notices are sent to 
property owners by November 1" of each year, to be paid in whole or in two installments by November 
10•h and April 101

" of each year. The County collects County, City, and School taxes and distributes some to 
each fund once per month. 

Pupil Transportation Distribution: School districts in the State of New Mexico receive student 
transportation distributions. The transportation distribution is allocated to each school district in 
accordance with formulas developed by the State Transportation Director and the Director of Public 
School Finance. The funds shall be used only for the purpose of making payments to each school district 
for the to-and-from school transportation costs of students in grades K through twelve attending public 
school within the school district. Allocations received from the State for the year ended June 30, 2014 
totaled $19,475,331; $19,470,668 from State Transportation Distribution funds and $4,663 for 
administrative fees collected on Charter School Transportation allocations. 

Instructional Materials: The New Mexico State Public Education Department (PED) receives federal 
mineral leasing funds from which it makes annual allocations to the various school districts for the 
purchase of educational materials. Of each allocation, fifty percent is restricted to the requisition of 
materials listed on the State Board of Education's "State Adopted Instructional Material" list, while fifty 
percent of each allocation is available for purchases directly from vendors. Allocations received from the 
State for the year ended June 30, 2014 totaled $5,117,784. 

SB-9 State Match: The Director shall distribute to any school district that has imposed a tax under the 
Public School Capital Improvements Act (22-25-1 to 22-25-10, NMSA 1978) an amount from the public 
school capital improvements fund that is equal to the amount by which the revenue estimated to be 
received from the imposed tax as specified in Subsection B of Section 22-25-3, NMSA 1978, assuming a 
one hundred percent collection rate, is less than an amount calculated by multiplying the product 
obtained by the rate imposed in the District under the Public School Capital Improvements Act. The 
distribution shall be made by December 1" of each year that the tax is imposed, in accordance with 
Section 22-25-3, NMSA 1978. However, in the event that sufficient funds are not available in the public 
school capital improvements fund to make the state distribution provided for in this section, the dollar per 
program unit figure shall be reduced as necessary. 

Public School Capital Outlay: Under the provisions of Chapter 22, Article 24, a public school capital outlay 
fund was created. The money in the fund may be used only for capital expenditures deemed by the public 
school capital outlay council necessary for an adequate educational program, and capital outlay 
expenditures are limited to the purchase, or construction of temporary or permanent classrooms. 

The council shall approve an application for grant assistance from the fund when the council determines 
that: 

1. A critical need exists requiring action; 

2. The residents of the school district have provided all available resources to the district to 
meet its capital outlay requirements; 

3. The school district has used its resources in a prudent manner; 

4. The District is in a county or counties which have participated in the reappraisal program 
and the reappraised values are on the tax rolls, or will be used for the tax year 1979 as 
certified by the property tax division; and 

5. The school district has provided insurance for buildings of the school district in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 13-5-3, NMSA 1978. 
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The council shall consider all applications for assistance from the fund and after public hearing shall either 
approve or deny the application. Applications for grant assistance shall only be accepted by the council 
after a district has complied with the provisions of this section. The council shall list all applications in 
order of priority and all allocations shall be made on a priority basis. Money in the fund shall be disbursed 
by warrant of the Department of Finance and Administration on vouchers signed by the Secretary of 
Finance and Administration following certification by the council that the application has been approved. 

Allocation of Indirect Expenses: The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of 
Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. The District does not 
currently employ indirect cost allocation systems. Depreciation expense not charged to a specific function 
is identified as unallocated on the Statement of Activities. Interest on general long-term debt is 
considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. 

Federal Grants: The District receives revenues from various Federal departments (both direct and 
indirect), which are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. These programs are reported 
as Special Revenue Funds. Each program operates under its own budget, which has been approved by the 
Federal Department or the flow through agency (usually the State of New Mexico Public Education 
Department). The various budgets are approved by the Local School Board and the New Mexico State 
Public Education Department. Amounts received or receivable from granter agencies are subject to audit 
and adjustment by granter agencies, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions 
precedent. to the granting of funds. Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as a result of these 
audits is not believed to be material. 

The District also receives reimbursements under the National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs for its 
food services operations, and the distributions of commodities through the New Mexico Human Services 
Department. The value of commodities received for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $1, 719,109 and is 
reported in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards under the Department of Agriculture 
Commodities Program, CFDA number 10.550. Commodities are recorded as revenues and expenditures in 
the food service fund. 

Budgetary Information 
The following procedures are utilized to establish the District budget: 

1. Subsequent to January 31, and prior to June 1, the Superintendent submits to the District's 
Board of Education a proposed budget for the fiscal year which commences on July 1. The 
budget includes an estimate of revenues and a proposed expenditure plan. 

2. The proposed budget is presented at meetings subject to the Open Meetings Act of New 
Mexico, and the public is invited to comment. 

3. The District is required to submit to the State of New Mexico, Public Education Department 
School Budget & Financial Analysis Unit (SBFAU) a balanced budget for the fiscal year which 
commences on July 1. 

4. Based on criteria set by the SBFAU, the District undergoes either a formal technical review 
of the proposed budget or a more informal phone review each year. Subsequent to this 
review, the local Board approves a budget resolution to adopt the proposed budget subject 
to any technical adjustments by SBFAU. The final budget as approved by SBFAU is provided 
to the Board for information purposes only. 
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5. The budget is adjusted throughout the fiscal year based upon changes in programmatic 
needs. All intra-function transfers (adjustments within a function) of budget amounts are 
approved by site administrators and then if over $10,000 by control agents. These 
adjustments are then submitted to the Board of Education for final approval. Inter-function 
transfers (transfers between functions) include the same level of approvals, but require 
additional approval by the SBFAU. Budgetary control. is at the function level; over
expenditure of a function is not allowed per NMAC 6.20.2.9.A. 

6. Budgets for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital Projects Funds are 
adopted on a basis consistent with the "Manual of Procedures for Uniform Financial 
Accounting and Budgeting for School Districts". Budgetary amounts for the Debt Service 
Fund are based upon the issuance of general obligation bonds. 

7. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the SBFAU. 

For budgetary purposes, expenditures include amounts paid in the fiscal year, adjusted for the effects of 
liabilities paid within ten days of fiscal year-end and unpaid salaries and benefits attributable to services 
provided during the school year. The Board of Education must approve amendments to the appropriated 
budget when the budgeted fund balance differs from the actual fund balance at the end of the fiscal year. 
New Mexico state law prohibits a Governmental Agency from exceeding the appropriated budget. 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GMP Budgetary 
Basis) and Actual present comparisons of the legally adopted budget with actual data on a budgetary 
basis. 

Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ 
significantly from those used to present financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles, a reconciliation of resultant basis, perspective, equity and timing differences in the 
excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources of financial resources for the year ended June 30, 2014 
is presented with each fund's Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual (Non-GMP Budgetary Basis). 

Budgetary comparisons are presented in the balanced presentation format whereby the excess 
(deficiency) of revenues over expenditures is reflected as Beginning Fund Balance for budgetary purposes. 
The major differences between the budgetary basis and the GMP basis are: 

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible 
to accrual (GMP); and 

2. Generally, expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when 
susceptible to accrual (GAAP). However, budgetary expenditures include amounts for 
salaries and benefits attributable to services provided during the fiscal year. The non
budgeted accounts and funds primarily consist of the adjustment to record the USDA 
commodity allocation. 

NOTE 2. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

State statutes authorize the investment of District funds in a wide variety of instruments including 
certificates of deposit and other similar obligations, state investment pool, money market accounts, and 
United States Government obligations. All invested funds of the District properly followed State 
investment requirements as of June 30, 2014. 

Deposits of funds may be made in interest or non-interest bearing checking accounts, in one or more 
banks or savings and loan associations within the geographical boundaries of the District. Deposits may 
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be made to the extent that they are insured by an agency of the United States, or by collateral deposited 
as security, or by bond given by the financial institution. 

Amounts reported as Agency Funds in Exhibit E-1 represent amounts held by individual school locations 
and departments. These funds are used to finance non-curricular activities augmenting but not replacing 
activities provided through funding provided by the District. 

The rate of interest in non-demand interest-bearing accounts shall be set by the State Board of Finance, 
but in no case shall the rate of interest be less than one hundred percent of the asked price on United 
States treasury bills of the same maturity on the day of deposit. 

Excess of funds may be temporarily invested in securities which are issued by the State or by the United 
States Government, or by their departments or agencies, and which are either direct obligations of the 
State or the United States, or are backed by the full faith and credit of those governments. 

The collateral pledged is listed on Schedule II of this report. The types of collateral allowed are limited to 
direct obligations of the United States Government and all bonds issued by any agency, district, or political 
subdivision of the State of New Mexico. 

According to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, public unit deposits are funds owned by the 
public unit. Time deposits, savings deposits, and interest bearing NOW accounts of a public unit in an 
institution in the same state will be insured up to $250,000 in aggregate. 

Cash Reconciliation 

Cash Per Government-wide Statement of Net Position: 

Unresl'iclld cash - Slallment of net posilon 

Current Reslriclld cash - Slallment of net posilon 

Noncurrent Reslriclld cash - Slallment of net position 

Tolal cash & cash equivalents per Government-wide Slallmentof Net Position 

Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet Reconciliation 

Cash and cash equivalents per Exhibit A-1 

lnllrnal Service Fund cash 

Tolal cash & cash equivalents per Governmenlal Funds Balance Sheet per ExhibltB-1 

Deposits 

$ 123,339,650 

92,172,438 

176,392,814 

$ 391,904,902 

$ 391,904,902 

(45,216,879) 

$ 346,688,023 

NM State Statutes require collateral pledged for deposits in excess of the federal deposit insurance to be 
delivered, or a joint safekeeping receipt be issued, to the Schools for at least one half of the amount on 
deposit with institution. The schedule listed below will meet the State of New Mexico, Office of the State 
Auditor's requirements in reporting the insured portion of the deposits. Cash and cash equivalents 
consists of the following atJune 30, 2014: 
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Deposits 
Bank of NM Educators Agency 

Wells Fargo America FCU Funds Total Deposits 

T o<il deposil; $ 368,409,244 $ 29,947,265 $ 5,483 $ 5,839,558 $ 404,201,550 

FDIC coverage 250,000 250,000 250,000 5,839,558 6,589,558 

T o<il uninsured public l.mds 368, 159,244 29,697,265 397,856,509 

CoUaleral requirement 1 184,079,622 14,848,633 198,928,255 

Pledged securey 397,136,247 37,957,534 435,093,781 

To<il under (over) collaleralized $(213,056,625) $ (23,108,901) $ $ $(236, 165,526) 

1 Collateral req~remeot 50% of u~nsllfed public funds. Due to current economic coOOtions APS requires all Finoocial instillloos to pmvoo 

102% collaleral. 

Custodial Credit Risk- Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk, 
other than following state statutes as put forth in the Public Money Act (Section 6-10-1 to 6-10-63, NMSA 
1978). At June 30, 2014, $397,856,509 of the District's bank balance of $404,201,550 was exposed to 
custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank's trust department was 
not in the District's name. 

Interest rate risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of the District's investments. The District's investment policy indicates that the District is to attempt 
to secure a maximum yield of investment earnings to supplement other revenues for the support of the 
District. The District only invests in securities allowed under Section 6-10-10 NMSA 1978. 

NOTE 3. Receivables 

Accounts receivable are recorded in the various governmental funds. They consist of amounts receivable 
from local governments relating to various grant agreements and property taxes receivable. 

Accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectables. Accounts receivable in excess of 
180 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectables. Restricted Accounts 
Receivables of $60,079,891 consist of those receivables related to special revenues, amounts due from 
other governments for special revenue and capital outlay funds, and property tax receivables. 

Receivables as of June 3012014 are as follows: 

Food Title I IDEA·B 

Receivables General Services IASA Entitlement 

Property laxes s 619,943 $ $ $ 

I nl>'ga/ emnenlal grant 1,003,366 19,002,855 7,760,610 

Oller 2,310,856 

Less alkmance b' uncollecibles (21,804) 

Tollls by l.J!ld $ 2,008,995 $ 1,003,366 $ 19,002,855 $ 7,760,610 

Capital Capital Other 

Improvements Improvements Debt Governmental 
HB-33 SB-9 Service Total 

Property laxes $ 6,778,827 $ 3,153,439 $ 6,759,484 $ 568,649 s 17,880,342 
lnl>'ga/emme111al grant 2,010,913 13,247,669 43,025,413 
Oller 2,310,856 
Less alkmance ill' uocolleclbles (21,804) 

Tollls by l.J!ld $ 6,778,827 $ 5,164,352 $ 6,759,484 $ 13,816,318 $ 63, 194,807 

Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 
Financial Report June 30, 2014 Page 36 



Financial Section 

NOTE 4. Inventories 

Components ofin..entorybalances are as follows: 

Instructional 

M&O 

Food Items 

Total 

NOTE 5. Accrued Expenses 

$ 601,173 
1,215,245 
1,296,424 

$ 3,112,842 

Accrued Expenses at June 30, 2014 consisted of: 

Salaries and benefits payable $ 65,911,586 

Other Liabilities 85,130 

$ 65,996, 716 

NOTE 6. lnterfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

Generally, these inter-fund receivables and payables are generated when a fund incurs an expense and 
is waiting for reimbursement from the grantor. The balance represents the amount of cash provided by 
the General Fund to cover the expense until payment is received. All of these balances are expected to 
be collected in the subsequent year. lnterfund transfers generally occur for two reasons; to correct the 
recording of expenses or revenue and to cover over-expenditures of Special Revenue Funds. There were 
no interfund transfers for the year as of June 30, 2014. 

Receivables and payables from interfund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below: 

Governmental Activities: 
Fund # Major Funds: 

11000 Operational Fund 

24101 me I !ASA 
24106 IOEA-B Entilement 

Nonmajor Funds: 
24109 Preschool IOEA-B 

24113 Education Of Homeless 

24115 IDEA-B Private School Share 
24119 21st Communily Learning Centers 

24120 IDEA-B Risk Pool 

24124 Title I 1003g Grant 

24138 IDEA-B Resulls Plan 

24153 English Language Acquisition 

24154 Teacher I Principal Training & Recrnting 

24162 Title I School Involvement 
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lnterfund Receivable lnterfund Payables 

$ 37,330,027 $ 
(18,760, 192) 

(7,471,718) 

(174,291) 
(51,587) 

(51,099) 
(202,809) 

(316,948) 

(642,643) 

(15,668) 
(745,351) 

(273,533) 

(939,421) 
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24171 Carl D. Perkins Special Projecls Current 
24174 Carl D. Perkins Secondary Current 

24176 Carl D. Perkins Secondary Redistribution 

24180 Carl D Perkins HSTW Current 
24182 Carl D Perkins HSTW Redislribulion 
25112 Collaborative Research and Development 
25131 Johnson O'Malley 
25173 School Leadership Program 

25184 Indian Education Formula Grant 
25215 Elementary School Counseling 

25217 Smaller Learning Communffies 

26118 ABEC Job Mentor lnslrucion 
27103 Dual Credit Instructional Materials 

27107 2012 GOB Public Schools Library Award 
27114 New Mexloo Reads br Lead K-3 
27116 Robotics Award 
27117 Technology br Education 

27122 Advanced Placement Stipend 

27138 Incentives br School lmprv Act 
27149 Pre-K lniHalive 

27150 Indian Education School D~lrict Initiative 
27155 Breakfast br Elemenlary Sl.Jdenls 

27166 Kindergarlln Three-Plus 
27171 2010 GOB lnslruclional Materials 
27183 NMGrownFW 

27184 New Teacher & School Leader Eva!. 
27185 Parlnership br Assessment of Reading br College & Careers 
28102 Graduation Reality & Dual Skills 

28106 School Wellness 
28131 New Mexloo Aris Division 

28180 Regional Quality Cenllr 
28191 Sia rt Smart K-3 Utah State University Sl.Jdy 
29102 Private Direct Gran ls ( CallgoricaQ 
29107 · City I County Granls 

31400 Special Capital Oulay - Slall 
31500 Special Capital Oulay - Federal 
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(21,356) 
(606,932) 

(53,274) 
(55,775) 

(6,822) 

(17,503) 
(59,808) 

(173,151) 

(335,615) 
(113,245) 

(441,865) 
(104,858) 

(47,858) 
(323,668) 

(49,093) 

(18,593) 
263,032 

(10,000) 
6,104 

(947,676) 
(19,192) 

(43,421) 

(2,037,756) 
(60, 199) 

(591) 
(52,419) 

(100,691) 

(48,081) 

93 
(7,007) 

934 
(247,061) 

9,059 

(616,124) 
(1,251,501) 

(92,854) 
37,609,249 $ (37,609,249) 
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NOTE 7. Capital Assets 
A summary of capital assets and changes occurring during the year ended June 30, 2014, including those 
changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, follows. Land is not subject to 
depreciation. 

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ 
613012013 Adjustments Adjustments 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital Assets not depreciated: 

land $ 53.293.112 $ $ $ 
Construction In Progress 149,634,002 83.049.410 (17,807) 

Tolal Capital Assets, not depreciated 202,927,114 83.049.410 (17,807) 

Land Improvements 129, 146.582 (231,296) 

Building and Building Improvements 1,605,839,631 

Equlpment, Furniture and Fixtures 63.596.967 2,126,922 (6,792.251) 

Intangibles 15,889,216 

Vehicles/Heavy Equipment 14,247,690 260.208 (9,911) 

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated 1.828,720.086 2,155,834 (6,802, 162) 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

land Improvements (81,269,544) (3,252,910) 

Building and Building Improvements (589,043.502) (63,623,076) 

Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures (54, 129,621) (3,610,446) 6.420,010 

Intangibles (15,889.216) 

Vehicles/Heavy Equipment (12,632,581) (409,348) 9.911 

Total accumulated depreciation (752,964,464) (70,895,780) 6,429,921 

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated net 1.075.755.622 (68, 739,946) (372.241) 

Governmental activities Capital assets, net $ 1,278.682.736 $ 14,309,464 $ (390,048) $ 

De preci a ti on expense for the year ended June 30,2014 \Vas charged to govern mental activities 

as follo\vs: 

Instruction 

Support Seivices 

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 

Operation of Noninstructional Seivices 

Unallocated 
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$ 438,406 
539,029 
41,525 

294,008 
69,582,812 

$ 70.895.780 

June 30, 2014 

Balance 
Transfers 613012014 

1,202,208 $ 54,495,320 

(125,808.375) 106,857,230 

(124,606, 167) 161,352,550 

14, 191,471 143,106,757 

110,414,696 1, 716,254,327 

58,931.638 

15,889,216 

14,497,987 

124,606, 167 1,948,679,925 

(84.522,454) 

(652,666,578) 

(51,320,057) 

(15,889,216) 

(13,032,018) 

(817 ,430,323) 

124,606, 167 1, 131.249.602 

$ 1,292,602.152 
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NOTE 8. Long-term Debt 

During the year ended June 30, 2014 the following changes occurred in the liabilities reported in the 
government-wide statement of net position: 

Balance Balance Current Long-term 

6130/2013 Additions Deletions 6/30/2014 Portion Debt 

General Obligation Bonds $482,748,435 $ 43,400,000 $ 35,371,792 $ 490,776,643 $ 44, 161,792 $446,614,851 
Prelliums 17,804,430 2,585,024 2,346,026 18,043,428 2,386,842 15,656,586 

Subtotal 500,552,865 45,985,024 37,717,818 508,820,071 46,548,634 462,271,437 
Education Technology Notes 27,310,000 11,915,000 15,395,000 5,745,000 9,650,000 

Prelliums 972,941 423,898 549,043 423,898 125, 145 
Subtotal 28,282,941 12,338,898 15,944,043 6,168,898 9,775, 145 

DATA Lease Purchase 2,743,494 81,903 2,661,591 106,648 2,554,943 

Coll'jlensated Absences 3~884,293 3,679,813 3,586,601 3,977,505 1,325,835 2,651,670 
Estimated Claims Liability 29,776,690 95,611,926 98, 153,289 27,235,327 13,338,872 13,896,455 
OPES Obligation 316,763 333,080 186,564 463,279 463,279 

Total $ 562,813,552 $148,353,337 $152,065,073 $559,101,816 $ 67,488,887 $491,612,929 

Compensated absences are paid from the same funds from which the employees are paid. Totals above 
include current portions and long-term portions. 

Bonds are secured by the District's full faith and credit and are general obligations of the District payable 
from ad valorem taxes to be levied, without limitation as to rate or amount, against all taxable property 
within the District. Debt service debt requirements are liquidated as property taxes are received and debt 
service principal and interest payments become due. They are paid primarily from the General Fund and 
Debt Service Fund. Interest on all issues is payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1. Principal is 
payable annually on August 1. The proceeds of the bonds are being used for the purpose of erecting, 
remodeling, making additions to and furnishing school buildings, and purchasing and improving school 
grounds. 

On September 24, 2013 APS sold $43.4 million in General Obligation Bonds as part of the $225 million 
authorization approved by voters in February 2010. This funding will be used for capital project needs 
throughout the District. This sale is the final installment of the $225 million authorization approved by 
voters in February 2010. 

DATA Lease Purchase 
On August 23, 2013 the District entered into a twenty year $2.7 million financing agreement with the New 
Mexico Finance Authority for the purchase of property to be used by and leased to Digital Arts & 
Technology Academy, a New Mexico charter school authorized by the District. 

Arbitrage/Yield Reduction 
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage restrictions with respect to the issuance of tax
exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage regulations deal with the investment of all tax exempt 
bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the interest yield paid to bondholders. Generally, all 
interest paid to bondholders can be retroactively rendered taxable if applicable rebates are not reported 
and paid to the United States Treasury at least every five years. The District did not have any arbitrage 
liability at June 30, 2014. 
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Bond proceeds may be invested in higher yielding investments only during a temporary period described 
in Regulation section 1.148-2(e). After expiration of an applicable temporary period, proceeds must be 
yield restricted. 

Long term debt issued and outstanding at June 30, 2014 are as follows: 

Date of Issue Original Issue Amount Outstanding Interest Rates Final Maturity Date 
Bonds 
August 22, 2001 $ 50,850,000 $ 4.00-5.00% 8/1/2016 
Sepllrrl:ler 21, 2004 28,010,000 3.00-4.125% 8/1/2020 
Decerrl:ler 29, 2004 4,625,000 1,446,315 8/1/2020 
February 22, 2005 21,375,000 3.00-4.50% 8/1/2014 
January 17, 2006 7,160,000 2,595,328 8/1/2020 
Ocbber 10, 2006 63,980,000 7,105,000 4.00- 5.00% 8/1/2021 
Decerrl:ler27,2007 75,000,000 42,450,000 4.00- 5.00% 8/1/2022 
Sepllrrl:ler 9, 2008 134,000,000 102,000,000 4.00- 5.00% 8/1/2023 
May 19, 2009 124,700,000 87,600,000 3.50 - 5.00% . 8/1/2022 
Ocbber 20, 2009 14,300,000 14,300,000 8/1/2024 
Noverrl:ler10,2009 16,800,000 14,065,000 3.00 - 5.00% 8/1/2018 
Sepllrrl:ler 22, 2010 85,410,000 70,500,000 1.50 - 3.0% 8/1/2021 
Sepllrrl:ler 22, 2010 32,690,000 32,690,000 4.5% 8/1/2027 
Sepllrrl:ler 22, 2010 31,900,000 31,900,000 4.0 - 4.15% 8/1/2024 
May 24, 2011 8,940,000 5,485,000 2.0- 4.0% 8/1/2016 
August2, 2012 39,670,000 35,240,000 2.00 - 5.00% 8/1/2021 
Sepllrrl:ler 24, 2013 43,400,000 43,400,000 2.00- 5.00% 8/1/2029 

2011 Educational Technology Notes 
May 24, 2011 $ 18,600,000 $ 9,745,000 4.0- 5.0% 8/1/2015 
August29,2012 13,000,000 5,650,000 1.00 - 2.00% 8/1/2017 

2013 DATA Lease Purchase Loan 
August23, 2013 $ 2,743,494 $ 2,661,591 0.55 -4.7% 6/1/2033 

The annual requirements to amortize the Long term debt as of June 30, 2014, including interest payments 
are as follows: 
General Obligation Bonds 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 

2015 
2016 

2017 

2018 
2019 
2020-2024 

2025-2030 

Tolals $ 
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Principal Interest Total Debt Service 
44,161,792 18,795,837 62,957,629 

40,481,792 17,329,088 57,810,880 
40,716,792 15,827, 138 56,543,930 

38,841,792 14,261,038 53,102,830 

50,776,792 12,645,213 63,422,005 
181,007,683 36,394,780 217,402,463 
94,790,000 8,333,475 103,123,475 

490, 776,643 $ 123,586,569 $ 614,363,212 
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Educational Technology Notes 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total Debt Service 

2015 5,745,000 440,025 6,185,025 

2016 5,750,000 190,750 5,940,750 

2017 1,950,000 43,750 1,993,750 

2018 1,950,000 14,625 1,964,625 

2019 

Tolals $ 15,395,000 s 689,150 $ 16,084,150 

2013 DATA Lease Purchase Loan 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total Debt Service 

2015 106,648 100,245 206,893 

2016 107,677 99,216 206,893 

2017 109,115 97,778 206,893 

2018 110,900 95,994 206,894 

2019 113,357 93,537 206,894 
2020-2024 621,939 412,528 1,034,467 

2025-2030 1,491,955 370,082 1,862,037 

Tolals $ 2,661,591 $ 1,269,380 $ 3,930,971 

Compensated Absences -Administrative employees of the District are able to accrue a limited amount of 
vacation and other compensatory time during the year. During the fiscal year June 30, 2014, 
compensated absences increased $93,212 from the prior year accrual. See Note 1 for more details. 

Operating Leases - The District leases various equipment under short-term cancelable operating leases. 
Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was$ 2,292,397. 

NOTE9 Property Taxes 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied each year on 
July 1, on the taxable valuation of property located in the District as of the preceding January 1. The 
taxable valuations for the various classes of property are determined by the Bernalillo and Sandoval 
Counties Assessors and the State of New Mexico Department of Taxation and Revenue at one-third of 
assessed valuation. Property in the District for the fiscal year 2014 tax levy had a taxable value of 
$ 14,757,199,050. 

The rate of taxes for operating purposes for all taxing jurisdictions is limited by the State Constitution to 
20 mills ($20 per $1,000 assessed valuation) of which the District's House Bill 33 portion, by state 
regulation, is limited to 15 mills. Taxes are payable in two equal installments due on November 10 and 
April 10 and become delinquent after 30 days. 

Unavailable Revenue and Property Taxes Receivable at June 30, 2014 are as follows: 

Unavailable Revenue Current Portion Accounts 

Current Taxes Delinquent Taxes Total Delinquent Taxes Receivable 

General Fund $ 187,765 $ 379,648 $ 567,413 $ 52,530 $ 619,943 
Capital Projects 2,870,406 6,186,774 9,057,180 875,086 9,932,266 
Debt Service 2,207,606 4,485,544 6,693, 150 634,983 7,328, 133 
Total $ 5,265,777 $ 11,051,966 $ 16,317,743 $ 1,562,599 $ 17,880,342 
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The District has calculated property taxes by multiplying the tax levy by the taxable value, reducing that 
amount by actual collections, and recording the difference as unavailable revenue. Delinquent property 
taxes are estimated based on the various mill levies, as the split between funds is not available from the 
taxing districts. The amount estimated at June 30, 2014 for delinquent taxes is $11,051,966 and is 
recorded as unavailable revenue. 

NOTE 10. Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles require as part of the Combined Statements disclosure of 
certain information concerning individual funds including excess of expenditures over appropriations. The 
following funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Major Fund 

41000 Debt Service $ 41,580 

Nonmajor Funds 
27175 lnnovatii.e Solutions for Struggling Schools 12,776 

28191 Start Smart K-3 Utah State Univ Study 11,365 

24,141 

Total $ 65,721 

NOTE 11. ERA Pension Plan 

Plan Description: 

Substantially all of the District's full-time employees participate in a public employee retirement system 
authorized under the Educational Retirement Act (Chapter 22, Article 11, NMSA 1978). The Educational 
Retirement Board (ERB) is the administrator of the plan, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit retirement plan. The plan provides for retirement benefits, disability benefits, survivor benefits 
and cost-of-living adjustments to plan members (certified teachers, and other employees of State public 
school districts, colleges and universities) and beneficiaries. ERB issues a separate, publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan. 
That report may be obtained by writing to ERB, P.O. Box 26129, Santa Fe, NM 87502. The report is also 
available on ERB's website at www.nmerb.org. 

Funding Policy. 

Member Contributions 

Plan members earning $2.0,000 or less annually are required by statute to contribute 7 .9% of their gross 
salary. Plan members earning over $20,000 annually were required to contribute to the plan 10.1% of 
their gross salary in fiscal year 2014; and 10.7% of their gross salary in fiscal year 2015 and thereafter. 

Employer Contributions 
In fiscal year 2014, the District was required to contribute 13.15% of the gross covered salary for all 
eligible employees. Starting in fiscal year 2015, the District will contribute 13.9% for all eligible 
employees. 
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The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established in State statute under 
Chapter 22, Article 11, NMSA 1978 .. The requirements may be amended by acts of the legislature. The 
District's contributions to ERB for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $58,670,818 
$52,217,878, $45,658,413 and respectively, which equal the amount of the required contributions for 
each fiscal year. 

NOTE 12. Post-Employment Benefits 

State Retiree Health Care Act: 

Plan Description: The District contributes to the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Fund, a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan administered by the New Mexico 
Retiree Health Care Authority (RHCA). The RHCA provides health care insurance and prescription drug 
benefits to retired employees of participating New Mexico government agencies, their spouses, 
dependents, and surviving spouses and dependents. The RHCA Board was established by the Retiree 
Health Care Act (Chapter 10, Article 7C, NMSA 1978). The Board is responsible for establishing and 
amending benefit provisions of the healthcare plan and is also authorized to designate optional and/or 
voluntary benefits like dental, vision, supplemental life insurance, and long-term care policies. 

Eligible retirees are: 1) retirees who make contributions to the fund for at least five years prior to 
retirement and whose eligible employer during that period of time made contributions as a participant in 
the RHCA plan on the person's behalf unless that person retires before the employer's RHCA effective 
date, in which event the time period required for employee and employer contributions shall become the 
period of time between the employer's effective date and the date of retirement; 2) retirees defined by 
the Act who retired prior to July 1, 1990; 3) former legislators who served at least two years; and 4) 
former governing authority members who served at least four years. 

The RHCA issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the post-employment healthcare plan. That report and further 
information can be obtained by writing to the Retiree Health Care Authority at 4308 Carlisle NE, Suite 104, 
Albuquerque, NM 87107. 
Funding Policy: 

The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-13 NMSA 1978) authorizes the RHCA Board to establish the 
monthly premium contributions that retirees are required to pay for healthcare benefits. Each 
participating retiree pays a monthly premium according to a service based subsidy rate schedule for the 
medical plus basic life plan plus an additional participation fee of five dollars if the eligible participant 
retired prior to the employer's RHCA effective date or is a former legislator or former governing authority 
member. Former legislators and governing authority members are required to pay 100% of the insurance 
premium to cover their claims and the administrative expenses of the plan. The monthly premium rate 
schedule can be obtained from the RHCA or viewed on their website at www.nmrhca.state.nm.us. 

The employer, employee and retiree contributions are required to be remitted to the RHCA on a monthly 
basis. The statutory requirements for the employer and employee contributions can be changed by the 
New Mexico State Legislature. Employers that choose to become participating employers after January 1, 
1998 are required to make contributions to the RHCA fund in the amount determined to be appropriate 
by the board. 

The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-15 NMSA 1978) is the statutory authority that establishes the 
required contributions of participating employers and their employees. For employees that were 
members of an enhanced retirement plan (state police and adult correctional officer member coverage 
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plan 1; municipal police member coverage plan 3, 4 or 5; municipal fire member coverage plan 3, 4 of 5; 
municipal detention officer member coverage plan 1; and members pursuant to the Judicial Retirement 
Act) during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the statute required each participating employer to 
contribute 2.5% of each participating employee's annual salary; and each participating employee was 
required to contribute 1.25% of their salary. For employees that were not members of an enhanced 
retirement plan during the fiscal yea'r ended June 30, 2014, the statute required each participating 
employer to contribute 2.0% of each participating employee's annual salary; each participating employee 
was required to contribute 1.0% of their salary. In addition, pursuant to Section 10-7C-15(G) NMSA 1978, 
at the first session of the Legislature following July 1, 2013, the legislature shall review and adjust the 
distributions pursuant to Section 7-1-6.1NMSA1978 and the employer and employee contributions to the 
authority in order to ensure the actuarial soundness of the benefits provided under the Retiree Health 
Care Act. 

The District's contributions to the RHCA for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were 
$9,125,695, $9,553,387, and $8,426,387 , respectively, which equal the required contributions for each 
year. 

Post-Employment Life Insurance Benefits and Required Supplementary Information: 

Plan Description: The District's Postemployment Life Insurance Plan is a single employer defined benefit 
plan administered by the District that provides Basic Life Insurance to a frozen group of employees who 
retired prior to July 1, 2000. Insurance benefits are authorized by a resolution from the District's Board of 
Education. This amount is equal to $1,000, increased by $200 as of each anniversary of employment, 
subject to a maximum benefit of $4,000. A fully-insured premium rate of $1.830/$1,000 is charged; the 
retirees make a 100% contribution toward this coverage. The number of retirees covered as of July 1, 
2014 was 1,385 and the present value of coverage was $2,873,680. 

Optional Life Insurance is also offered to those employees who retired prior to July 31, 2001. The fully
insured premium rates are age-banded. Effective January 1, 2014 eligible retirees pay 100% of all life 
insurance premiums. The number of retirees covered as of July 1, 2014 was 2,161 and retiree 
contributions were $606,402. The District recognizes the cost of providing the life insurance benefits by 
charging the insurance premiums to expenditures. Life insurance benefits are paid through premiums to 
Standard Life Insurance Company under an indemnity plan. The District's Board is responsible for 
establishing and amending benefit provisions of the Post Employment Life Insurance Plan. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Annual Required Contribution: The major component of the annual OPEB cost is 
the annual required contribution (ARC). The ARC is the sum of the normal cost and the amortization of 
the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is amortized over the 
average life expectancy for the retired population of nine years. The ARC for APS's postemployment 
benefit plan for the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 is $363,075 which is comprised of the Annual 
Amortization Payment (plus interest) of $323,577 and adjustment to ARC of $39,498. 
The other components of the annual OPEB cost are one year's interest on the net OPEB obligation 
(defined below) at the beginning of the year and adjustment to the ARC. The adjustment to the ARC is the 
discounted present value of the net OPEB obligation at the beginning of the year. 

The following tables provide the annual required contribution {"ARC") for the period July 1, 2013 to 
June 30, 2014 and an estimate of the net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2014. 
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Post-Employment Benefit Plan 
Annual Required Contribution(ARC) 
Normal Cost $ 
Interest on Normal Cost 

Amortization Payment 318,830 
Adjustment to ARC 39,498 
Interest on Amortization Payment 4,747 
Total $ 363,075 

NET OPEB OBLIGATION 
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of year $ 316,763 

ARC $ 363,075 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 9,503 
Adjustment to ARC (39,498) 
Annual OPEB Cost $ 333,080 
Employer Contributions (186,564) 
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation $ 146,516 

Net OPEB Obligation-End of Year $ 463,279 

Percentage of OPEB Cost Contributed 56.01% 

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net 
OPEB obligation for 2014 and the two preceding years were as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost % of Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB 
Contributed Obligation 

06/30/2012 $1,008,041 93.52% $284,924 

06/30/2013 946,935 96.64% 316,763 

06/30/2014 333,080 56.01% 463,279 

Methods and Assumptions: 

GASB 45 allows the use of one of several actuarial cost methods. These cost methods allocate the OPEB 
costs differently. The method used in this valuation is the Projected Unit Credit Method. The valuation 
results are developed assuming a discount rate of 3% and an amortization period of 9 years. Under GASB 
45, the discount rate to be used for the valuation is determined based on the long term investment yield 
on the investments used to finance the payment of benefits. For this valuation it is assumed that 
postemployment benefits are paid from general assets which generally consist of short-term investments. 

The participation assumption is the assumed percentage of future retirees that participate and enroll in 
the life insurance plan. The participation assumption used in this valuation is 100%. 

Funded Status: 

The actuarial accrued liability is the present value of future benefits which is attributable to past service. 
The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is the difference between the actuarial accrued liability and the 
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actuarial value of plan assets. There are no plan assets. The most recent valuation includes an Actuarial 
Accrued Liability and unfunded Actuarial Liability of $2,873,680. Amortization of unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability is a Level Dollar amount and the period used for amortization of unfunded balances is 
closed. The closed plan is for retired employees. The plan is considered pay-as-you-go. 

NOTE 13. Contingent Liabilities 

A number of legal claims are presently pending against the District. It is the opinion of the District's 
management, after consulting with outside legal counsel, that final settlement of these matters will not 
exceed estimated defense and liability accruals, and will not result in any material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the District. 

The District receives revenues from various Federal and State grant programs, which are subject to review 
and approval as to allowable expenditures by the respective grantor agencies. Any settlements or 
expenditures arising from a final review are recognized in the period agreed upon by the agency and the 
District. 

Commitments: 

Albuquerque Public Schools contracts with outside vendors for construction and renovation of various 
facilities. At June 30, 2014, commitments and encumbrances outstanding for capital projects totaled 
$63,993,743. 

NOTE 14. Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and injuries to employees. APS established a self-insurance fund to conduct these 
risks and administers its own employee benefit and risk management programs as a self-insured program. 
APS purchases specific excess insurance. There is a self-insured retention (per occurrence) of $550,000 for 
workers compensation, $350,000 for liability and $250,000 for property. APS is subject to tort immunities. 
School board errors and omissions have $350,000 retention. APS believes its main exposure to risk of loss 
is in the category of liability claims. Any loss exceeding the deductible of $350,000 would be covered 
under the purchased excess loss policy. Losses in the mentioned categories are the subject of insurance 
and/or actuarially reviewed retentions. APS has not incurred any losses in excess of coverage during the 
past 4 years. The claims liabilities reported in the Risk Management Fund are based on the requirements 
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims 
be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable 
that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss. can be 
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported 
(IBNRs). The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends on 
many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards. Accordingly, 
claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends 
(including frequency and amount of pay-outs), and other economic factors. The actuarial review validated 
that the current reserves are adequate for reserves in anticipation of adverse developments in reported 
cases and for claims which may have occurred but have not yet been reported. 

Liabilities for estimated claims for the last two years are summarized below. Liabilities at June 30, 2014 for 
health, dental and vision are stated at 90% confidence level plus 15% to provide for claims fluctuation 
margin in the event of catastrophic claims. Liability balances for worker's compensation and liability and 
property are stated at 90% confidence level. 
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Fiscal Year 2014 Balance 06/30/13 Additions Deletions Balance 06/30/14 

Liability and Property $ 6,869,459 $ 7,236,176 $ 7,771,538 $ 6,334,097 
Workers Compensation 11,802,231 4,353,235 3,898,733 12,256,733 
Health Claims 10,325,078 77,263,733 79,418,521 8,170,290 
Dental Claims 730,594 5,872,787 6,175,311 428,070 
Vlsion Claims 49,328 885,995 889,186 46,137 

$ 29,776,690 $95,611,926 $ 98, 153,289 $ 27,235,327 

Fiscal Year 2013 Balance 06/30/12 Additions Deletions Balance 06/30/13 
· Liability and Property $ 11,313,023 $ 1,226,150 $ 5,669,714 $ 6,869,459 

Workers Compensation 13,212,387 3,482,327 4,892,483 $ 11,802,231 

Health Claims 16,267,523 66,671,704 72,614,149 $ 10,325,078 
Dental Claims 3,355,796 3,288,177 5,913,379 $ 730,594 
Vlsion Claims 595,770 284,888 831,330 $ 49,328 

$ 44,744,499 $7 4,953,246 $ 89,921,055 $ 29,776,690 

NOTE 15. Subsequent Events 

On August 5, 2014, APS sold $75 million in General Obligation Notes and $ 15 million in General Obligation 
Education Technology Notes . This funding will be used to fund capital project and technology needs throughout 
the District. This sale is the first installment of the $200 million authorization approved by voters in February 
2013. On August 5, 2014 APS refunded general obligation bonds in the amount of $102.5 million with the 
issuance of $94.3 million in new debt. The bonds refunded are Series 2007, $27.5 million and Series 2008B, $ 75 
million. The net present value of the savings on this refunding was$ 6,954,336 or 6.788%. 

NOTE 16. Joint Powers Agreements 

1. The District has entered into Joint Powers Agreements with the City of Albuquerque (the City) to 
develop, improve and maintain Joint Use Parks for use by the city as public parks and by the District as 
public school grounds. The District has exclusive use of the facilities during regular school operating 
hours. At all other times, the City may use the facilities. The City currently has responsibility for the 
maintenance of 20 of these Joint Use Parks and charges the District for its 35% (approximately $200,000 
per year) share of the maintenance costs on a quarterly basis. 

2. The District entered into a Joint Powers Agreement with the City of Albuquerque (the City) on April 21, 
1976 for the construction and maintenance of an indoor swimming pool at Highland High School. The 
District paid approximately $300,000 and the City paid for the balance of the total design and 
construction cost of approximately $670,000. The City is responsible, at its sole expense, for the 
maintenance, operation, and custodial care of the facility. The District has first priority in using the 
facility during regular school hours during the regular school year and for a period of one and one half 
hours after regular school hours during the competitive swimming season. The City has the right to use 
the facility on a space available basis during this time. The District has second priority to use the facility 
for school related purposes at other times. The term of this agreement shall expire 75 years from the 
date of completion and acceptance of the facility. Upon termination, the City's rights in the facility shall 
cease and the District shall be the sole owner thereof . 

. 3. The District entered into a Joint Powers Agreement with the County of Bernalillo (the County) on March 
17, 1976 for the construction and maintenance of an indoor swimming pool at Rio Grande High School. 
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The County paid $250,000 and the District paid for the balance of the total design and construction cost 
of approximately $680,000. The County is responsible, at its sole expense, for the maintenance, 
operation and custodial care of the facility. The District has first priority in using the facility during 
regular school hours during the regular school year and for a period of one and one half hours after 
regular school hours during the competitive swimming season. The County has the right to use the 
facility on a space available basis during this time. The District has second priority to use the facility for 
school related purposes at other times. The term of this agreement shall expire 75 years from the date 
of completion and acceptance of the facility. Upon termination, the County's rights in the facility shall 
cease and the District shall be the sole owner thereof. 

4. The District entered into a Joint Powers Agreement with the City of Albuquerque (the City) on August 1, 
1987 for the construction and maintenance of an indoor swimming pool at Sandia High School. The City 
and the District each paid half of the total design and construction cost of approximately $1,000,000. 
The City is responsible, at its sole expense, for the maintenance, operation and custodial care of the 
facility. The District has first priority in using the facility during regular school hours during the regular 
school year and for a period of one and one half hours after regular school hours during the competitive 
swimming season. The City has the right to use the facility on a space available basis during this time. 
The District has second priority to use the facility for school related purposes at other times. The term of 
this agreement shall expire 75 years from the date of completion and acceptance of the facility. Upon 
termination, the City's rights in the facility shall cease and the District shall be the sole owner thereof. 

5. The District entered into a Joint Powers Agreement with the City of Albuquerque (the City) on 
November 6, 1981 for the construction and maintenance of a soccer field / play area at Osuna 
Elementary School. The City paid approximately $93,500 and the District paid approximately $30,000 of 
the total design and construction cost of approximately $123,500. The City is responsible, at its sole 
expense, for the maintenance, operation and custodial care of the facility. The District has first priority 
in using the facility during regular school hours during the school year. The District has second priority 
to use the facility at other times. The term of this agreement shall expire 75 years from the date of 
completion and acceptance of the facility. Upon termination, the City's rights in the facility shall cease 
and the District shall be the sole owner thereof. 

6. The District entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Albuquerque (the City) on 
October 4, 2000 providing for operation by the City of a community center at McKinley Middle School. 
The term of the agreement will be fifty years from the effective date. The agreement provides for the 
joint use of the facility by the City and the District. The City has sole responsibility for maintenance, 
operation, and custodial care of the community center. The District has exclusive use of the facility 
during regular school hours, the City has exclusive use of the facility outside of school hours. The City 
also has access to McKinley Middle School facilities including the gymnasium, cafeteria and restrooms 
for community center program use outside of regular school hours. The City owns the community 
center facility and associated improvements, and the District owns the site. Upon termination of the 
agreement the District will assume ownership of the facility. 

7. A supplement to the Mckinley Middle School Community Center Intergovernmental Agreement entered 
into June 30, 2003 provided for the addition of a sports and fitness center to be built, managed and 
operated by the City at the McKinley Middle School site. 

8. The District entered into an agreement with the City of Albuquerque (the City) on January 1, 2014 for 
temporary use of excess water rights associated with the District's OSE Permit RG-323 water rights 
permit. The City agreed to pay the District an initial processing fee of $3,000 and $11,148 for 139.35 
acre feet of diversion rights. This agreement is effective until December 31, 2014. 
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Charter Schools 

9. The District entered into a lease agreement with Robert F. Kennedy Charter School (RFK) on October 12, 
2014 effective July 1, 2013 regarding use of 27 portable buildings at 4300 Blake Road SW, Albuquerque, 
NM, and two permanent buildings at 1021 lsleta Boulevard SW, Albuquerque, NM for purposes related 
to the operation of the RFK School. The District is responsible for any property improvements and/or 
major repairs. RFK is responsible any cost related to operating and maintaining the site. The District 
billed RFK $135,472 for rental of these facilities during the 2013-2014 school year. This agreement is 
effective as long as RFK's charter has not been revoked and RFK remains in compliance with terms of the 
agreement. 

10. The District entered into a lease agreement with Public Academy of Performing Arts (PAPA) on May 22, 
2013 effective July 1, 2013 regarding the use of portable buildings at 3000 Adams Street NE, 
Albuquerque, NM, for purposes related to operation of the PAPA School. The District is responsible for 
the cost of any major repairs on the site. PAPA is responsible for any cost related to operating and 
maintaining the site. The District billed PAPA $297,845 for rent and utilities for these facilities during the 
2013-2014 school year. In exchange for PAPA agreeing to pay the district the sum of $213,642 from 
anticipated HB33 money received by PAPA, the district has agreed to purchase, install and supply the 
following: a) 2 portable facilities, b) renovation of the administration facility, c) renovation of science 
rooms and d) computers and other equipment. This agreement is effective as long as PAPA's charter has 
not been revoked and PAPA remains in compliance with terms of the agreement. 

11. The District entered into a lease agreement with Montessori of the Rio Grande Charter School (MRG) on 
May 20, 2013 effective July 1, 2013 regarding the site located at 1650 Gabaldon Drive NW Albuquerque, 
NM for purposes related to the operation of the MRG School. The District is responsible for the cost of 
any major repairs on the site. MRG is responsible for any cost related to operating and maintaining the 
site. The District billed MRG $116,891 for rent of these facilities during the 2013-2014 school year. This 
agreement is effective as long as MRG's charter has not been revoked and MRG remains in compliance 
with terms of the agreement. 

12. The District entered into a lease agreement with Digital Arts & Technology Academy (DATA) on August 
23, 2013 effective July 1, 2013 regarding the site located at 1011 Lamberton Place NE, Albuquerque, NM 
for purposes related to the operation of the DATA School. The District is responsible for any property 
improvements and/or major repairs. DATA is responsible any cost related to operating and maintaining 
the site. The District billed DATA $198,168 for rental of these facilities during the 2013-2014 school year. 
This agreement is effective as long as DATA's charter has not been revoked and DATA remains in 
compliance with terms of the agreement. 

13. The District entered into an agreement with South Valley Academy (SVA) on June 6, 2013 effective July 
1, 2013 regarding the use of certain school facilities including 16 acres of land, permanent buildings, and 
portable buildings at 3426 Blake Road SW, Albuquerque, NM. The District is responsible for any 
property improvements and/or major repairs. SVA is responsible any cost related to operating and 
maintaining the site. SVA will be responsible for all costs of removing any portable buildings. The District 
billed SVA $180,918 for rental of these facilities during the 2013-2014 school year. This agreement is 
effective as long as SVA's charter has not been revoked and SVA remains in compliance with terms of 
the agreement. 

Childhood Development Centers 

14. The District and the City of Albuquerque cooperate in the operation of Childhood Development Centers 
to provide early childhood education and full-day, year around child day care for children from lower
income families located on eight school sites in the City. The City has provided for the purchase and any 
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necessary modifications of portable classrooms, development of playground areas and other 
expenditures required for the establishment of the centers. The District has provided space for the 
installation of the classrooms and retains title to the facilities. The City provides for the staffing and 
general operation of the centers. This agreement is governed by the 1997 Master Agreement between 
the District and the city which allows the City to use APS facilities (and allows the District to use City 
facilities). 

Head Start Program 

15. A Memorandum of Agreement between the District and the Youth Development, Inc. (YDI) dated May 1, 
2000 provides for the operation of Head Start Programs at seven District school locations. The 
agreement was updated effective June 13, 2013 and expires June 30, 2016. YDI assumed costs 
associated for purchase of buildings, transportation, site development, playground construction, utility 
extensions, meters and operating expenses. Buildings and materials are the property of YDJ. APS 
provides space at the sites. YDI is responsible for maintenance of the facilities. YDI provides Headstart 
services on a Jong term basis for the duration of the Headstart contract with the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services. 

Museum of Natural History and Science 

16. The District entered into a Joint Powers & Lease Agreement with the Museum of Natural History and 
Science, a division of the Department of Cultural Affairs, State of New Mexico (the Museum) on 
September 24, 1993 to develop, improve, operate and maintain an environmental education center that 
offers educational programs to public and private schools in the state. The current agreement expires 
August 31, 2014. The Museum shall provide and conduct educational programs at the facility for 
students and teachers from APS and other school districts. The Museum will be responsible for the 
everyday routine maintenance of the facility. The District shall provide an Environmental Education 
Resource Teacher at the Center and will be responsible for non-routine major maintenance for the 
facility. Major maintenance expenditures over $2,500 must be approved by the Board. The District 
retains ownership and use of all water and water rights at the facility. 

Zia Family Focus Center 

17. The District entered into a memorandum of understanding with the County of Bernalillo (the County) on 
December 6, 2013 regarding services provided for Zia Family Focus Center (ZFFC). The District to serve 
as the fiscal agent for ZFFC pertaining to the program services. For performing these services, the 
County agrees to pay the District up to $20,000. This shall continue through June 30, 2014. 

Central New Mexico Community College 

18. The District entered into a memorandum of understanding with the Central New Mexico Community 
College (CNM) on June 13, 2013 effective July 1, 2013 regarding establishing an APS High School on the 
CNM Main Campus. The goal of this agreement to increase the number of students earning a high 
school diploma and a CNM certificate or two-year associate degree within three years of entry into the 
tenth grade. The District has agreed to enroll 100 students into the APS CNM High School. These 
students will be enrolled in at least 50% dual credit courses for the 2013-2014 academic year. CNM will 
make the CNM facilities available to the District for the sole purpose of operating a high school on the 
CNM campus at no cost to APS. This agreement expires on June 30, 2016. 

NOTE 17. Subsequent Accounting Standard Pronouncements 

GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (Statement No. 68), which 
revises and establishes new financial reporting requirements for most governments that provide their 
employees with pension benefits. The District provides its employees with pension benefits through a multiple 
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employer cost-sharing defined benefit retirement program administered by the Education Retirement Board 
(ERB). 

Statement No. 68 requires cost-sharing employers participating in the ERB program, such as the District, to 
record their proportionate share, as defined in Statement No. 68, of ERB's unfunded pension liability. The 
District has no legal obligation to fund this shortfall nor does it have any ability to affect funding, benefits or 
annual required contribution decisions made by ERB. The requirement of Statement No. 68 to record a portion 
of ERB's unfunded liability will negatively impact the District's future unrestricted net position. Statement No. 
68 is effective for fiscal year 2015. At this time, management is unable to estimate the magnitude of this 
impact. 

In addition, GASB issued the following statement. Management at this time is unable to determine the impact, 
if any, on the District. 

Statement No. 71 
Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 68 
Effective Date: The provisions of this Statement should be applied simultaneously with the provisions of 
Statement 68. 

Statement No. 69 
Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations 
Effective Date: The provisions of Statement 69 are effective for governmental combinations and disposals 
of government operations occurring in financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013, and 
should be applied on a prospective basis. Early application is encouraged. 

NOTE 18. GASB 65 Restatement 

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities .. GASB 65 
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or 
deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and 
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as 
assets and liabilities. This Statement is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2012. 

In fiscal year 2014, the District implemented Government Accounting Standards (GASB) Statement 65.The 
implementation of Statement 65 resulted in the reclassification of the beginning net position of the 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The deferred charges for bond issuance 
costs were reclassed as expense of prior periods and resulted in the adjustment below: 

Net position at June 30, 2013, as previously stated 

Change in reporting for deferred charges for debt issuance costs 

Net position atJune 30, 2013, as restated 
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$ 1,074,598,143 
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NOTE 19. Component Unit - Charter Schools 

The following are dependent charter schools formed under NMSA 22-8A and, as such, are presented here as 
discrete component units of Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12: 

21" Century Public Academy 
Albuquerque Talent Development 

Secondary Charter School 
Alice King Community School 
Christine Duncan Heritage Academy 
Corrales International Charter School 
Digital Arts & Technology Academy 
El Camino Real Academy 
Gordon Bernell Charter School 
La Academia de Esperanza 
Los Puentes Charter School 

Montessori of the Rio Grande 
Mountain Mahogany Community School 
Native American Community Academy 
Nuestros Va lores Charter School 
Public Academy for Performing Arts 
Robert F. Kennedy Charter School 
School for Integrated Academics 

& Technology 
South Valley Academy 
The Bataan Military Academy 

District management has determined that charter schools are major component units of the District under GASB 
Statement #14 (as amended by GASB 34 and 61), since their operating budgets and charters are annually 
presented and approved by the District's board and a financial burden exists upon closure of a school or when 
the school is in need of financial assistance. Refer to previous footnotes for significant policies of the charter 
schools, as they are subject to the same State and Federal regulations and follow the same policies as the 
District. Effective June 30, 2013, Academia de Lengua y Cultura was closed and the net position was transferred 
to the NM Public Education Dept during FY14, leaving a net position of $0 as of June 30, 2014. This school is only 
presented in the combining statement of activities to reflect the closeout of the school. The following are 
summarized details of the charter schools' balances and transactions as of June 30, 2014 and for the year then 
ended: 

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

State statutes authorize the investment of charter school funds in a wide variety of instruments, including 
certificates of deposit and other similar obligations, state investment pool, money market accounts, and United 
States Government obligations. All invested funds of the charter schools properly followed State investment 
requirements as of June 30, 2014. 

Deposits of funds may be made in interest or non-interest bearing checking accounts in one or more banks or 
savings and loan associations within the geographical boundaries of the charter school. Deposits may be made 
to the extent that they are insured by an agency of the United States or by collateral deposited as security or by 
bond given by the financial institution. 

The rate of interest in non-demand interest-bea.ring accounts shall be set by the State Board of Finance, but in 
no case shall the rate of interest be less than one hundred percent of the asked price on United States treasury 
bills of the same maturity on the day of deposit. 

Excess of funds may be temporarily invested in securities which are issued by the State or by the United States 
government, or by their departments or agencies, and which are either direct obligations of the State or the 
United States or are backed by the full faith and credit of those governments. 

The collateral pledged is listed on Schedule I of this report. The types of collateral allowed are limited to direct 
obligations of the United States Government and all bonds issued by any agency, district or political subdivision 
of the State of New Mexico. 
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According to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, public unit deposits are funds owned by the public unit. 
Time deposits, savings deposits and interest-bearing NOW accounts of a public unit in an institution in the same 
state will be insured up to $250,000 in aggregate and separate from the $250,000 coverage for public unit 
demand deposits at the same institution. 

Deposits 

New Mexico State Statutes require collateral pledged for deposits in excess of the federal deposit insurance to 
be delivered, or a joint safekeeping receipt be issued, to the Schools for at least one-half of the amount on 
deposit with the institution. The schedule listed below will meet the State of New Mexico, Office of the State 
Auditor's requirements in reporting the insured portion of the deposits. 

Cash and cash equivalents consists of the following at June 30, 2014: 

Alb. Talent 
21'' Century Development Alice King 

Public Secondary Community 
Deposits: Academy Charter School School 

Total amount of deposits $ 467,895 $ 191,505 $ 275,776 
FDIC coverage 250,000 250,000 250 000 

Total uninsured public funds $ 217.895 $ 25.776 

Collateral requirement (50% 
of uninsured public funds) $ 108,948 $ $ 12,888 

Pledged security 115,310 167 944 

Total under (over) collateralized $ (6.363) $ (155.056) 

Pledged collateral held by 
pledging bank's trust 
department or agent but 
not in the agency's name $ 115.310 $ 167.944 

Christine 
Duncan Corrales Digital Arts 
Heritage International & Technology 

Deposits: Academy Charter School Academy 

Total amount of deposits $ 425,234 $ 303,691 $ 997,580 
FDIC coverage 250 000 250 000 250,000 

Total uninsured public funds $ 175,234 $ 53,691 $ 747.580 

Collateral requirement (50% 
of uninsured public funds) $ 87,617 $ 26,846 $ 373,790 

Pledged security 106 442 55143 846 449 

Total under (over) collateralized s {18,825) s {28,297) s {472,6S9) 
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Pledged collateral held by 
pledging bank's trust 
department or agent but 
not in the agency's name $ 106.442 $ 55.143 $ 846.449 

Gordon Bernell 
El Camino Charter School 

Deposits: Real Academy (NMBT) 

Total amount of deposits $ 372,360 $ 623,562 
FDIC coverage 250,000 250 000 

Total uninsured public funds $ 122.360 $ 373.562 

Collateral requirement (50% 
of uninsured public funds) $ 61,180 $ 186,781 

Pledged security 269 874 560 717 

Total under (over) collateralized $ (208.694) $ (373.936) 

Pledged collateral held by 
pledging bank's trust 
department or agent but 
not in the agency's name $ 269.874 $ 560.717 

Montessori 
La Academia Los Puentes of the 

Deposits: de Esperanza Charter School Rio Grande 

Total amount of deposits $ 1,314,159 $ 870,958 $ 358,185 
FDIC coverage 250,000 250,000 250 000 

Total uninsured public funds $ 1.064.159 $ 620.958 $ 108.185 

Collateral requirement (50% 
of uninsured public funds) $ 532,080 $ 310,479 $ 54,092 

Pledged security 581,213 783 348 297 354 

Total under (over) collateralized $ (49.133) $ (472.869) $ (243.261) 

Pledged collateral held by 
pledging bank's trust 
department or agent but 
not in the agency's name $ 581,213 s 783,348 s 297,354 
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Mountain Native 
Mahogany American Nuestros 
Community Community Valores 

Deposits: School Academy Charter School 

Total amount of deposits $ 439,392 $ 370,048 $ 126,654 
FDIC/NCUA coverage 250,000 250,000 250,000 

Total uninsured public funds $ 189,392 $ 120.048 

Collateral requirement (50% 
of uninsured public funds) $ 94,696 $ 60,024 $ 

Pledged security 257 246 60 708 

Total under (over) collateralized $ (162.551) $ (684) 

Pledged collateral held by 
pledging bank's trust 
department or agent but 
not in the agency's name $ 257.247 

Public School for 
Academy for Robert F. Integrated 
Performing Kennedy Academics & 

Deposits: Arts Charter School Technology 

Total amount of deposits $ 583,755 $ 186,815 $ 892,948 
FDIC coverage 250,000 250,000 250,000 

Total uninsured public funds $ 333.755 $ 642,948 

Collateral requirement (50% 
of uninsured public funds) $ 166,878 $ $ 321,474 

Pledged security 186 951 1,006,720 

Total under (over) collateralized $ (20.073) $ (685,246) 

Pledged collateral held by 
pledging bank's trust 
department or agent but 
not in the agency's name $ 186,951 $ 1,006,720 
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South Valley Military 

Deposits: Academy Academy 

Total amount of deposits $ 871,285 $ 122,190 
FDIC coverage 250,000 250.000 

Total uninsured public funds $ 621.285 

Collateral requirement {50% 
of uninsured public funds) $ 310,643 $ 

Pledged security 849 623 

Total under (over) collateralized $ (538.980) 

Pledged collateral held by 
pledging bank's trust 
department or agent but 
not in the agency's name $ 849,623 

B. Accounts Receivable 

As of June 30, 2014, accounts receivable consists of the following: 

Intergovernmental 

Total 

Intergovernmental 

Total 

Intergovernmental 

Total 
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21" Century 
Public 

Academy 

$ 49 516 

$ 49.516 

Christine 
Duncan 
Heritage 
Academy 

$ 67,284 

$ 67,284 

El Camino 
Real Academy 

Alb. Talent 
Development 

Secondary 
Charter School 

$ 37 549 

$ 37.549 

Corrales 
International 

Charter School 

$ 19.688 

s 19,688 

Gordon 
Bernell 

Charter School 

$ 31,129 ,,_$ __ ~5,,,8"',9"-'3'-"'1 

$ 31.129 ""S __ =5,,,8"',9"'3,,,1 

June 30, 2014 
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Alice King 
Community 

School 

$ 81486 

$ 81.486 

Digital Arts 
& Technology 

$ 

s 

Academy 

1,084 

1,084 

La Academia 
de Esperanza 
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-

Intergovernmental 
Other 

Total 

Intergovernmental 

Total 

Intergovernmental 

Total 
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Los Puentes 
Charter School 

$ 108.466 

$ 108.466 

Native 
American 

Community 
Academy 

$ 604,351 
287 017 

s 891,368 

Robert F. 
Kennedy 

Charter School 

$ 

s 

$ 

s 

150,991 

150,991 

The Bataan 
Military 

Academy 

21,230 

21.230 

June 30, 2014 

Montessori 
of the 

Rio Grande 

Nuestros 
Va lores 

Charter School 

$ 52,869 

s 52,869 

School for 
Integrated 

Academics & 
Technology 

$ 9,501 

s 9,501 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 

$ 

s 
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Mountain 
Mahogany 

Community 
School 

13,130 

13,130 

Public 
Academy for 
Performing 

Arts 

127,238 

127,238 

South Valley 
Academy 

199,698 

199,698 
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C. Capital Assets 

A summary of capital assets and changes occurring during the year ended June 30, 2014 follows: 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

21" Century 
Public Academy 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 74,639 $ $ $ 74,639 

Buildings & improvements 278,706 278,706 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (173,598) (36.192) (209,790) 

Capital assets, net $ 179.747 $ (36.192) $ 143.555 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Alb. Talent Development 
Secondary Charter School 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 21,674 $ $ $ 21,674 

Buildings & improvements 65,000 65,000 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (44,693) (5,217) (49,910) 

Capital assets, net $ 41.981 $ (5.217) $ 36.764 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Alice King 
Community School 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 20,985 $ 15,756 $ $ 36,741 

Buildings & improvements 51,539 51,539 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (18,158) (5,192) (23,350) 

Capital assets, net s 54,366 s 10,564 s 64,930 
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Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Christine Duncan 
Heritage Academy 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 15,187 $ 7,500 $ $ 22,687 

Buildings & improvements 54,400 54,400 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (33,571} (11,349) (44,920) 

Capital assets, net $ 36.016 $ (3.849) $ 32.167 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Corrales International 
Charter School 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 18,717 $ $ (7,806} $ 10,911 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (15,080} (3,637) (7,806) (10,911) 

Capital assets, net $ 3,637 $ (3,637) $ (7.806) 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Digital Arts & 
Technology Academy 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 351,968 $ 45,962 $ $ 397,930 

Buildings & improvements 54,315 54,315 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (393,187} (7,863) (401,050) 

Capital assets, net $ 13,096 $ 38,099 $ 51,195 
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Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

El Camino Real 
Academy 

Land $ 1,500,000 $ $ $ 1,500,000 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment 63,047 6,016 69,063 

Buildings & improvements 10,280,855 10,280,855 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (645,818) (342,998) (988.816) 

Capital assets, net $ 11.198.084 $ (336.982) $ 10,861.102 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Gordon Bernell 
Charter School 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 147,095 $ $ $ 147,095 

Building improvements 15,019 15,019 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (67,349) (24,913) (92.262) 

Capital assets, net $ 94.765 $ (24.913) $ 69.852 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

La Academia 
de Esperanza 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 206,648 $ $ $ 206,648 

Vehicles 10,000 10,000 

Buildings & improvements 168,708 168,708 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (195,089) (21,672) (216,761) 

Capital assets, net $ 190,267 $ (21,672) $ 168,595 
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Balance, Balance, 

June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 
Los Puentes 

Charter School 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 189,262 $ $ $ 189,262 

Buildings & improvements 232,849 232,849 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (181,900) (22,744) (204,644) 

Capital assets, net $ 240.211 $ (22.744) $ 217.467 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Montessori of the 
Rio Grande 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 197,708 $ $ $ 197,708 

Construction in progress 327,037 327,037 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (106.779) (11,928) (118,707) 

Capital assets, net $ 417.966 $ (1L928l $ (327.037) $ 79.001 

Balance, Deletions/ Balance, 

June 30, 2013 Additions Adjustments June 30, 2014 
Mountain Mahogany 

Community School 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 49,745 $ $ $ 49,745 

Land 945,000 945,000 

Buildings 83,685 1,170,000 1,253,685 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (56,020) (2L592) (77,612) 

Capital assets, net s 77,410 s 2,093,408 s 2,170,818 
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Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Native American 
Community Academy 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 13,900 $ $ $ 13,900 

Buildings & Improvements 705,596 705,596 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (13,900} (141.119) (155,019) 

Capital assets, net $ 564.477 $ 564.477 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Nuestros Valores 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 201,433 $ 12,285 $ (201,433} $ 12,285 

Buildings & improvements 219,155 193,050 (85,852} 326,352 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (291.487} (61,178) 287,285 (65,380) 

Capital assets, net $ 129,101 $ 144.156 $ 273,257 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Public Academy for 
Performing Arts 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 122,597 $ $ $ 122,597 

Buildings & improvements 55,366 55,366 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (168,992} (1,954) (170.946) 

Capital assets, net $ 8,971 $ (1,954) $ 7,017 
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Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

Robert F. Kennedy 
Charter School 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 184,240 $ $ $ 184,240 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation (177,276) (1,786) (179,062) 

Capital assets, net $ 6,964 $ (1.786) $ 5.178 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

School for Integrated 
Academics & Technology 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 328,027 $ 7,186 $ $ 335,213 

less: accumulated 
depreciation (314,943) (4,878) (319,821) 

Capital assets, net $ 13.084 $ 2.308 $ 15.392 

Balance, Balance, 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 

South Valley Academy 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment $ 378,551 $ $ $ 378,551 

Buildings & improvements 126,567 126,567 

less: accumulated 
depreciation (323,126) (29,557) (352,683) 

Capital assets, net s 181,992 s (29,557} s 152,435 
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The Bataan Military 
Academy 

Furniture, fixtures & 
equipment 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation 

Capital assets, net 

Balance, 
June 30, 2013 

$ 89,327 $ 

(85,227) 

Additions 

(4,100) 

$ 4' 100 "'$~~~'"'4..,,. 1""00,,,l 

Deletions 

$ 

Financial Section 

Balance, 
June 30, 2014 

$ 89,327 

(89,327) 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was charged to the following functions: 

Operations/Plant Maintenance 
Facilities, materials, Supplies 

Total 

Food Services 
Central Services 
Facilities, Materials, Supplies 

Total 

Instruction 
Student Support Services 
General Administration 
School Administration 
Central Services 
Operations/Plant Maintenance 
Facilities, Materials, Supplies 

Total 
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21" Century 
Public 

Academv 

$ 
36192 

$ 36.192 

Christine 
Duncan 
Heritage 
Academy 

$ 3,578 

7 771 

s 11,349 

El Camino 
Real Academy 

$ 
1,091 

1,907 
340 000 

s 342,998 

June 30, 2014 

Alb. Talent 
Development Alice King 

Secondary Community 
Charter School School 

$ 884 $ 3,191 
4 333 2 001 

$ 5.217 $ 5,192 

Corrales Digital Arts 
International & Technology 

Charter School Academy 

$ $ 
3,637 
3 637 7 863 

$ 3,637 $ 7,863 

Gordon 
Bernell La Academia 

Charter School de Esperanza 

$ 20,162 $ 9,574 
1,287 

4,300 
171 

451 863 
9,777 

s 24,913 s 21,672 
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Mountain 
Montessori Mahogany 

Los Puentes of the Community 
Charter School Rio Grande School 

Instruction $ $ 7,226 $ 
Operations/Plant Maintenance 4,702 
Interest Expense- Lease Purchase 
Facilities, Materials, Supplies 22 744 21592 

Total $ 22.744 $ 11.928 $ 21.592 

Native Public 
American Nuestros Academy for 

Community Valores Performing 
Academy Charter School Arts 

Instruction $ $ 533 $ 
Operations/Plant Maintenance 14,574 1,954 
Facilities, Materials, Supplies 141119 46 071 

Total $ 141.119 $ 61.178 $ 1.954 

School for 
Robert F. Integrated 
Kennedy Academics & South Valley 

Charter School Technology Academy 

Instruction $ $ 2,453 $ 1,280 
Student Support Services 667 
Instruction Support Services 823 
General Administration 4,368 
School Administration 129 
Central Services 17,136 
Operations/Plant Maintenance 1,786 
Food Services Operations 2,510 
Facilities, Materials, Supplies 2 425 2 645 

Total $ 1.786 $ 4.878 $ 29.557 

The Bataan 
Military 

Academy 

Direct Instruction $ 4,100 
Instructional Support 
General Administration 
School Administration 
Capital Outlay 

Total s 4,100 
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D. Commitments and Liabilities 

Below are details relating to operating leases, capital leases and compensated absences balances maintained by 
each of the charter schools as of June 30, 2014. 

21" Century Public Academy: Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $179,241. Commitments 
for lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $173,148; 2016, 
$170,184; 2017, $170,184; and 2018, $0, total, $513,516. 

21" Century did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 

Albuquerque Talent Development Secondary Charter School: The school leases various equipment and facilities 
under short-term cancelable operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $230,211. 
Commitments for lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $216,035; 
2016, $216,035; 2017, $216,035, 2018, $216,035, total, $864,140. 

Albuquerque Talent Development Secondary Charter School did not have an accrued compensated absences 
liability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 

Alice King Community School: The school leases facilities under short-term cancelable operating leases. Rental 
expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $305,330. Commitments for lease obligations for the following 
periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $289,950, total, $289,950. 

Alice King Community School had a compensated absences balance of $5,000 at the beginning of the fiscal year. 
Deletions to the balance were $5,000, which resulted in an ending balance of $0. 

Christine Duncan Heritage Academy: The school leases various equipment and facilities under short-term 
cancelable operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $188,879. Commitments for 
lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $294,352 2016, $2,568; 
2017, $1,284, total, $291,852. 

Christine Duncan Heritage Academy did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2014. 

Corrales International Charter School: The school leases a facility under a short-term cancelable operating lease. 
Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $346,944. Commitments for lease obligations for the 
following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $331,639; 2016, $331,639; 2017, 361,788; 2018, 
383,244; 2019, $358,680 and thereafter, $1,716,288, total, $3,483,278. 

Corrales International Charter School did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2014. 

Digital Arts & Technology Academy: The school leases various equipment and facilities under short-term 
cancelable operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $308,458. Commitments for 
lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $206,893, total, $206,893. 

Digital Arts and Technology Academy had a compensated absences balance of $9,737 at the beginning of the 
fiscal year. Additions to the balance were $3,068, which resulted in an ending balance of $12,805. All of this 
balance is considered to be current. 

El Camino Real Academy: The school leases various equipment and facilities under short-term cancelable 
operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $18,454. Commitments for lease 
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obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $15,252; 2016, $15,252; 2017, 
$11,460; and 2018, $1,594, total, $43,558. 

The school entered into a 30-year building lease agreement with an unrelated party with option to purchase in 
May 2012 and require monthly payments including interest of $58,554. The lease includes a termination clause 
in the event the school doesn't have sufficient funds to make the lease payments. The total cost of the building, 
including land and accumulated depreciation, under the capital lease was $11,700,000 and $850,000, 
respectively, as of June 30, 2014. At June 30, 2014, the future minimum payments under the capital lease are as 
follows 2015, $702,649; 2016, $702,649; 2017, $702,649; 2018, $702,649; 2019, $702,649; and thereafter, 
$15,934,058, total, $19,447,303. 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 
Less current portion 
Long-term portion 

$ 19,447,303 
8,388,265 

11,059,038 
204 605 

$ 10.854,433 

El Camino Real Academy did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014. 

Gordon Bernell Charter School: The school leases various equipment and facilities under short-term cancelable 
operating leases. The school entered into two facility leases beginning July 1, 2008. Rental expense for the year 
ended June 30, 2014 was $195,309. Commitments for lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 
2014 are as follows: 2015, $194,751; 2016, $194,751; 2017, 180,263; 2018, $180,263; 2019, 180,263, thereafter, 
total, $930,291. 

Gordon Bernell Charter School had a compensated absences balance of $102,043 at the beginning of the fiscal 
year. Deductions to the balance were $4,636, which resulted in an ending balance of $97,407. All of this 
balance is considered to be current. 

La Academia de Esperanza: The school leases facilities under short-term cancelable operating leases. Rental 
expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $379,882 Commitments for lease obligations for the following 
periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $410,279; 2016, $421,825; 2017, $433,717; 2018, $445,965, 
total, $1,711,786. 

La Academia de Esperanza did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014. 

Los Puentes Charter School: The school leases various equipment and facilities under short-term cancelable 
operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $322,701. The school entered into a 
lease to purchase agreement beginning July 1, 2011 Commitments for lease obligations for the following periods 
as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $332,749; 2016, $342,426; 2017, $352,393; 2018, $362,660; 2019, 
$373,235; and thereafter, $384,126, total, $2,147,589. 

Los Puentes Charter School did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014. 

Montessori of the Rio Grande: The school leases various equipment and facilities under short-term cancelable 
operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $236,456. Commitments for lease 
obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $236,473; 2016, $3,766; 2017, 
$3,766; 2018, $3,766; 2019, $3,766; and thereafter $3,766, total, $255,305. 
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Montessori of the Rio Grande did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014. 

Mountain Mahoganv Community School: The school leases various equipment and facilities under short-term 
cancelable operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $314,115 Commitments for 
lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 201S, $157,244; 2016, $157,244; 
2017, $157,244; 2018, $156,620; 2019, $155,996; and thereafter, $2,470,242, total, $3,254,590. 

The school entered into a 30-year building lease agreement with a related party with option to purchase in 
December 2013 with monthly payments including interest of $8,833. The agreement includes a total of 
$500,000 in early payments, to include $200,000 paid upon entering the agreement. The lease includes a 
termination clause in the event the school doesn't have sufficient funds to make the lease payments. The total 
cost of the building, including land and accumulated depreciation, under the capital lease was $2,11S,000 and 
$19,500, respectively, as of June 30, 2014. At June 30, 2014, the future minimum payments under the capital 
lease are as follows 2015, $155,996; 2016, $155,996; 2017, $155,996; 2018, $155,996; and thereafter, 
$2,802,898 for a total of $3,426,882. 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 
Less current portion 
Long-term portion 

$ 

$ 

3,426,882 
1,525.644 
1,901,238 

63 203 
1.838.035 

Mountain Mahogany Community School did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014. 

Native American Community Academy: Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $385,205. 
Commitments for lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $380,220; 
2016, $380,220; 2017, $380,220; and 2018, $380,220, total, $1,520,880. 

Native American Community Academy did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2014. 

Nuestros Valores Charter School: The school leases various equipment and facilities under short-term 
cancelable operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $100,608. Commitments for 
lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $106,283; 2016, $5,675; 
2017, $5,675; 2018, 5,675 and 2019 $473, total, $123,781. 

Nuestros Valores Charter School had a compensated absences balance of $7,749 at the beginning of the fiscal 
year. Additions to the balance were $91, which resulted in an ending balance of $7,840. All of this balance is 
considered to be current. 

Public Academy for Performing Arts: The school leases various facilities and equipment under short-term 
cancelable operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $267,672 Commitments for 
lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $271,192, total, $271,192. 

Public Academy for Performing Arts had a compensated absences balance of $7,725 at the beginning of the 
fiscal year. Additions to the balance were $155, which resulted in an ending balance of $7,880. All of this 
balance is considered to be current. 
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Robert F. Kennedy Charter School: The school leases facilities under short-term cancelable operating leases. 
Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $151,225. Commitments for lease obligations for the 
following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $129,299, total, $129,299. 

Robert F. Kennedy Charter School had a compensated absences balance of $15,117 at the beginning of the fiscal 
year. Additions to the balance were $9,959, which resulted in an ending balance of $25,076. All of this balance 
is considered to be current. 

School for Integrated Academics and Technologv: Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was 
$65,980. Commitments for lease obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows:, 
$28,030; 2016, $12,846; 2017, $6,752; and 2018, $1,033, total, $48,661. 

School for Integrated Academics and Technology did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 

South Valley Academy: The school leases various equipment and facilities under short-term cancelable 
operating leases. Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $370,387 Commitments for lease 
obligations for the following periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $249,363, total, $249,363. 

South Valley Academy had a compensated absences balance of $8,972 at the beginning of the fiscal year. 
Deductions to the balance were $1,564, which resulted in an ending balance of $7,408. All of this balance is 
considered to be current. 

The Bataan Militarv Academy: The school leases facilities under short-term cancelable operating leases. Rental 
expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $176,748 Commitments for lease obligations for the following 
periods as of June 30, 2014 are as follows: 2015, $169,945, total, $169,954. 

The Bataan Military Academy did not have an accrued compensated absences liability for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014. 

E. Educational Retirement Act (ERA) and Retiree Health Care (RHC) Contributions 

21" Century Public Academy: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
totaled $105,928, $97,140 and $103,078, respectively, and employee portions totaled $81,708, $83,208 and 
$116,854, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $15,034, 
$17,508 and $18,974, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $8,126, $8,754 and $9,487, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

Albuquerque Talent Development Secondarv Charter School: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended 
June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled $114,819, $71,489 and $56,298, respectively, and employee portions 
totaled $88,004, $60,825 and $67,687, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by 
the school was $17,421, $13,857 and $11,215, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $9,171, $6,467 
and $5,607, respectively, in employee contributions. 

Alice King Community School: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
totaled $159,203, $132,716 and $103,695, respectively, and employee portions totaled $115,823, $108,697 and 
$115,121, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $24,934, 
$24,564 and $20,059, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $12,444, $12,218 and $10,214, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

Christine Duncan Academy: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
totaled $115,655, $82,145 and $67,445, respectively, and employee portions totaled $86,470, $69,192 and 
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$77,072, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $17,594, 
$15,033 and $13,056, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $8,797, $7,455 and $6,528, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

Corrales International Charter School: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 
2012 totaled $174,700, $134,819 and $97,857, respectively, and employee portions totaled $132,669, $144,777 
and $117,000, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $26,435, 
$24,770 and $19,654, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $13,247, $12,342 and $10,196, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

Digital Arts & Technology Academy: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 
2012 totaled $182,766, $140,789 and $122,068, respectively, and employee portions totaled $139,618, 
$120,687 and $141,039, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was 
$27,786, $25,762 and $18,982, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $13,899, $12,881 and 
$10,883, respectively, in employee contributions. 

El Camino Real Academy: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled 
$256,521, $222,990 and $241,922, respectively, and employee portions totaled $195,367, $192,303 and 
$293,594, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $39,001, 
$40,916 and $48,283, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $19,512, $20,458 and $24,082, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

Gordon Bernell Charter School: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
totaled $324,799, $268,092 and $208,497, respectively, and employee portions totaled $247,467, $234,056 and 
$254,070, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $49,568, 
$48,598 and $41, 791, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $24,515, $24,927 and $20,895, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

La Academia de Esperanza: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
totaled $322,203, $293,808 and $243,915, respectively, and employee portions totaled $246,572, $250,806 and 
215,921, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $48,997, 
$50,512 and $42,891, respectively, in employer contributions, as weir as $25,398, $25,256 and $19,206, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

Los Puentes Charter School: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
totaled $159,632, $118,919 and $92,589, respectively, and employee portions totaled $122,491, $102,555 and 
$112,827, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $24,279, 
$21,821 and $18,559, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $12,139, $10,910 and $9,279, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

Montessori of the Rio Grande: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
totaled $131,703, $96,844 and $87,764, respectively, and employee portions totaled $98,407, $80,597 and 
$100,671, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $20,031, 
$17,483 and $17,023, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $10,015, $8,741 and $8,512, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

Mountain Mahoganv Community School: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 
and 2012 totaled $113,427, $94,537 and $74,421, respectively, and employee portions totaled $83,903, $79,685 
and $79,898, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $17,197, 
$17,310 and $19,654, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $8,599, $8,670 and $7,079, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 
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Native American Community Academy: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 
and 2012 totaled $245,537, $190,109 and $210,073, respectively, and employee portions totaled $187,701, 
$162,918 and $254,351, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was 
$37,242, $34,732 and $41,841, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $18,639, $17,331 and 
$20,975, respectively, in employee contributions. 

Nuestros Va lores Charter School: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
totaled $84,123, $70,471 and $82,979, respectively, and employee portions totaled$62,769, $57,404 and 
$101,117, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $13,016, 
$13,174 and $16,633, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $6,477, $6,457 and $8,316, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

Public Academy for Performing Arts: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 
2012 totaled $229,800, $172,076 and $145,179, respectively, and employee portions totaled $174,551, 
$147,543 and $173,895, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was 
$35,144, $32,339 and $29,321, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $17,572, $16,170 and 
$14,660, respectively, in employee contributions. 

Robert F Kennedy Charter School: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 
2012 totaled $196,099, $129,254 and $121,064, respectively, and employee portions totaled $150,376, 
$111,945 and $142,464, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was 
$31,115, $23,872 and $23,801, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $13,510, $11,818 and 
$11,900, respectively, in employee contributions. 

School for Integrated Academics and Technology: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 
2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled $173,859, $141,301 and $115,992, respectively, and employee portions totaled 
$132,694, $120,908 and $138,921, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the 
school was $26,443, $25,833 and $23,030, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $13,221, $12,917 
and $11,515, respectively, in employee contributions. 

South Valley Academy: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled 
$259,401, $170,682 and $139,456, respectively, and employee portions totaled $207,643, $144,206 and 
$167,410, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $39,444, 
$30,675 and $27,667, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $19,531, $15,321 and $13,847, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

The Bataan Militarv Academy: Employer ERA contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
totaled $99,209, $62,859 and $57,582, respectively, and employee portions totaled $75,729, $54,190 and 
$67,111, respectively. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, RHC remitted by the school was $14,969, 
$11,534 and $11,228, respectively, in employer contributions, as well as $7,813, $5,767 and $5,567, 
respectively, in employee contributions. 

F. Subsequent Events Related to Charter Schools 

Los Puentes Charter School and Los Puentes Educational Foundation: In November 2014, the Foundation 
purchased the building and land at the school's current location for $2,840,000, in which the school entered into 
a separate lease purchase with the Foundation as described below. On November 4, 2014, the school entered 
into a 20 year building lease agreement with the Los Puentes Educational Foundation with an option to 
purchase. The agreement includes a purchase price of $3,175,000 and requires monthly payments, including 
interest of $18,378, with an initial payment of $710,000. The lease includes a termination clause in the event 
the school does not have sufficient funds to make the lease payments. 
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School for Integrated Academics and Technology: Subsequent to year-end, the school changed the name of the 
school to ABQ Charter Academy as a result of the discontinued affiliation with the National SIA Tech. On July 1, 
2014 the school entered into a 25 year building lease agreement with an unrelated party with option to 
purchase. The agreement includes a purchase price of $2,329,876 and requires monthly payments including 
interest of $13,856, with annual payments from HB33 distributions of $150,000. The agreement also required 
an initial payment of $475,000, which the school had already made a deposit payment of $40,000 during FY14, 
with the remaining $435,000 paid on July 1, 2014. The lease includes a termination clause in the event the 
school doesn't have sufficient funds to make the lease payments. 

G. Related Party Transactions 

2151 Century Public Academy: It was noted that the charter school has a foundation. The foundation did not 
require an audit for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Alice King Community School: It was noted that the charter school has a foundation. The foundation did not 
require an audit for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Corrales International Charter School: It was noted that the charter school has a foundation. The foundation 
did not require an audit for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

El Camino Real Academy: It was noted that the charter school has a foundation. The foundation did not require 
an audit for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Digital Arts and Technology Academy: During FY14, the school entered into lease agreement with APS, the 
initial term is one year, with options to extend annually for 20 years. During FY14 APS entered into a lease 
purchase on the building which is subleased to the school. Payments to APS for the lease totaled $198,168 
during FY14. In addition, the school contributed $450,000 to the lease purchase from HB33 funds. As part of 
the lease all HB33 distributions received by the school are to be paid to APS. These totaled $47,974 for the year 
ended June 30, 2014. The school also has a payable due to APS at year-end of $191,521 for HB 33 payments. 

Gordon Bernell Charter School: It was noted that the charter school has a foundation. The foundation did not 
require an audit for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

La Academia de Esperanza: It was noted that the charter school has a foundation. The foundation did not 
require an audit for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Los Puentes Charter School: The school entered into a sublease with the foundation. Total payments to the 
Foundation for the sublease were $313,178. 

Montessori of the Rio Grande: Lease payments were paid to APS for the fiscal year totaling $116,891. In 
addition, the school has an MOU with APS for the school facilities and, as part of the MOU, all HB-33 
distributions to the school are paid to APS. These totaled $115,816 for the year ended June 30, 2014. APS is the 
school's authorizing school district. It was also noted that the school has a foundation and received a $54,500 
donation from the foundation. 

Mountain Mahoganv Charter School: The founder of the school also owns the property that the school rents. 
The founder. has never been involved in the day-to-day operations and has not served on the Governing Council 
since FY2007. The founder also donated $150,000, $0 and $21,987 to the school in fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. It was also noted that the school has a foundation. The foundation did not require an audit 
for the year ended June 30, 2014. During FY14 the school entered into a lease purchase for the building and 
land with the school founder. The purchase amount of $2,115,000 equals the appraisal amount. Payments 
under this agreement during FY14 totaled $312,998, including a $200,000 initial payment. 
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Native American Community Academy: It was noted that the charter school has a foundation. The foundation 
did not require an audit for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Nuestros Valores Charter School: It was noted that the business manager's sister works as a contractor of the 
school in the business office. Also, the sisters serve as business manager and assistant business manager for 
Public Academy for Performing Arts and for Alice King Community School. 

Public Academy for Performing Arts and Alice King Community School: It was noted that the charter school has 
a foundation. The foundation did not require an audit for the year ended June 30, 2014. It was noted that APS is 
a related party due to the MOU between APS and the school for lease payments. During the year, the school 
paid $297,845 in lease and utilities payments to APS. The school also has a payable due to APS at year-end of 
$89,842 for HB 33 payments. 

Robert F. Kennedy Charter School: Lease payments were paid to APS for the fiscal year totaling $135,472. In 
addition, the school has an MOU with APS for the school facilities and, as part of the MOU, all HB-33 
distributions to the school are paid to APS. These totaled $112,117 for the year ended June 30, 2014. The 
school also has a payable due to APS at year-end of $12,591 for HB 33 payments. 

South Valley Academy: Lease payments were paid to APS for the fiscal year totaling $180,918. In addition, the 
school has an MOU with APS for the school facilities and, as part of the MOU, all HB-33 distributions to the 
school are paid to APS. These totaled $148,720 for the year ended June 30, 2014. The school also has a payable 
due to APS at year-end of $45,243 for HB 33 payments. 

H. Component Units of Charter Schools 

The following charter schools maintained component units as follows: 

Los Puentes Charter School: Los Puentes Charter School Foundation is a nonprofit corporation established in 
2001 to provide support to the school by acquiring and holding real estate to be leased or otherwise made 
available to the school. 

The financial information of the Los Puentes Charter School Foundation is presented in a separate column to 
emphasize that the corporation is legally separate from the School. 
The corporation has a fiscal year end of December 31; however, the component unit column presents financial 
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014. 
Cash and Temporary Investments: At June 30, 2014, the book value of the corporation's deposits was $45,255. 

Component Unit - Foundation 

Net position at June 30, 2014 $ 40,255 

Montessori of the Rio Grande: Friends of the Montessori Foundation is a nonprofit corporation established to 
provide support to Montessori of the Rio Grande by supporting educational programs and initiatives undertaken 
by the school. The foundation's other purpose is to conduct educational and training activities, community 
development, fund-raising assistance and academic research and dissemination to promote educational 
initiatives that serve the school, as well as the local, regional, national and international educational community. 

The financial information of the Friends of the Montessori Foundation is presented in a separate column to 
emphasize that the corporation is legally separate from the School. 

The corporation has a fiscal year end of December 31; however, the component unit column presents financial 
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014. 
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Cash and Temporary Investments: At June 30, 2014, the book value of the corporation's deposits was $11,091. 

Component Unit - Foundation 

·Net position at June 30, 2014 $ 13,091 

I. Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures 

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosures as part of the combined statements of certain 
information concerning individual funds, including: 

A. Excess of expenditures over appropriations. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014, with funds which inter-fund 
transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts represented (*). 

C. Deficit fund balance of individual funds. 

21" Century Public Academy 

A. These funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014: 

Fund 11000 - Instruction 
Fund 21000- Food Services 
Fund 24154 - Support Services 
Fund 31700-Support Services 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

35,895 
2,343 
4,743 

147 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 32,044 
HB 33 Capital Improvements 10,583 
Public School Capital Outlay 42 627 

Total due to/from other funds $ 42,627 $ 42,627 

C. The following fund reported a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014: 

Undesignated, reported in: 
General Fund (deficit) - General $ (107,044) 

Albuquerque Talent Development Secondary Cnarter School 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 
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Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 29,562 

2010 Library GO Bonds 2,062 

2012 Library GO Bonds 2,989 

Public School Capital Outlay 24 511 

Total due to/from other funds $ 29,562 $ 29,562 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Alice King Community School 

A. The following exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014: 

Food Services Fund- Food Service $ 4,791 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 81,486 

IDEA-B, Entitlement 6,038 

IDEA-B, Risk Pool 59,481 

Teacher/Principal Training 13,060 

2010 Library GO Bonds 411 

NM Grown Fresh Fruits & Vegetable 591 

Next Generation Assessments 1905 

Total due to/from other funds $ 81,486 $ 81,486 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Christine Duncan Heritage Academy 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 
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Due to Due from 
other Funds other Funds 

General $ $ 58,939 

Title I IASA 3,538 
IDEA-B Entitlement 801 

EMSI 7,979 
Kindergarten Three Plus 26,365 

Public School Capital Outlay 20 256 

Total due to/from other funds $ 58,939 $ 58,939 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Corrales International Charter School 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Other Funds other Funds 

General $ $ 14,098 

Elementary & Middle School Initiative 5,990 
NM Reads to Lead K-3 6,531 
Next Generation Assessments 1577 

Total due to/from other funds $ 14,098 $ 14,098 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Digital Arts and Technology Academy 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 1,066 

CNM Dual Credit Textbook 18 

Beginning Teacher Mentoring 922 

Special Capital Outlay 162 

Total due to/from other funds $ 1,084 $ 1,084 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 
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El Camino Real Academy 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 13,350 
English Language Acquisition 6,953 
Library GO Bonds (27106) 330 
Library GO Bonds (27107) 3,507 
Breakfast for Elementary 1,399 
Kindergarten Three Plus 1161 

Total due to/from other funds $ 13,350 $ 13,350 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Gordon Bernell Charter School 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 42,071 
2010 Library GO Bonds 214 
Public School Capital Outlay 41857 

Total due to/from other funds $ 42,071 s 42,071 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

La Academia de Esperanza 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. There were no receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014. 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 
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Los Puentes Charter School 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 105,269 
Title I IASA 48,262 
IDEA-B, Entitlement 12,812 
English Language Acquisition 1,792 

. Teacher/Principal Training 12,796 
Title I School Improvement 19,149 
2010 Library GO Bonds 535 
2012 Library GO Bonds 3,250 

NM Grown Fresh Fruits & Vegetables 591 
Next Generation Assessments 6 082 

Total due to/from other funds $ 105,269 s 105,269 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Montessori of the Rio Grande 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. There were no receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014. 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Mountain Mahogany Community School 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 4,172 
Teacher/Principal Training 1,164 
2010 Library GO Bonds 3 008 

Total due to/from other funds s 4,172 s 4,172 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 
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Native American Community Academy 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed. below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 135,937 
Title I 2,874 
English Language Acquisition 539 
Teaching Support for Low Income 72,625 
Private Direct Grants 58,416 
SB9 Capital Improvements 1483 

Total due to/from other funds $ 135,937 $ 135,937 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Nuestros Va lores Charter School 

A. No fund exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 52,869 
Teacher/Principal Training 1,441 
Title I, School Improvement 30,909 
Library GO Bonds 2,116 
NM Grown Fresh Fruits & Vegetable 591 
Next Generation Assessments 4,936 
Special Capital Outlay 12,061 
SB9 Capital Improvements 815 

Total due to/from other funds $ 52,869 s 52,869 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Public Academy for Performing Arts 
. . . 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 
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Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 117,766 

IDEA-B, Entitlement 27,505 

Teacher/Principal Training 20,234 

Library GO Bonds 2,519 

NM Grown Fresh Fruits & Vegetables 591 

Public School Capital Outlay 66 917 

Total due to/from other funds $ 117,766 $ 117,766 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

Robert F. Kennedy Charter School 

A. These funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014: 

Fund 11000 - Instruction 
Fund 11000 - Support Services 
Fund 24101- Support Services 
Fund 31600-Support Services 
Fund 31700- Capital Outlay 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

5,565 
8,727 
7,300 
1,133 
2,198 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 117,391 

Title I IASA 29,489 

IDEA-B Entitlement 8,141 

Teacher/Principal Training 8,992 

Title I School Improvement 7,000 

Carl D Perkins 36,005 

2010 Library GO Bonds 505 

2010 Library GO Bonds 3,312 

NM Grown Fresh Fruits & Vegetables 591 

Next Generation Assessments 1,768 

SB9 Capital Improvements 21588 

Total due to/from other funds $ 117,391 $ 117,391 

C. The following funds reported a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014: 

Undesignated, reported in: 
General (deficit) $ (37,747} 
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School for Integrated Academics and Technology 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 5,400 
Public School Capital Outlay 5 400 

Total due to/from other funds $ 5,400 $ 5,400 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

South Valley Academy 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 

Due to Due from 
Other Funds Other Funds 

General $ $ 183,826 
Title I, !ASA 119,233 
IDEA-B Entitlement 2,955 
English Language Acquisition 1,750 
Title I School Improvement 4,263 
Next Generation Assessments 10,396 
Public School Capital Outlay 45 229 

Total due to/from other funds $ 183,826 s 183,826 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

The Bataan Military Academy 

A. No funds exceeded approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

B. Receivables and payables from inter-fund transactions as of June 30, 2014 are listed below. Funds which 
inter-fund transactions were affected or created due to cash overdrafts are represented. 
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General $ 
Public School Capital Outlay 

Total due to/from other funds $ 

C. No funds reporting a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014. 

J. Litigation 

Due to 
Other Funds 

$ 
21230 

21,230 $ 

Financial Section 

Due from 
Other Funds 

21,230 

21.230 

South Valley Academy: The school has accrued a liability for $23,078 for a settlement with a former employee 
during FY14. 

K. Schedule of Other Governmental Agreements 

Name/ Program Begin End 
School Name Responsible Party Description Date Date 

Montessori of the Rio Albuquerque Public Facilities/HB 33 11/01/2009 Cancelable upon 
Grande Schools termination 
Public Academy of Albuquerque Public Facilities/HB 33 3/31/2010 Cancelable upon 
Performing Arts Schools funds termination 
Robert F. Kennedy Albuquerque Public Facilities/HB 33 07/01/2010 Cancelable upon 
Charter School Schools funds termination 
School for Integrated Albuquerque Job Corps Use of facilities 11/05/2009 6/30/14 
Academics and Center 
Technology 
South Valley Albuquerque Public Facilities/HB 33 06/07/2011 Cancelable upon 
Academy Schools funds termination 

L. Fund Balance Reporting 

Fund balance - the difference between assets and liabilities in the governmental fund financial statements - is 
among the most widely and frequently used information in state and local governmental financial reports. GASB 
Statement 54 distinguishes fund balances based on the relative strength of the constraints that control the 
purposes for which specific amounts can be spent. Beginning with the most binding constraints, fund balance 
amounts are reported in the following classifications: 

• Nonspendab/e - portion of net resources that cannot be spent because of their form or because they 
must remain intact, such as fund balances associated with inventories or are legally or contractually 
required to remain intact. 

• Restricted- amounts constrained by external parties, constitutional provision, or enabling legislation. 
• Committed- amounts constrained by a government using its highest level of decision-making authority. 

The Board of Education is the highest level of decision making authority. Formal Board action, through a 
resolution, creates a commitment. 

• Assigned - amounts a government intends to use for a particular purpose. The governing council has 
designated the responsibility to assign fund balance to its Business and Finance Director. Assigned fund 
balances within the Charter Schools represent amounts assigned for next years' budget. 

• Unassigned- amounts that are not constrained at all will be reported in the general fund. 
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NOTE 20. Component Unit - Albuquerque Public Schools Foundation 

DEFINITION OF REPORTING ENTITY - The Albuquerque Public Schools Foundation {the Foundation), a 
component unit of the Albuquerque Public Schools {APS), is a nonprofit organization incorporated under laws of 
the State of New Mexico on April 25, 1995. The Foundation was established to solicit, receive and manage 
private voluntary support for the benefit and on behalf of APS. The Foundation itself has no component units. 

The Foundation is governed by a Board of Directors, which has the responsibility for determining policy and for 
the execution and evaluation of programs and activities conducted by the Foundation. The Board consists of no 
less than three members and no more than 25 members. Board members represent government, business, 
public sector, private individuals and organizations that are interested in supporting programs and services of 
APS. The term served by Board members is three years. The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes 
under section 501{c){3) of the Internal Revenue Code {the Code) and is not considered a private foundation 
within the meaning of Section 509{a) of the Code. 

A Memorandum of Agreement between the Foundation and APS was signed and executed on January 5, 2005. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation - Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958, Not-for-Profit 
Entities. Under ASC 958, the Foundation is required to report information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to three classes of net assets. 

Unrestricted Net Assets - These assets represent sources whose use is not limited to or restricted by 
donors. Unrestricted net assets have arisen from exchange transactions, receipt of unrestricted 
contributions and expirations or satisfaction of existing restrictions. 

The Foundation treats restricted contributions whose restrictions are satisfied during the same fiscal year as 
unrestricted support. All contributions made to the Foundation are considered to be available for 
unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - These assets result from (a) contributions and other inflows of assets 
whose use by the Foundation is limited by donor imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time 
or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Foundation pursuant to those stipulations; (b) other assets 
enhancements and diminishments subject to the same kinds of stipulations; and (c) imposed stipulations, 
their expiration by passage of time, or their fulfillment and removal by actions of the Foundation pursuant 
to those stipulations. 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - These assets have donor-imposed restrictions that stipulate that 
resources be maintained permanently but permit the Foundation to use up or expend part or all of the 
income or economic benefits derived from the donated assets. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Foundation considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities 
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit with financial 
institutions and money market accounts. 
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Investments - The Foundation records investments at fair value. See Note 4 for a description of fair value 
determination. 

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - During the year ended December 31, 2008, FASB issued authoritative 
guidance, which includes the following financial statement disclosure requirements for the Foundation for the 
year ended June 30, 2014. 

Classification of Net Assets - Endowment funds are used to account for investments in which the principal 
is temporarily or permanently restricted or Board-designated for a specific purpose. 

Interpretation of Relevant Law - The Foundation has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of 
Institutions Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the 
gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a 
result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies as permanent restricted net assets: (a) the original 
value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and 
(c) accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift 
instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor
restricted endowment fund is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are 
appropriated for expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence 
prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in 
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration 
and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) 
general economic conditions, (4) the possible effects of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return 
from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the Foundation, and (7) the 
Foundation investment policies. 

Income Taxes - The Foundation is a non-profit corporation and qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and is classified as other than a private foundation. As 
such, their normal activities do not result in any income tax liability. The Foundation pays taxes on unrelated 
business income. 

The Foundation would recognize accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and 
penalties in operating expenses. There were no such interest or penalties recorded for the year ended June 30, 
2014. 

The Foundation files informational tax returns as prescribed by the tax laws of the jurisdictions in which it 
operates. In the normal course of business, the Foundation is subject to examination by federal, state, local and 
foreign jurisdictions, where applicable. As of June 30, 2014, the tax years that remain subject to examination by 
the major tax jurisdictions under the statute of limitations are from the year ended June 30, 2011 and forward. 

Revenue Recognition - The Foundation is accounted for as a not-for-profit organization, and its follows revenue 
recognition rules as defined below: 

Donations - The Foundation recognizes revenue on donations when all applicable eligibility requirements 
are met. 

Pledges - Unconditional pledges, if any, are recognized as revenues in the period received and as assets, 
decreases in liabilities or expenses, depending on the form of the benefits to be received. Conditional 
pledges are recognized as revenues when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. An 
allowance for doubtful pledges is recorded when the pledge is recorded. The allowance is based on past 
pledge loss experience and other factors that management considers necessary in estimating pledge losses. 
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Contributions of Services Revenues - Contributions of services are recognized in the financial statements of 
the Foundation only if the services received: (a) create or enhance non-financial assets of the Foundation, 
and (b) require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need 
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Use of office furniture and equipment is provided at no charge 
by APS. 

Beneficial Interest in Remainder Trusts - A charitable remainder trust is an arrangement in which a donor 
establishes and funds a trust with specified distributions to be made to a designated beneficiary or 
beneficiaries over the trust's term. Upon termination of the trust, the Foundation receives a percentage of 
the assets remaining in the trust. Beneficial interest in remainder trusts represent the present value of 
estimated future cash receipts from the trust's assets. Contribution revenue is recognized in the period in 
which the trust is established. In subsequent years, income earned on trust assets, recognized gains and 
losses, and distributions paid will be recognized. Revaluation of the present value of the estimated future 
payments and changes in actuarial assumptions will be recognized in the Statement of Activities and 
Changes in Net Assets. 

Advertising Costs - The Foundation expenses advertising costs as incurred. Expenses incurred for the year 
ended June 30, 2014 were approximately $1,800. 

INVESTMENTS 

Investment Policy Statement (JPS): In December 2002, the Foundation Board of Directors adopted an IPS to 
assist in the supervising, monitoring and evaluating of the Foundation's investments. The JPS is to provide 
financial stability for the Foundation operations and an increasing stream of income for future program growth. 
In February 2014 the Foundation transferred all investment assets held with Bank of Albuquerque to Merrill 
Lynch. 

The Foundation shall be responsible for: 

• Overseeing the Foundation Investment Portfolio. 
• Defining the investment objectives and policies of the portfolio. 
• Directing the Investment Manager to make changes in investment policy and to oversee and to approve 

or disapprove Investment Manager recommendations with regard to policy, guidelines, objectives and 
specific investments. 

• Providing the Investment Manager with all relevant information on its financial conditions and risk 
tolerances and notifying the Investment Manager promptly of any changes to this information. 

The Foundation agrees that investment discretion can be delegated to qualified, professional investment 
specialists or private portfolio managers (Investment Managers) that would be identified by the Foundation's 
Finance Committee resulting from an extensive quantitative and qualitative process of diligence. 

Guidelines for the Investment Manager are that the investment of the Foundation's investment portfolio shall 
be limited to individual marketable securities or packaged products (e.g., mutual funds) in the following 
categories: 

• Cash and cash equivalents 
• Fixed Income - Domestic bonds 
• Fixed Income - Non-U.S. bonds 
• Fixed Income - High Yield 
• Equities - U.S. and Non-U.S. within an international portfolio 
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - In determining fair value, the Foundation uses various valuation 
approaches within the ASC 820 fair value measurement framework. Fair value measurements are determined 
based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. ASC 820 establishes 
a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes 
the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. ASC 820 
defines levels within the hierarchy based on the reliability of inputs as follows: 

• level 1 - Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets; 

• level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or identical assets or liabilities 
in less active markets, such as dealer or broker markets; and 

• level 3 - Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or 
significant value drivers are unobservable, such as pricing models, discounted cash flow models and 
similar techniques not based on market, exchange, dealer or broker-traded transactions. 

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value by classification within the fair value 
hierarchy as of June 30, 2014. 

Fair Value Measurements Using 
Quoted Prices Significant 

in Active Other Significant 
Markets for Observable Unobservable 

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs 
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total 

As of June 30, 2014 
Bonds $ 991,356 $ $ $ 991,356 
Equities 1,118,165 1, 118, 165 
Beneficial interest in 

remainder trust 2,396,911 2,396,911 

Total $ 2,109,521 $ $ 2,396,911 $ 4,506,432 

The following information summarizes the difference between cost and the estimated fair value 
investments: 

Estimated Market Value 
Cost Fair Value Over (Under) Cost 

As of June 30, 2014 
Bonds $ 1,009,684 $ 991,356 $ (18,328) 
Equities 986,314 1, 118, 165 131,851 
Beneficial interest in 

remainder trust 2,761,809 2,396,911 (364,898) 

Total $ 4,757,807 $ 4,506,432 $ (251,375) 

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of assets measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis using significant unobservable (Level 3) inputs during the year ended June 30, 2014. 

for 
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Beginning Balance 

Contributions 
Distributions 
Dividend income 
Net unrealized gain 
Investment management fees 
Change in present value discount 

Ending Balance 

$ 

$ 

Financial Sectian 

2,335,652 

100,396 
(271,413) 

55,807 
349,169 
(38,827) 

(133,873) 

2,396,911 

Unrealized gains and losses applicable to instruments valued using significant unobservable inputs {Level 3) are 
included in the statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

BENEFICIAL INTERESTS IN REMAINDER TRUSTS - On May 11, 2001, the Foundation was awarded an interest in 
the William H. and Lilian Dolde Charitable Trust for the purpose of funding fine arts programs in the 
Albuquerque Public Foundations. The Bank of America administers the Trust. The Trust was originally funded in 
the amount of $2,000,000. The Trust document calls for the annual distribution of an amount equal to 5% of the 
Trust's net position. This annual distribution will expire on December 31, 2051. Upon termination of the Trust, 
the Foundation is entitled to a portion of the remaining assets in order to establish a permanent endowment for 
the fine arts. The Foundation is irrevocably entitled to 90% of all annual distributions and 90% of the remaining 
Trust net position upon termination. The Foundation's interest in the Trust's assets is recorded at fair market 
value with adjustments made annually for increases or decreases in value. The present value of the Trust 
agreement was initially calculated using a discount rate of 5% with annual distributions to be received of 
$90,000 (90% of $100,000) for 49.5 years. The present value of the Trust net position at termination was 
initially estimated using a value of $1,800,000 in remaining net position {90% of $2,000,000) with a discount rate 
of 5% for 50 years. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the Trust distributed $98,761 to the Foundation. 
The present value of the Trust increased by approximately $21,670 and the fair value of the Trust's assets 
decreased by approximately $13,750 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This resulted in the recording of a 
beneficial interest in the Trust in the amount of $1,940,785 for the year ended June 30, 2014. The 2014 changes 
in present and fair values are reflected in the Foundation's Statement of Activities and Cha.nges in Net Assets. 

In April of 2003, the Foundation was awarded an interest in the Guhl Charitable Trust for the purpose of funding 
programs in the Albuquerque Public Foundations. The Bank of America administers the Trust. The Trust 
document calls for the distribution of an amount equal to 20% of the Trust's remaining assets to the Foundation 
upon termination on April 13, 2014. The Foundation's interest in the Trust's assets is recorded at fair market 
value with adjustments made annually for increases or decreases in value. The present value of the Trust 
agreement was calculated using a discount rate of 5%. No present value of the Trust net position at termination 
was estimated as the termination date was within a year. As of the report date the Trust is still in settlement. 
The Trust assets {20% of $2,280,631 [market value of trust as of June 30, 2014]), with a discount rate of 5%, 
resulted in the recording of a beneficial interest in the Guhl Trust in the amount of $456,126 for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2014. The increase in beneficial interest of approximately $53,340 is reflected in the 
Foundation's Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. 

RELATED PARTIES - District programs are the primary beneficiaries of funds donated to the Foundation. Certain 
District employees whose services were contributed to the Foundation also served as Foundation Board 
members in an ex-officio capacity. Certain voting Board members were affiliated with the District or with other 
entities served through the Foundation. 

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Foundation received contributions from the District with a market 
value of $450, 756. The contributions included employee services and donated supplies and materials. 
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The Foundation has no employees of its own. During the year ended June 30, 2014, all Foundation staff 
members were employees of the District. 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following at June 30, 
2014: 

Purpose: 
APS Programs 
Nursing services - vision care 
Fine Arts 
Mini Grants to School Programs 
Middle School Grants 
Marketing expenses and teacher awards 
Other 
Teacher Professional Development 
Grants energy conservation 
Library Projects at Griegos and Los Padillos 
Teacher Awards in B. Facio's name 

Total 

$ 

$ 

1,515,874 
1,032, 136 

231,617 
87,054 
70,613 
60,567 
47,329 
16,047 
5,000 
3,228 

400 

3,069,865 

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes. Net assets 
released from restrictions were comprised of the following: 

Purpose: 
APS Programs 
Fine Arts 
Mini Grants to School Programs 

other 
Teacher Awards in B. Facio's name 
Nursing services - vision care 

Library Projects at Griegos and Los Padillos 

Total 

$ 

$ 

1,523,655 
199, 197 
159,700 
155, 160 
31,991 
28,000 
15,000 

2, 112,703 

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Permanently restricted net assets are restricted to investment in 
perpetuity, the income from which is expendable to support the Foundation. At June 30, 2014, permanently 
restricted net assets were made up of the Do Ide Trust in the amount of $1,932,866. 

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - The Foundation maintains cash depository accounts with various financial 
institutions. These deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. 
Balances in these accounts may at times exceed the federally insured amount. The Foundation did not have 
deposits in excess of the insured amounts at year end. The Foundation has not experienced, and its 
management believes it is not exposed to, significant credit risk from excess deposits. 

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Foundation changed its 
method of financial reporting from the framework found under the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) to the framework found under the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). As a non-profit 
organization, the FASB framework will allow the Foundation to report information that is more comparable to 
other foundations and better reflects the nature of the Foundation's activities. The change had no effect on the 
change in net assets, net assets, or total assets for the year ended June 30, 2014. 
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State of New Mexico 
Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 

Required Supplementary Information 

Other Post-employment Benefits {OPEB} Other than Pensions 

{Unaudited} 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Valuation for the (1) 
Actuarial Years Actuarial Value (2) (1)-(2) 

A-1 

(1 )1(2) 
Ended June 30 of Asset AAL UAAL Funded Ratio 

2014. $ $ 2,873,680 $ 2,873,680 

2013 $ $ 7,700,096 $ 7,700,096 

2012 $ $ 8,133,109 $ 8,133,109 

• For the valuation year ended June 30, 2014, there was a change in the plan, in which the majority of the 
premiums are now being paid by the retiree as opposed to the District. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 
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The Book-Entry-Only System 
Initially, DTC will be the securities depository for the Bonds.  The Paying Agent/Registrar will register all Bonds in the name of Cede & 
Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) and provide DTC with one Bond for each maturity. 

DTC provided the following information.  Neither the Financial Advisor nor the District can vouch for its accuracy or completeness.  
For further information, please contact DTC or view its website at www.dtc.org. 

DTC is a limited purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, a member of the Federal Reserve 
System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New Mexico and New York Uniform Commercial Codes, and a “clearing 
agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  DTC was created 
to hold securities of its participants (the “DTC Participants”) and to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions 
among DTC Participants in such securities through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of the DTC Participants, thereby 
eliminating the need for physical movement of security certificates.  DTC Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, 
trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations, some of whom (and/or their representatives) own DTC.  
Access to the DTC system is also available to others, such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or 
maintain a custodial relationship with a DTC Participant, either directly or indirectly (the “Indirect Participants”). 

Purchases of the Bonds under the book-entry system may be made only through brokers and dealers who are, or act through, DTC 
Participants.  Each DTC Participant will receive a credit balance in the records of DTC in the amount of such DTC Participant’s 
ownership interest in the Bonds.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of a Bond (the “Beneficial Owner”) will be recorded 
through the records of the DTC Participant or the Indirect Participant.  Beneficial Owners are to receive a written confirmation of their 
purchase providing certain details of the Bonds acquired.  Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds will be accomplished only by 
book entries made by DTC and, in turn, by DTC Participants or Indirect Participants who act on behalf of the Beneficial Owners.  
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds will not receive nor have the right to receive physical delivery of the Bonds, and will not be or be 
considered to be registered owners under the Bond Resolution except as specifically provided in the Bond Resolution in the event the 
book-entry system is discontinued. 

SO LONG AS CEDE & CO., AS NOMINEE OF DTC, IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, REFERENCES IN THIS 
OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO THE REGISTERED OWNERS OF THE BONDS WILL MEAN CEDE & CO. AND WILL NOT MEAN THE 
BENEFICIAL OWNERS. 

The District and the Registrar may treat DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the Bonds registered in its name for 
the purpose of payment of the principal of or interest or premium, if any, on the Bonds, selecting Bonds and portions thereof to be 
redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to be given to registered owners under the Bond Resolution, register the transfer of 
Bonds, obtaining any consent or other action to be taken by registered owners and for all other purposes whatsoever, and will not be 
affected by any notice to the contrary.  The District and the Registrar will not have any responsibility or obligation to any DTC 
Participant, any person claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds under or through DTC or any DTC Participant, Indirect 
Participant or other person not shown on the records of the Registrar as being a registered owner with respect to:  the accuracy of any 
records maintained by DTC, any DTC Participant or Indirect Participant regarding ownership interests in the Bonds; the payment by 
DTC, any DTC Participant or Indirect Participant of any amount in respect of the principal of or interest or premium, if any, on the 
Bonds; the delivery to any DTC Participant, Indirect Participant or any Beneficial Owner of any notice that is permitted or required to 
be given to registered owners under the Bond Resolution; or any consent given or other action taken by DTC as a registered owner. 

Neither DTC nor its nominee, Cede & Co., provides consents with respect to any security.  Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an 
omnibus proxy to the issuer of the securities for which it is acting as securities depository as soon as possible after the establishment 
of a “record date” by the issuer for purposes of soliciting consents from the holders of such securities.  The omnibus proxy assigns 
Cede & Co.’s voting rights to those DTC Participants having such securities credited to their accounts on such record date. 

Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be paid to DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., as registered owner of the Bonds.  
Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants is the responsibility of DTC and disbursement of such payments to the 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds is the responsibility of the DTC Participants or the Indirect Participants.  Upon receipt of any such 
payments, DTC’s current practice is to immediately credit the accounts of the DTC Participants in accordance with their respective 
holdings shown on the records of DTC.  Payments by DTC Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners of the Bonds 
will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with municipal securities held for the accounts 
of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such DTC Participant or Indirect Participant 
and not of DTC, the Registrar or the District, subject to any statutory and regulatory requirements then in effect. 

As long as the DTC book-entry system is used for the Bonds, the Registrar will give any notice required to be given to registered 
owners of Bonds only to DTC or its nominee.  Any failure of DTC to advise any DTC Participant, of any DTC Participant to notify any 
Indirect Participant, or of any DTC Participant or Indirect Participant to notify any Beneficial Owner, of any such notice and its content 
or effect will not affect the validity of any action premised on such notice.  Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC 
to DTC Participants, by DTC Participants to Indirect Participants and by DTC Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory and regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 
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time to time.  Beneficial Owners may desire to make arrangements with a DTC Participant or Indirect Participant so that all 
communications to DTC that affect such Beneficial Owners will be forwarded in writing by such DTC Participant or Indirect Participant. 

NEITHER THE DISTRICT NOR THE REGISTRAR WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO SUCH DTC 
PARTICIPANTS, OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES, WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE 
PROVIDING OF NOTICE FOR THE DTC PARTICIPANTS, THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF 
THE BONDS. 

For every transfer and exchange of a beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds, a Beneficial Owner may be charged a sum sufficient 
to cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto. 

DTC may determine to discontinue providing its service with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the 
District or the Registrar at any time.  In addition, if the District determines that (i) DTC is unable to discharge its responsibilities with 
respect to the Bonds or (ii) continuation of the system of book-entry only transfers through DTC is not in the best interests of the 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds or of the District, the District may thereupon terminate the services of DTC with respect to the Bonds.  
If for any such reason the system of book-entry transfers through DTC is discontinued, the District may within 90 days thereafter 
appoint a substitute securities depository that, in its opinion, is willing and able to undertake the functions of DTC upon reasonable 
and customary terms.  If a successor is not approved, Bond certificates will be delivered as described in the Bond Resolution in fully 
registered form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof in the names of the Beneficial Owners, Indirect Participants 
or DTC Participants. 

In the event the book-entry system is discontinued, the persons to whom Bond certificates are registered will be treated as registered 
owners for all purposes of the Bond Resolution, including the giving to the District or the Registrar of any notice, consent, request or 
demand pursuant to the Bond Resolution for any purpose whatsoever.  In such event, the Bonds will be transferred to such registered 
owners, interest on the Bonds will be payable by check of the Paying Agent, as paying agent, mailed to such registered owners, and 
the principal and redemption price of all Bonds will be payable at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent. 
The foregoing material concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system is based on information furnished by DTC.  No representation 
is made by the District or the Underwriter as to the accuracy or completeness of such information. 
 
Limited Book-Entry Responsibilities 
While a book-entry-only system is used for the Bonds, the Paying Agent/Registrar will send redemption and other notices only to 
DTC.  Any failure of DTC to advise any DTC Participant, or of any DTC Participant to notify any Beneficial Owner, of any notice and 
its content or effect will not affect the validity of sufficiency of the proceedings relating to the Bond redemption or any other action 
based on the notice. 

The District and the Financial Advisor have no responsibility or liability for any aspects of the records relating to or payments made on 
account of beneficial ownership, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to beneficial ownership of interests in 
the Bonds. 

The District and the Financial Advisor cannot and do not give any assurances that DTC will distribute payments to DTC Participants or 
that DTC Participants or others will distribute payments with respect to the Bonds received by DTC or its nominees as the holder or 
any redemption notices or other notices to the beneficial holders, or that they will do so on a timely basis, or that DTC will serve and 
act in the manner described in this Official Statement. 
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[FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION] 
 
 

______________, 2015 
 
 
Board of Education 
Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 
 
 We have acted as bond counsel to the Albuquerque Municipal School District No. 12 (the 
"District") in connection with the issuance of its $70,000,000 General Obligation School 
Building Bonds, Series 2015 (the "Bonds") dated _________, 2015, with interest payable on 
February 1, 2016 and semi-annually thereafter on each August 1 and February 1, until maturity 
and being Bonds in registered form maturing on August 1, in the years 2016 through 2030, 
inclusive.  
 
 We have examined the transcript of proceedings (the "Transcript") relating to the 
issuance of the Bonds and the law under authority of which the Bonds are issued.  Based on our 
examination, we are of the opinion that, under the law existing on the date of this opinion, 
subject to the provisions of federal bankruptcy law and other laws affecting creditors’ rights and 
further subject to exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity: 
 
 1. The Bonds constitute valid and binding general obligations of the District and are 
to be paid from the proceeds of the levy of ad valorem taxes on all taxable property within the 
District without limitation as to rate or amount. 
 
 2. Assuming continuing compliance by the District with the requirements of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and with the covenants contained in 
the Transcript regarding the use, expenditure and investment of Bond proceeds, interest on the 
Bonds is not includable in the gross income of the owners of the Bonds for purposes of federal 
income taxation.  Interest on the Bonds is not treated as an item of tax preference for purposes of 
the alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations.  Failure of the District to 
comply with its covenants and with the requirements of the Code may cause interest on the 
Bonds to become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to their 
date of issuance.  
 
 3. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from net income for purposes of the tax 
imposed on individuals, estates and trusts under the New Mexico Income Tax Act and for 
purposes of the tax imposed on corporations under the New Mexico Corporate Income and 
Franchise Tax Act.   
 
 Other than as described herein, we have not addressed nor are we opining on the tax 
consequences to any person of the investment in, or the receipt of interest on, the Bonds. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 
 
 
 Section 1. Recitals.  This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the 
"Undertaking") is executed and delivered by the Albuquerque Municipal School District 
No. 12, Bernalillo and Sandoval Counties, New Mexico (the "District"), in connection 
with the issuance of the Albuquerque Public School District No. 12, Bernalillo and 
Sandoval Counties, New Mexico, General Obligation School Building Bonds, Series 
2015 (the "Bonds").  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Resolution of the District 
adopted on September 2, 2015 (the "Resolution").  Pursuant to the Resolution, to allow 
the underwriters of the Bonds to comply with the Rule (defined below), the District is 
required to make certain continuing disclosure undertakings for the benefit of owners 
(including beneficial owners) of the Bonds (the "Owners").  This Undertaking is intended 
to satisfy the requirements of the Rule. 
 
 Section 2. Definitions. 
 
  (a) "Annual Financial Information" means the financial information 
(which will be based on financial statements prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, as in effect from time to time ("GAAP"), for 
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
("GASB")) and operating data with respect to the District, delivered at least annually 
pursuant to Sections 3(a) and 3(b) of this Undertaking, consisting of information of the 
type set forth under the captions "DEBT AND OTHER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS," 
"TAX BASE," "THE DISTRICT – Student Enrollment," "FINANCES OF THE 
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM-State Equalization Program," "Statement of Net Assets, 
Statement of Activities, Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures." in 
the Official Statement.  Annual Financial Information will include Audited Financial 
Statements if available. 
 
  (b) "Audited Financial Statements" means the District’s annual 
financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, as in effect from time to time (“GAAP”), for governmental units as prescribed 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”), which financial statements 
have been audited as may then be required or permitted by the laws of the State. 
 
  (c) “EMMA” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s 
Electronic Municipal Market Access System located on its website at emma.msrb.org. 
 

(d) "Event Information" means the information delivered pursuant to 
Section 3(d). 
 
  (e) "MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  The 
current address of the MSRB is 1900 Duke Street, Suite 600, Alexandria, Virginia 22314, 
phone (703) 797-6600, fax (703) 797-6708. 
 



  (f) "Official Statement" means the Official Statement dated 
September 2, 2015, delivered in connection with the original issue and sale of the Bonds. 
 
  (g) "Report Date" means March 31 of each year, beginning in 2016. 
 
  (h) "Rule" means Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the SEC under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (17 C.F.R. Part 240, § 240.15c2-12), as the 
same may be amended from time to time. 
 
  (i) "SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
  (j) "State" means the State of New Mexico. 
 
 Section 3. Provision of Annual Financial Information and Reporting of Event 
Information. 
 
  (a) The District, or its designated agent, will provide the Annual 
Financial Information for the preceding fiscal year to the Repository on or before each 
Report Date while the Bonds are outstanding. 
 
  (b) If Audited Financial Statements are not provided as a part of the 
Annual Financial Information, the District, or its designated agent, will provide unaudited 
financial statements as part of the Annual Financial Information.  The District will timely 
provide to EMMA notice of failure to provide Annual Financial Information or Audited 
Financial Statements in the event these items are not available by the Report Date. 
 
  (c) The District, or its designated agent, may provide Annual Financial 
Information by specific reference to other documents, including information reports and 
official statements relating to other debt issues of the District, which have been submitted 
to the Repository or filed with the SEC; provided, however, that if the document so 
referenced is a “final official statement” within the meaning of the Rule, such final 
official statement must also be available from the MSRB.  
 
  (d) The District, or its designated agent, will provide, to EMMA, 
notice of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds in a timely manner not in 
excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of the event:  
 
   (i) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
 
   (ii) non-payment related defaults, if material; 
 
   (iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting 
financial difficulties; 
 
   (iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting 
financial difficulties; 
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   (v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure 
to perform; 
 
   (vi) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue 
Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS 
Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status 
of the security, or other material events affecting the tax status of the security; 
 
   (vii) modifications to rights of security holders, if material; 
 
   (viii) bond calls; 
 
   (ix) defeasances; 
 
   (x) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment 
of the securities, if material within the meaning of the federal securities law;  
 
   (xi) rating change; 
 
   (xii) failure to provide event filing information as required; 
 
   (xiii) tender offer/secondary market purchases; 
 
   (xiv) merger, consolidation or acquisition and sale of all or 
substantially all assets; 
 
   (xv) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event with 
respect to the District or an obligated person; and 
 
   (xvi) appointment of a successor or additional trustee, or the 
change of name of a trustee, if material. 
 
  (e) The District, or its designated agent, will provide, in a timely 
manner not in excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of the event, to 
EMMA, notice of any: (i) failure of the District to timely provide the Annual Financial 
Information as specified in Sections 3(a) and 3(b); (ii) changes in its fiscal year-end; and 
(iii) amendment of this Undertaking. 
 
 Section 4. Method of Transmission.  The District, or its designated agent, will 
employ such methods of electronic or physical information transmission as are requested 
or recommended from time to time by the Repository, the MSRB or the SEC. 
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 Section 5. Enforcement. The obligations of the District under this 
Undertaking are for the benefit of the Owners.  Each Owner is authorized to take action 
to seek specific performance by court order to compel the District to comply with its 
obligations under this Undertaking, which action will be the exclusive remedy available 
to it or any other Owner. The District's breach of its obligations under this Undertaking 
will not constitute an event of default under the Resolution, and none of the rights and 
remedies provided by such Resolution will be available to the Owners with respect to 
such a breach. 
 
 Section 6. Term. The District's obligations under this Undertaking will be in 
effect from and after the issuance and delivery of the Bonds and will extend to the earliest 
of (i) the date all principal and interest on the Bonds has been paid or legally defeased 
pursuant to the terms of the Resolution; (ii) the date on which the District is no longer an 
"obligated person" with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule; or (iii) the 
date on which those portions of the Rule which require this Undertaking are determined 
to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction in a non-appealable 
action, have been repealed retroactively or otherwise do not apply to the Bonds. 
 
 Section 7. Amendments. The District may amend this Undertaking from time 
to time, without the consent of any Owner, upon the District's receipt of an opinion of 
independent counsel experienced in federal securities laws to the effect that such 
amendment:  
 
  (a) is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises 
from a change in legal requirements, a change in law or a change in the identity, nature or 
status of the District; 
 
  (b) this Undertaking, as amended, would have complied with the Rule 
at the time of the initial issue and sale of the Bonds, after taking into account any 
amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any changes in circumstances; and 
 
  (c) the amendment does not materially impair the interests of the 
Owners. 
 
 Any Annual Financial Information containing amended operating data or 
financial information will explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and 
the impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being 
provided.  If an amendment changes the accounting principles to be followed in preparing 
financial statements, the Annual Financial Information and Audited Financial Statements 
for the year in which the change is made will present a comparison between the financial 
statements or information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and 
those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. 
 
 Section 8. Beneficiaries.  This Undertaking binds and inures to the sole 
benefit of the District and the Owners and creates no rights in any other person or entity. 
 

 4 



 Section 9. Subject to Appropriation.  This Undertaking shall be subject to 
annual appropriation by the District’s Board of Education and shall not be construed as a 
general obligation of the District. 
 
 Section 10. Governing Law.  This Undertaking is governed by and is to be 
construed in accordance with the law of the State. 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
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 Date:  October 7, 2015. 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE 
      ALBUQUERQUE MUNICIPAL SCHOOL 
      DISTRICT NO. 12 
 
 

By________________________________ 
      President 

[SEAL] 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Secretary 
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